
 
 

     
 
 
 
 

THE PRESERVE AT WILDERNESS LAKE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
Advanced Meeting Package 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
Wednesday 

November 1, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

 
Location: 

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake,  
located in the Activities Center at 

21320 Wilderness Lake Boulevard,  
Land O' Lakes, FL 34637. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 

 



The Preserve at Wilderness Lake 
Community Development District 
 

  
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary FL  32746 
321-263-0132  

 
 

 
Board of Supervisors  
The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community 
Development District is scheduled for Wednesday, November 1, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. at The Preserve 
at Wilderness Lake, located in the Activities Center at 21320 Wilderness Lake Boulevard, Land 
O' Lakes, FL 34637. 
 
An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 X-285 or 
tdobson@vestapropertyservices.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Tish Dobson 
Tish Dobson 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 

mailto:tdobson@dpfgmc.com


Page 1 of 2 
 

District: THE PRESERVE AT WILDERNESS LAKE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Date of Meeting: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
Time: 6:30PM 
Location: The Preserve at Wilderness Lake 

Lodge, 21320 Wilderness Lake 
Blvd., Land O’ Lakes, FL 34637 

 

Call-in Number: +1 (929) 205-6099  
Meeting ID: 913 989 9080 
Passcode: 842235 
Zoom Link: 
https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/9139899080?pwd=aFdWVzFxb3Y0L2w4eG9VTnZRakl0UT09 

Revised Agenda 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call  
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
III. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda items) 
 

IV. Presentation of Proof of Publication(s)  
V. Supervisor Comments  
VI. Staff Reports  

A. Landscaping & Irrigation  
1. RedTree Report – September 2023 Exhibit 1 
2. RedTree Landscape Projects & Proposal Tracker Exhibit 2 
3. Consideration of RedTree Landscape Maintenance 

Agreement Renewal for FY23-24 
Exhibit 3 

4. RedTree Proposals (if any) Exhibit 4 
a. Wild Oak Lane Hedgerow – 3-gal. Viburnum Installation  
b. Wild Oak Lane Hedgerow – 7-gal. Viburnum Installation  
c. 35-gal. Crepe Myrtles Installation  
d. 15-gal. Guava Installation  
e. 7-gal. Guava Installation  
f. Sod Installation  

B. Aquatic Services  
1. GHS Environmental Report Exhibit 5 

C. District Engineer Exhibit 6 
1. Review of Cormorant Cove Dock Inspection Exhibit 7 

https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/9139899080?pwd=aFdWVzFxb3Y0L2w4eG9VTnZRakl0UT09


Page 2 of 2 
 

D. District Counsel  
E. Community Manager  

1. Presentation of Community Manager Report  Exhibit 8 
F. District Manager  

1. Presentation of District Manager & Field Operations Report  Exhibit 9 
VII. Consent Agenda  

A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held October 4, 2023 

Exhibit 10 

B. Consideration for Acceptance – The September 2023 Unaudited 
Financial Report 

Exhibit 11 

C. Consideration for Acceptance – The September 2023 Operations 
& Maintenance Expenditures 

Exhibit 12 

VIII. Business Items  
A. Consideration of Ikare Publishing Newsletter Agreement Exhibit 13 
B. Consideration of Finn Outdoor Drainage Maintenance Proposal Exhibit 14 
C. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2024-01, 2024 General 

Election Notice 
Exhibit 15 

D. Consideration of Approval of Installation & Maintenance Access 
of Fencing in the Setback 

Exhibit 16 

E. Consideration of Vesta District Services Request to Designate the 
Lodge as Local Records Office for Pasco County 

 

F. Discussion of Spa Services Update Exhibit 17 
IX. Supervisors Requests  
X. Audience Comments – New Business  
XI. Next Meeting Quorum Check: December 7, 9:30 AM 

 

Beth Edwards  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Agnieszka Fisher  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Bryan Norrie  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Holly Ruhlig  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Heather Hepner  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

 

XII. Adjournment  

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



1 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Landscape Consulting & Contract Management 
“Protecting Your Landscape Investment” 

8431 Prestwick Place 
Trinity, FL 34655 

LANDSCAPE INSPECTION RESULTS 

Date:     September 21, 2023 
Client: Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District 
Attended by: CDD Management- Tish Dobson (Vesta Property Services) 

    Redtree Landscape Systems-John Burkett, Joseph Mendoza 
    PSA Horticultural-Tom Picciano 

This landscape inspection report and subsequent ones will serve as a both a benchmark of current landscape 
maintenance concerns and the progress toward corrective actions. It will also serve as a deficiency list of items that 
should be addressed under the current landscape agreement. 

These items must be completed by October 9, 2023. Notify PSA in writing upon their completion, via fax or email, 
on or before 9 am on October 10, 2023. Contractor must initial the bottom of each page and sign at the bottom of the 
last page. The reason for any uncompleted deficiency must be noted. 

SCORE 1-POOR   2-FAIR   3-GOOD 

3 MOWING/EDGING/TRIMMING 

Draycott cul de sac-redefine bed line. Photo below. 

Main exit-hard edge along asphalt up to traffic light. 

Minnowbrook-line trim along length of woodline. 

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 10.4.23



2 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Rear bed lines were neatly edged and weeded. Photo below. 

The turf was mowed high with sharp blades. The cut was clean and neat. The hard edging was vertical, and 
the edged material was cleaned out. Line trimming was performed at the same height as the mowing. The 
cleanup was thorough. The mowing operation was scheduled to be completed by the end of September 21st. 

3 WOODLINE MAINTENANCE 

Green Wing-woodline cut back has been completed. Photo below. 

Night Heron at Minnowbrook-cut back vegetation by bench. 

Sparrowood outbound-cut back select vegetation extending out of woodline. 

Blvd. across from Americus-cut back woodline. 

Most of the woodlines were neatly maintained. 

3 TURF COLOR 

Boulevard from Lodge to main entry-color was mostly a lightly mottled medium green. 

Citrus Blossom park common area- color was mostly a lightly mottled medium green. 

Citrus Blossom playground- color was mostly a lightly mottled medium green. 

Stoneleigh park-turf color was a consistent medium green. 

Lodge-turf color still ranged from a lightly mottled medium green to a consistent dark green. 

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.3.23



3 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Oakhurst park-turf color was a mottled medium green. 

Kendall Heath/Waverly Shores- turf color remained a consistent medium green. 

Night Heron/Caliente intersection-turf color was a mottled medium green. 

Roundabout-turf color still ranged from a consistent medium green to a consistent dark green. 

September                                        September                                     September 

August      August   August 

July        July    July 

3 TURF DENSITY 

Kendall Heath/Waverly Shores-the density of the common Bermudagrass was fair and continues to improve. It is 
recommended that this area be overseeded each year.  The density of the St. Augustine turf was strong. 



4 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Boulevard from Lodge to main entry-the density was good except for some dead sections of turf which are 
scheduled for replacement. 

Citrus Blossom park-the density was good. 

Citrus Blossom common area-the density still ranged from fair to good except for some dead sections of turf which 
are scheduled for replacement. 

Stoneleigh park-the density of the common Bermudagrass was good. The density of the St. Augustine turf was 
good. 

Oakhurst park-the density of the common Bermudagrass ranged from fair to good. It remains heavily weeded due to 
excessive moisture, compaction, and usage.  It may be advisable to overseed this lawn on a yearly basis if the soccer 
field will be heavily used. The density of the St. Augustine turf remained strong. 

Night Heron/Caliente intersection-the density ranged from fair to good. This area appears to have some soil 
compaction issues. 

Lodge-the density of the main entry lawn, front lawn, nature center lawn and rear lawn ranged from fair to good. 
Crabgrass has infested some of the front lawn areas adversely affecting the density. 

Tennis court-the density around the tennis court still ranged from fair to good. The turf along the blvd. was thin. The 
rear section had a better density. 

The Bahia turf density around the ponds and other common areas was good. 

2 TURF WEED CONTROL 

Lodge-crabgrass is growing in all high visibility areas. Photo below. 

Lodge cut drive-broadleaf weeds and crabgrass. 

Main exit-broadleaf weeds and crabgrass. 

Americus-broadleaf weeds 

Caliente/Night Heron- broadleaf weeds and crabgrass 

Oakhurst park soccer field-broadleaf weeds and crabgrass. 

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23



5 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

2 TURF INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL/OVERALL HEALTH 

Blvd entry at pediatric office-replace dead turf along parkway. WARRANTY WORK. Photo below. 

Eagles Crest at Bircholm -turf is off color It appears dry. Photo below. 

General work order-warranty sod is scheduled to be replaced soon. 

The turf was neatly mowed at the proper height and with sharp blades to prevent tearing of grass blades. 
There was a slight loss of color over the past month. The density remained stable. The warranty sod 
replacement will improve the density, The broadleaf weed volume remained about the same as last month, 
but the amount of crabgrass has increased in the high visibility turf. Broadleaf weeds should be controlled 
once the weather cools, and future crabgrass germination can be reduced with the proper timing of pre-
emergent herbicide applications. There did not appear to be any significant insect or disease activity. Some 
turf appeared dry. 

3 SHRUB–TREE INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL/OVERALL HEALTH 

Butterfly garden-the health of plants in the butterfly garden was good. Milkweed has been installed. Photo below. 

Completed on 10.10.23



6 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Natures Ridge-remove dead Palatka holly. 

Draycott cul de sac pond-remove dead tree on backside of pond. Photo below. 

Blvd at Wild Oak Lane-treat viburnum hedge for disease activity. 

Bircholm lift station-remove dead plants. 

Lodge patio-treat scale activity on jatropha. It is present on several jatropha. Photo below. 

Front of lodge-treat Fakahatchee grass for spider mites. 

Eagles Grove monument-straighten jatropha. 

Hawk Wind Trails monument-treat Fakahatchee grass for spider mites. 

2 BED / CRACK WEED CONTROL 

General work order-treat crack weeds. 

Eagles Watch monument-remove bed weeds. 

Entry monuments-remove vines from coontie palms. 

Lodge entry drive at pump station-remove vines from ligustrum trees. 

Lakewood Retreat monument-remove bed weeds. 

Draycott cul de sac-remove bed weeds. 

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 10.10.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.2.23

Completed on 10.10.23

Completed on 10.9.23

Noted



7 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Blvd. median at Eagles Nest-remove bed weeds. 

Citrus Blossom playground-remove bed weeds. 

Across from 21517Night Heron-remove vines from Walter’s viburnum. Photo below. 

Night Heron median at Sparrowood--remove bed weeds. 

7220 Night Heron/Caliente-remove bed weeds. 

Oakhurst park-remove bed weeds by playground equipment and crack weeds in walkway. 

3 IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT 

Lodge-irrigation leak at basketball court in azalea bed. 

Eagles Crest at Bircholm-check for proper coverage and operation. 

3 SHRUB PRUNING 

*It should be noted that the shrubs, including but not limited to, the hawthorns and schilling hollies, should not be
pruned too tightly. This means that too much vegetative growth was being removed, limiting the plants availability
to make food for itself. In addition, the plant will look more attractive by not having “holes” in it and allowing it to
develop its more natural shape. (i.e. Indian Hawthorn has a natural mounded habit)

General work order-all hedge trimming and weeding needs be done at the same time, in accordance 
with specifications. The contractual pruning schedule was not adhered to, allowing many shrubs to 
grow beyond an acceptable state. 

Draycott cul de sac-prune viburnum hedge. Photo below. 

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 9.27.23

Completed on 9.27.23



8 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

Draycott cul de sac-prune back side of hedge at far end. Resident Meeta concern. 

Natures Ridge fence line at lodge-prune back shrubs. 

Pool deck-remove moss from Palatka holly. 

Tennis court walkway-prune palmetto. Photo below. 

Stoneleigh park-prune the mature viburnum hedge by pond to a consistent height. 

General work order-there is no need to “flat top” Indian hawthorn. They grow very slowly in a tight 
mounded habit and require only a quick heading back of shoots. Over-pruning is an unhealthy practice. 

2 TREE PRUNING 

Kendall Heath at Waverly Shores-prune oak around streetlight. 

Blvd at Wild Oak Lane-elevate low hanging oak tree limbs over viburnum hedge. 

Exit side monument-elevate low hanging limb by sign. 

Roundabout median-remove moss from crape myrtles and hollies. 

Oakhurst park-remove low hanging limb over sidewalk by cul de sac. 

General work order-remove sucker growth from crape myrtles. 

3 CLEANUP/RUBBISH REMOVAL 

General work order at main entry and throughout the property-remove debris out of storm inlets. Photo below. 

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 9.25.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.4.23

Completed on 10.9.23

Completed on 10.9.23

Completed on 10.3.23

Completed on 10.3.23

In Process

Completed on 10.3.23

In Process



9 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 

N/A APPEARANCE OF SEASONAL COLOR 

The flower display was not evaluated during this inspection, since it was in the process of being changed out. 

(0) CARRIED FORWARD FROM PRIOR MONTH

INSPECTION SCORE 32 of 36–PASSED INSPECTION. Passing score was 33 of 39 or 30 of 36 (w/o 
flowers). Payment for SEPTEMBER services should be released after the receipt of the DONE REPORT. 

FOR MANAGER 

Tish Dobson and Mendoza are to communicate daily to coordinate activities and report status. 

PROPOSALS  

Submit proposal to remove dead pine trees at Oakhurst monument. 

Submit proposal to install new planting outside of gym door to pool deck. Replace old hawthorns. 

Submit proposal to prune large oaks around the tennis court. 

SUMMARY 

Redtree performed to contractual standards for this inspection. The mowing and trimming of turf were properly 
performed. There was a slight decrease in color of the lawn, but the density remained strong with the exception of 
areas that need to be sodded under the warranty. The broadleaf weed volume remained stable, but the amount of 
crabgrass has increased. Broadleaf weed control should be performed once the temperature drops. There were no 
signs of significant insect or disease activity. Some of the turf did appear to be dry. Most of the shrubs were healthy 
except for certain Fakahatchee grass plants and the jatropha on the Lodge patio. Dead plants have to be removed. 
Shrubs pruning appeared to be on schedule. Elevation of tress was needed for pedestrian clearance as well as shrub 
separation. The bed weed control was significantly better than the August inspection. More attention needs to be paid 
to crack weed control. There was one irrigation break noted, and a section of turf appeared dry. The flower display 
was not evaluated since it was in the process of being changed out. 

Be certain to document in writing the rotational work zones that were worked on during the month. All 
maintenance items noted on this report must be completed during the normal rotational schedule. The reason 
for any uncompleted task must be noted in writing. 

RedTree Landscape Systems certifies that all work on this list has been completed in the 14-day timeframe specified 
in the contractual agreement and provided to PSA within the same period. 

Signature____________________________________________ 

Print Name __________________________________________ 

Company____________________________________________ 

Date__________ 

This was completed with the last round of Pine removals.

This was completed 3 months ago.

This was completed 3 months ago.

John Burkett, Client Care Specialist

RedTree Landscape Systems

10.16.23



10 
PSA-Wilderness 9/23 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



                                               Landscape Projects & Proposal Tracker

Project/Proposal Requested
Date 

Requested
Date 

Received
Date 

Approved Completion Date
Moss Ledge Run Tree Trimming 1/27/2023 Hold

Tennis Court Tree Trimming 2/20/2023 Hold

Grasmere Berm Sod Replacement 3/16/2023 5/24/2023

Pine Encroachment - Draycott Berm 4/13/2023 5/4/2023 5/10/2023
Butterfly Garden & Rear Amenities 
Bldg. 4/13/2023 5/18/2023 5/29/2023
Lakewood Retreat Monument 
Landscape Proposal 3/6/2023 6/21/2023 7/5/2023 10/6/2023
Replace the  Dwarf Hawthorn at the 
rear of the Fitness Center with 
Firebush

7/13/2023 8/1/2023 8/1/2023 10/6/2023

Pool Deck and Lanai Pots 7/13/2023 8/19/2023 Under revision
Azaleas Rear AC - Warranty 7/13/2023 10/9/2023
Thryallis Rear AC - Warranty 7/13/2023 10/9/2023

Remove failing Bottle Brush at 
Lagoon Pool -  Replace with Pringle

7/13/2023 10/9/2023

Pool deck entrance from the 
driveway, move Azaleas and replace 
with sod. 

8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/3023 In progress. 

Thin Saw Palmettos near Tennis 
Courts 8/10/2023 In progress. 
Lodge Magnolia Bed - Fill in the gaps 
with Fire Bush and Loropetalum - 
50/50 split

8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/2023 10/6/2023



Oak tree bed enhancement - Meet 
with Beth and Kevin

8/1/23

9/17/2023 - 
Revised 

Proposal rcvd. 
9/27/2023

10/4/2023

Add Fire Bush or Loropetalum under 
the Lodge window near the water 
faucet. 

8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/2023 10/6/2023

Sod replacement - In front of the AC - 
Warranty 8/10/2023 8/23/2023 8/22/2023 10/6/2023

Remove branches from the roof line 
at the entrance of Water's Edge

8/10/2023 8/22/2023 8/22/2023 In progress. 

Remove the three dead Anise shrubs 
at the lift station on WL Blvd. 

8/10/2023 10/9/2023

Replace the dead Viburnum shrubs 
on WL Blvd. Multiple locations- 
Warranty 

8/10/2023 10/9/2023

Sod replacement - WL Blvd. and 
Neighborhood Park - Warranty 7/13/2023 8/23/2023 10/6/2023
Deerfield's Berm move irrigation out 
of the hedge. 7/13/2023 8/18/2023 8/22/2023 Sent a reminder

Roadway construction sod 
replacement.

7/13/2023 8/16/2023 Forwarded to 
the engineer. 

ACPLM is 
replacing the sod 
in October 2023

Clean out/thin Saw Palmettos behind 
the pool equipment pond. 9/21/2023
Tennis Court Guava beds - Proposal 
to removed the Guava hedge, 
romove mulch, prune oaks, add sod, 
adjust irrigation. 

9/21/2023 10/26/2023

Water's Edge entrance/exit beds - 
Add Azaleas 9/21/2023



Wild Oak Lane/Osprey Point/Quail 
Trace/Hawk Wind Trails/Eagles 
Watch/Heron's Wood Monument 
Islands - Proposal to enhance the 
bed. 

9/21/2023

Sod installation at cub by Pediatric 
office - outside of PWL fence.

10/26/2023

Installing 15-gallon Guava by pool 
pump - 10/26/2023
Installing 7-gallon Guava by pool 
pump 10/26/2023
Enahancment - Wild Oak Lane 
hedgerow - 3-gallon Viburnum 10/26/2023
Enahancment - Wild Oak Lane 
hedgerow - 7-gallon Viburnum 10/26/2023



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



{00093078.DOCX/} 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
ADDENDUM #1 

THIS LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ADDENDUM #1 the 
(“Addendum #1”) is made as of the 3rd day of February 2021, by and between The Preserve 
at Wilderness Lake Community Development District, whose mailing address is 12750 Citrus 
Park Lane, Suite 115, Tampa, Florida  33625 (the “District”) and Redtree Landscape Systems, 
LLC, whose mailing address is 5532 Auld Lane, Holiday, Florida  34690 (the “Contractor”). 

WHEREAS,  the Contractor and the District entered into the Landscape Maintenance 
Agreement dated February 1, 2019 (the “Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, by the execution of this Addendum #1 to the Landscape Maintenance 
Agreement, it is agreed that the Contractor will be performing professional services as an 
independent contractor and will not be subject to the control of the District as to the means and 
method of performance of the services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
conditions herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and
correct and by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of the Agreement. 

2. ADDENDUM TO LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT.  The
Landscape Maintenance Agreement shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The term of the Landscape Maintenance Agreement is extended through January
31, 2023.  During the term of the Landscape Maintenance Agreement, there will be no
increase in the landscape maintenance agreement base prices or line-item pricing for
enhancement projects, and there will be no increase in the unit costs for tree pruning,
tree removal, landscape installation and sod installation that have been previously
negotiated with the District.

(b) The Contractor will provide the labor and materials necessary to repair the sod, tree
and plant material portion of the Caliente berm “collapsed area” after the ground is
restored.

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  All other terms and conditions of the
Landscape Maintenance Agreement are hereby ratified and shall apply to this Addendum #1. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum #1 as of 
the day and year first written above. 

Redtree Landscape Systems, LLC 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake 
Community Development District 

By: 
Brian Sailer 
Chair of the Board of Supervisors 

Peter Lucadano
CEO















{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 1 of 13 

Landscape Maintenance Agreement 
 

This Landscape Maintenance Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of February 1, 2019 
between The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District, a community 
development district organized under the laws of the State of Florida (the “District”) and Redtree 
Landscape Systems LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the “Contractor”). 
 

Background Information: 
   
 The District owns, operates, and maintains certain landscaping within and around the District. 
The District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide landscape maintenance services for 
certain lands within and around the District. Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is 
qualified to serve as a landscape maintenance contractor, qualified to provide services to the District, 
and agrees to work under the supervision of PSA Horticultural Inc., an independent consultant to the 
District (“PSA”). 
  

Operative Provisions: 
 

1. Incorporation of Background Information. The background information stated above is 
true and correct and by this reference is incorporated by reference as a material part of this 
Agreement. 
 

2. Contractor’s Representations. In order to induce the District to enter into this Agreement, 
Contractor makes the following representations, upon which the District has actually and 
justifiably relied:  

a. That Contractor has examined and carefully studied the project site, and that Contractor 
has the experience, expertise and resources to perform all required work.  

b. That Contractor has visited the site and at least a fair representative sample of the project 
area and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and site conditions 
that may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

c. The Contractor agrees to be responsible for the care, health, maintenance, and 
replacement, if necessary, of the existing landscaping, in its current condition, and on an 
“as is” basis.   

d. The Contractor shall be strictly liable for the decline or death of any plant material, 
regardless of whether such decline or death is due to the negligence of the Contractor, 
except that the Contractor shall not be responsible for fire, cold, storm or wind damage, 
incurable or uncontrollable diseases, or damage due to vandalism, upon prior written 
notice to the District and PSA.  

e. No changes to the compensation set forth in this Agreement shall be made based on any 
claim that the existing landscaping was not in good condition or that the site was 
unsuitable for such landscaping. 

f. That Contractor is familiar with and can and shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws and regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance, and furnishing of the 
work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

g. That all work performed under this Agreement shall be free from defects in workmanship 
and material, and shall be performed in accordance with industry standards and the 
standards and specifications referenced herein.  



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 2 of 13 

 
3. Description of Work.  

a. The work to be performed shall include all labor, material, equipment, supervision, and 
transportation necessary to perform the services as more fully set forth in the landscape 
specifications attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Work”).  

b. This Agreement includes Parts II, III (except for subpart D), V, VI,, and VII, of the 
Work.  

c. Any OTC Injections, Sub part D of Part III, and Part IV of the Work may be awarded to 
the Contractor at the District’s discretion.  

d. The Contractor submitted a proposal for the Work attached hereto as Exhibit B.  
e. Maps of the areas to be maintained for different components of the Work is attached 

hereto as Composite Exhibit C.  
f. This is a performance based agreement and PSA will be scoring Contractor’s 

performance pursuant to the score sheet attached hereto as Exhibit D.  
g. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any work or 

services unless the District, through an authorized representative of the District, 
authorized the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 

4. Initial Landscape Deficiencies. The Contractor shall not be held responsible for landscape 
deficiencies that may exist prior to the effective date of this agreement. Upon mutual agreement, 
a written list of pre-existing conditions will be prepared for by the Contractor for the District to 
resolve at the District’s expense. Contractor shall have a grace period to complete all contractual 
pre-existing conditions that do not involve additional expense to the District by March 15, 2019. 
If these pre-existing conditions are not repaired and/or otherwise resolved satisfactorily to the 
District or PSA and completed accordingly, then Contractor will only be compensated based on 
their performance as described in this Agreement.  

 
5. Emergency Services. In the event of an emergency or disaster, Contractor shall provide the 

District the following services: 
a. Debris removal services shall be available on a timely basis and at a reasonable price.  

Prior to mobilization for debris removal activities, Contractor shall provide District, in 
writing, hourly rates for personnel, and equipment.  Unreasonable rates will be rejected.  
All overhead costs are inclusive in the hourly rates. 

b. Hourly rates for equipment applies only when equipment is operating and includes all 
associated costs such as operator, fuel, maintenance, and repair. 

c. Personnel and equipment hourly rates include only those hours that Contractor’s 
personnel are performing the debris removal activities.  Stand-by time is not an eligible 
expense. 

d. Disaster Recovery Assistance Services shall not exceed a total of seventy (70) hours 
worked for each emergency/disaster. 

e. Contractor shall maintain and supply District all the necessary and adequate 
documentation on all emergency/disaster-related services to support reimbursement by 
other local, state, or federal agencies. 

f. District reserves the right to immediately terminate all Disaster Recovery Assistance 
activities under this Agreement for any reason.  District will not be held responsible for 
any loss incurred by Contractor as a result of District’s election to terminate these 
activities pursuant to this paragraph. 

 
 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 3 of 13 

6. Manner of Performance. 
a. While performing the Work, the Contractor shall assign such experienced staff as may be 

required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling 
all aspects to assure completion of the Work in accordance with the specifications.  

b. All Work shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to 
the District and PSA and shall be of the very highest quality at least in accordance with 
industry standards and best management practices, such as IFAS.  

c. The performance of all services by the Contractor under this Agreement and related to 
this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions issued by the District or PSA.  

d. Upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the District, a regular maintenance 
service day will be selected. The District and PSA shall be contacted at least thirty-six 
(36) hours in advance when the Contractor cannot perform services on the scheduled day, 
except in the case of adverse weather conditions. An alternate day and/or time will then 
be selected. 

e. Prior to the beginning of each calendar year, Contractor shall provide a detailed schedule 
for Grounds Maintenance, Pest Control, and Irrigation System Maintenance as described 
in the Work for the upcoming year. This schedule will include anticipated service dates 
and services to be provided.  

f. The Contractor make every effort to provide the District with the same work personnel 
and supervisors to the District to maintain the property in a consistent manner by workers 
that are familiar with the property and procedures expected. 

g. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this Agreement or 
any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of services to 
the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if 
described and delineated in this Agreement at no additional cost to the District. 

h. Contractor shall use due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, and 
landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair, at its sole cost, any damage 
resulting from the Work within twenty-four (24) hours of the damage occurring or 
receiving written notice, whichever is earlier to the satisfaction of the District. 

i. Contractor is responsible for vehicular safety within the community and shall use the 
proper warning safety equipment. Any motorized equipment used on the road ways of the 
community must be legally equipped. 

j. Contractor shall replace, at Contractor’s expense, all plant material that, in the opinion of 
the District or PSA fails to maintain a healthy, vigorous condition as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to perform the Work specified herein.  

k. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to notify the District and PSA in writing of any 
conditions beyond the control of the Contractor or scope of Work that may result in the 
damage and/or loss of plant material. This responsibility includes, but is not limited to the 
following: vandalism and/or other abuse of property, areas of the site that continually 
hold water, areas of the site that are consistently too dry. Contractor shall provide such 
items via written notice together with recommended solutions and related costs. Failure 
of the Contractor to report such items shall result in the Contractor incurring full 
responsibility and cost for repairs necessary. 

l. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains (“Rain Days”), the Contractor agrees to 
reschedule its employees and divide their time accordingly to complete all scheduled 
services during the same week as any Rain Days. The Contractor shall provide services 
on Saturdays if needed to make up Rain Days with prior notification to and approval by, 
the District’s representatives. 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 4 of 13 

m. Contractor shall contract the District and PSA at least thirty-six (36) hours in advance 
when services cannot be performed by Contractor on the scheduled day and an alternate 
time shall be scheduled in accordance with the District’s rules and regulations for 
operations of contractors on site, except in the case of adverse weather conditions. The 
District shall have the right to select an alternate date and/or time for Contractor to 
perform the alternate regular maintenance service day. The District may at any time 
request alterations to the general maintenance service timing provided that the Contractor 
may accomplish the request without incurring additional expense for equipment, 
materials, or labor. 

 
7. Time of Commencement. The work to be performed under this Agreement shall commence 

after providing District the requisite insurance referenced herein and no later than February 1, 
2019.  
 

8. Term and Renewal. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for two years from the date of 
this Agreement. At the end of the initial term, the Agreement shall automatically renew for 
subsequent one year terms at the same price and contract provisions as the initial term, until 
terminated by either party pursuant to the termination provision below.   
 

9. Termination  
a. Contractor's Termination:  Contractor may terminate this Agreement with sixty (60) 

days’ written notice with or without cause. Termination notice must be sent to and 
received by the District by certified mail. The sixty (60) day notice shall commence on 
the day of actual receipt of said written notice by the District.   

b. District's Termination:  The District may, in its sole and absolute discretion, whether or 
not reasonable, on thirty (30) days’ written notice to Contractor, terminate this 
Agreement at its convenience, with or without cause, and without prejudice to any other 
remedy it may have. Termination notice must be sent to the Contractor by certified mail. 
The thirty (30) day notice shall commence on the day of mailing of said notice to the 
Contractor. In case of such termination for the District’s convenience, the Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive payment for work executed, subject to whatever claims or off-
sets the District may have against the Contractor.     

c. Alternative Remedies for Contractor’s Default: On a default by Contractor, the 
District may elect not to terminate this Agreement, and in such event it may make good 
the deficiency in which the default consists, and deduct the costs from the payment then 
or to become due to Contractor.  The District specifically reserves all rights available 
under the law or equity should there be a default by Contractor which shall include, but 
not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance. 

 
10. District Representatives and Inspections.  

a. Designation of District Representatives: The District hereby designates the District 
Manager and representatives of PSA to act as the District’s representatives. The District’s 
representatives shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive 
information, interpret and define the District’s policies and decisions with respect to 
materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to the Work.  

b. Frequency of Inspections: The Contractor agrees to meet with a District representative 
no less than one (1) time per month to perform a monthly site inspection by walking the 
property to discuss conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this Agreement. 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 5 of 13 

At that time, the District or PSA will compile a list of landscape related items that should 
be performed before the next walk through.  

c. Scheduling of Inspections: The District or PSA will be responsible for scheduling the 
monthly inspections. The District and PSA must have no less than fourteen (14) days’ 
notice if there is a need to reschedule. All scheduled inspections will proceed with or 
without the attendance of the Contractor. Notwithstanding, Contractor is responsible for a 
weekly inspection of the entire property subject to the Work.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible providing a four-wheeled utility vehicle for each inspection.   

d. Deficiencies: If the District representatives identify any deficient areas, the District 
representatives shall notify the Contractor through a written report or otherwise.  The 
Contractor shall then within the time period specified by the District representatives, or if 
no time is specified within forty-eight (48) hours, explain in writing what actions shall be 
taken to remedy the deficiencies.   Upon approval by the District, the Contractor shall 
take such actions as are necessary to address the deficiencies within the time period 
specified by the District, or if no time is specified by the District, then within three days 
and prior to submitting any invoices to the District.   

 
11. Compensation 

a. Total Compensation for Full Performance of the Work. As compensation for the 
Work the District agrees to pay Contractor a not to exceed amount (subject to reductions 
based upon the scores determined by PSA) as described below:  

i. for the Grounds Maintenance, Irrigation System Inspections, and Hardwood Tree 
Pruning, as described in Parts II, III (except for subpart D), V, VI, and VII of the 
Work, a total of $15,000 per month (the “Full Monthly Grounds 
Maintenance Payment”).   

ii. for all other non-monthly services, and only after receipt of written authorization 
by the District to proceed, the pricing specified in the proposal attached hereto as 
Exhibit B in the month after the services were performed.   

b. PSA Scoring System and Performance Based Payments:      
i. The scoring system is based on an aggregate point total: 1=Poor, 2= 

Good, 3=Excellent. All scoring is based on an aggregate of the entire 
property, with special emphasis based on high visibility areas along 
the main arterial roads and the parks. Thirteen components of the 
landscaping are reviewed each month as shown in the score sheet 
attached hereto as Exhibit D. A maximum of 39 points are available to 
be awarded.  

ii. The scoring is based on the proportion of the property that has 
deficiencies, and the magnitude of the deficiency. Ex. Whether the turf 
was cut too low, or uneven, too many low hanging branches to impede 
the line of sight or cause injury, yellow turf in the middle of summer, 
how much of the turf or shrubs are affected by disease or insects, the 
health and bloom of the annuals, etc. 

iii. 1= Poor- This indicates that 2/3- all of the property (and the magnitude 
of the deficiency) has a problem with any one of the scored 
components, or could adversely affect that portion of the property, 
such as a malfunctioning irrigation system. 

iv. 2= Good- This indicates that 1/3-2/3 of the property (and the 
magnitude of the deficiency) has a problem with any one of the scored 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 6 of 13 

components, or could adversely affect that portion of the property, 
such as a malfunctioning irrigation system. 

v. 3= Excellent- This indicates that none-1/3 of the property (and the 
magnitude of the deficiency) has a problem with any one of the scored 
components, or could adversely affect that portion of the property, 
such as a malfunctioning irrigation system. 

vi. The Contractor must achieve a score of 85% or higher (33 points or 
above) in order to receive their Full Monthly Grounds Maintenance 
Payment. If the Contractor fails to achieve this score, their payment 
for the month of the inspection shall be reduced by 20%. In addition, 
failing to achieve a 2 or 3 score in any scoring component shall result 
in an additional 10% reduction of the Full Monthly Grounds 
Maintenance Payment.  

vii. Scoring shall not be based on work that is scheduled, but yet to be 
performed, or if the work is being performed according to industry 
standards.  

viii. Contractor must have the deficiencies that were noted, corrected as 
stipulated in this Agreement within 14 days and provide a “Done 
Report” to PSA and the District. This Done Report shall be signed off 
by the Contractor certifying that the deficiencies have been corrected 
within the allotted time. It must be received by PSA no later than one 
day after the correction due date. If the certified Done Report is not 
received on time, an additional 1% reduction may be imposed for that 
month’s payment.  

ix. Uncorrected deficiencies carried over from a previous month, without 
a legitimate written reason, may result in the loss of 1 point during the 
next monthly inspection.  

x. Items certified as completed and found to be incomplete shall result in 
in the loss of 1 point during the next monthly inspection. 

c. Invoices: Contractor shall invoice the District monthly for services provided during the 
previous month. The format of the invoice and backup documentation shall strictly 
adhere to the requirements established by District and at a minimum shall include the 
District's name, the Contractor's name, the invoice date, an invoice number, an itemized 
listing of all costs billed on the invoice with a description of each service, the time frame 
within which the services were provided, and the address or bank information to which 
payment is to be remitted.  

d. Prompt Payment of Invoices: The District shall provide payment within forty five (45) 
days of receipt of invoices, unless such invoice is disputed as described below, in 
accordance with Florida’s Prompt Payment Act, Section 218.70, Florida Statutes.  

e. Invoice Dispute:  
i. If the District disputes or questions any part or all of an invoice, the District shall 

advise Contractor in writing of such questions or disputes within forty five (45) 
days of the District’s receipt of such invoice.  

ii. In the event of any dispute regarding the Work performed to date and so long as 
the District is pursuing resolution of such dispute in an expeditious manner, 
Contractor, including any of Contractor’s subcontractor(s) or agent(s) responsible 
for the Work, shall continue to carry on performance of the Work and maintain 
their progress during any such dispute, lawsuit or other proceeding to resolve the 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 7 of 13 

dispute, and District shall continue to make payments of undisputed amounts to 
Contractor in accordance with this Agreement.  

f. Additional Documentation. The District may require, as a condition precedent to 
making any payment to the Contractor that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or 
laborers be paid and require evidence, in the form of lien releases or partial waivers of 
lien, to be submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers, or 
laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide an affidavit relating to the 
payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a 
condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form 
satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard 
to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s 
Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll 
deductions from the wages of employees. 

g. Additional Services: If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add 
additional lands to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 
undertake such additional work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the parties 
shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The 
Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon 
a payment amount acceptable to the parties and agreed to in writing. 
 

12. Duties and Rights of Contractor. Contractor's duties and rights are as follows:   
a. Responsibility for and Supervision of the Work:  Contractor shall be solely 

responsible for all work specified in this Agreement, including the techniques, sequences, 
procedures, means, and coordination for all work. Contractor shall supervise and direct 
the work to the best of its ability, giving all attention necessary for such proper 
supervision and direction so that the Work meets the PSA scoring system each month.  

b. Discipline, Employment, Uniforms:  Contractor shall maintain at all times strict 
discipline among its employees and shall not employ for work on the project any person 
unfit or without sufficient skills to perform the job for which such person is employed. 
All laborers, crewmembers and foremen of the Contractor shall perform all Work on the 
premises in a uniform to be designed by the Contractor. The shirt and pants shall be 
matching and consistent. The crew leader will be distinguishable from other crew 
members by wearing a different uniform shirt. At the start of each day, the uniform shall 
be reasonably clean and neat. No shirtless attire, no torn or tattered attire or slang graphic 
T-shirts are permitted. No smoking in or around the buildings will be permitted. 
Rudeness or discourteous acts by Contractor employees will not be tolerated. No 
Contractor solicitation of any kind is permitted on property. 

c. Furnishing of Labor, Materials/Liens and Claims:  Contractor shall provide and pay 
for all labor, materials, and equipment, including tools, equipment and machinery, 
utilities, including water, transportation, and all other facilities and services necessary for 
the proper completion of work in accordance with this Agreement and will confirm all 
measurements and quantities.  Contractor waives the right to file mechanic’s and 
construction liens. The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any 
material men’s or mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and 
claims, which arise by reason of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and 
the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim or lien. In the event that the 
Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) business days after 
the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies available 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 8 of 13 

under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 

d. Payment of Taxes, Procurement of Licenses and Permits, Compliance with 
Governmental Regulations:  Contractor shall pay all taxes required by law in 
connection with the Work, including sales, use, and similar taxes, and shall secure all 
licenses and permits necessary for proper completion of the Work, paying the fees 
therefore and ascertaining that the permits meet all requirements of applicable federal, 
state and county laws or requirements.  The Contractor shall keep, observe, and perform 
all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, regulations, or 
ordinances, including conservation easements applicable to the District.  If the Contractor 
fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, 
order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged violation, made 
by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof with 
respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or material men, or with respect to 
terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other 
requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement 
of such agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to 
comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate 
this Agreement, such termination to be effective immediately upon the giving of notice of 
termination. 

e. Responsibility for Negligence of Employees and Subcontractors: Contractor shall be 
fully responsible for all acts or omissions of its employees on the project, its 
subcontractors and their employees, and other persons doing work under any request of 
Contractor.  

f. Safety Precautions and Programs:  Contractor shall provide for and oversee all safety 
orders, precautions, and programs necessary for reasonable safety of the Work. 
Contractor shall maintain an adequate safety program to ensure the safety of employees 
and any other individuals working under this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with 
all OSHA standards and other applicable standard safety procedures and protocols. 
Contractor shall take precautions at all times to protect any persons and property affected 
by Contractor’s work, utilizing safety equipment such as bright vests and traffic cones.   

g. Dedicated Account Manager: Contractor shall assign a dedicated account 
manager to the District. The account manager shall attend the monthly 
meetings of the District to provide updates to the Board and answer any 
questions regarding landscaping issues.  

 
13. Indemnification 

a. The Contractor does hereby indemnify and hold the District and PSA, and their 
respective officers, agents and employees, harmless from liabilities, damages, losses and 
costs (including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees) arising in any manner 
whatsoever from or out of Contractor’s presence within the District for any purpose, 
including but not limited to performing the Work. The foregoing indemnification 
includes agreement by the Contractor to indemnify the District and PSA for conduct to 
the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of 
the Contractor and persons or entities employed or utilized by the Contractor in the 
performance of this Agreement.   



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 9 of 13 

b. It is understood and agreed that this Agreement is not a construction contract as that 
term is referenced in Section 725.06, Florida Statutes, (as amended) and that said 
statutory provision does not govern, restrict or control this Agreement. 

c. In any and all claims against the District or PSA or any of their agents or employees by 
any employee of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under this Agreement shall not be limited in any way as to the 
amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or 
any subcontractor under Workmen’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

d. The Contractor shall and does hereby indemnify and hold the District and PSA and 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them harmless from and against all claims, 
suits, demands, damages, losses, and expenses (including attorney’s fees) arising out of 
any infringement of patent or copyrights held by others and shall defend all such claims 
in connection with any alleged infringement of such rights. 
 

14. Insurance.  
a. Before performing any Work, Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the life of 

the Agreement, unless otherwise specified, insurance listed below. The policies of 
insurance shall be primary and written on forms acceptable to the District and placed with 
insurance carriers approved and licensed by the Insurance Department in the State of 
Florida and meet a minimum financial AM Best Company rating of no less than “A- 
Excellent: FSC VII.” No changes are to be made to these specifications without prior 
written specific approval by the District. 

i. Workers’ Compensation: Contractor will provide Workers’ Compensation 
insurance on behalf of all employees who are to provide a service under this 
Agreement, as required under applicable Florida Statutes and Employer’s 
Liability with limits of not less than $100,000.00 per employee per accident, 
$500,000.00 disease aggregate, and $100,000.00 per employee per disease.  In the 
event the Contractor has “leased” employees, the Contractor or the employee 
leasing company must provide evidence of a Minimum Premium Workers’ 
Compensation policy, along with a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the District. 
All documentation must be provided to the District at the address listed below.  
No contractor or subcontractor operating under a worker’s compensation 
exemption shall access or work on the site. 

ii. Commercial General Liability: Commercial General Liability including but not 
limited to bodily injury, property damage, contractual, products and completed 
operations, and personal injury with limits of not less than $2,000,000.00 per 
occurrence, $2,000,000.00 aggregate covering all work performed under this 
Agreement.  

iii. Automobile Liability: Including bodily injury and property damage, including all 
vehicles owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000.00 combined single limit covering all work performed under this 
Agreement. 

iv. Umbrella Liability: With limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
covering all work performed under this Agreement. 

b. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall: 
i. Apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made and suit is brought, 

except with respect to limits of the insurer’s liability. 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 10 of 13 

ii. Be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, or canceled by 
either party except after 30 calendar days prior written notice, has been given to 
the District. 

iii. Be written to reflect that the aggregate limit will apply on a per claim basis. 
c. The District shall retain the right to review, at any time, coverage, form, and amount of 

insurance. 
d. The procuring of required policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit 

Contractor’s liability or to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this 
Agreement. 

e. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of all premiums for insurance 
contributing to the satisfaction of this Agreement and shall be solely responsible for the 
payment of all deductibles and retentions to which such policies are subject, whether or 
not the District is an insured under the policy. 

f. Certificates of insurance evidencing coverage and compliance with the conditions to this 
Agreement, and copies of all endorsements are to be furnished to the District prior to 
commencement of Work, and a minimum of 10 calendar days after the expiration of the 
insurance contract when applicable.  All insurance certificates shall be received by the 
District before the Contractor shall commence or continue work.  

g. Notices of accidents (occurrences) and notices of claims associated with work being 
performed under this Agreement shall be provided to the Contractor’s insurance company 
and to the District as soon as practicable after notice to the insured. 

h. Insurance requirements itemized in this Agreement and required of the Contractor shall 
be provided on behalf of all subcontractors to cover their operations performed under this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall be held responsible for any modifications, deviations, or 
omissions in these insurance requirements as they apply to subcontractors. 

i. All policies required by this Agreement, with the exception of Workers’ Compensation, 
or unless specific approval is given by the District, are to be written on an occurrence 
basis, shall name the District, its supervisors, officers, agents, employees and volunteers 
as additional insured as their interest may appear under this Agreement. Insurer(s), with 
the exception of Workers’ Compensation on non-leased employees, shall agree to waive 
all rights of subrogation against the district, its supervisors, officers, agents, employees or 
volunteers. 

 
15. Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall not award any of the Work to any subcontractor without 

prior written approval of the District.  The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the District 
for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them, as the Contractor is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed 
by the Contractor.  Nothing contained herein shall create contractual relations between any 
subcontractor and the District. 
 

16. Relationship Between the Parties.  It is understood that the Contractor is an independent 
contractor and shall perform the services contemplated under this Agreement.  As an 
independent contractor, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership, joint 
venture, or employer-employee relationship between the Contractor and the District.  The 
Contractor shall not have the right to make any contract or commitments for, or on behalf of, the 
District without the prior written approval of the District.  The Contractor assumes full 
responsibility for the payment and reporting of all local, state, and federal taxes and other 
contributions imposed or required of the Contractor during the performance of services to the 
District. 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 11 of 13 

 
17. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the District and the 

Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of 
any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the 
District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective representatives, successors, 
and assigns. 
 

18. Public Entity Crimes. Pursuant to Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida Statutes: 
 

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 
following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public 
entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public 
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may 
not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and 
may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in s. 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 
months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 

 
Contractor represents that in entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been placed on 
the convicted vendor list within the last 36 months and, in the event that the Contractor is placed 
on the convicted vendor list, the Contractor shall immediately notify the District whereupon this 
Agreement may be terminated by the District. 

 
19. Scrutinized Companies. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, Contractor represents 

that in entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been designated as a “scrutinized 
company” under the statute and, in the event that the Contractor is designated as a “scrutinized 
company”, the Contractor shall immediately notify the District whereupon this Agreement may 
be terminated by the District. 
 

20. Public Records.  Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to 
the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such 
records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is the District 
Manager (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the 
District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the 
District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  
reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 



{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 12 of 13 

the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records 
to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer 
to the District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, 
maintain and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida 
laws.  When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy 
any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a 
format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   
 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS AT 813-514-0400, OR BY EMAIL AT INFO@RIZZETTA.COM, 
OR BY REGULAR MAIL AT 5844 OLD PASCO ROAD, SUITE 100, 
WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33544. 
 

21. Waivers.  The failure of any party hereto to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 
construed to be a waiver of such or any other provision, nor in any way to affect the validity of 
all or any part of this Agreement or the right of such party thereafter to enforce each and every 
such provision.  No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to constitute a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach. 
 

22. Notices. Unless specifically stated to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, where notice is 
required to be provided under this Agreement, notice shall be deemed sent upon transmittal of 
the notice by facsimile and by U.S. Mail to the other party at the addresses listed below and shall 
be deemed received upon actual receipt by mail or facsimile, whichever is first:   
 
To the District: The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District 

   c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 
5844 Old Pasco Road, Suite 100 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33544 
Attn: District Manager  

 
With a copy to: Straley Robin Vericker    

1510 W. Cleveland Street 
  Tampa, Florida 33634 
  Attn: District Counsel 
    

To Contractor: Redtree Landscape Systems LLC 
1746 Nodding Thistle Drive 
New Port Richey, FL 34655 
Attn: Peter Lucadano, CEO  

 
23. Controlling Law. This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Florida with 

venue in Pasco County, Florida. 
 

mailto:INFO@RIZZETTA.COM


{00074675.DOCX/3} Page 13 of 13 

24. Enforcement of Agreement. In the event it shall become necessary for either party to institute 
legal proceedings in order to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to all costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees at both trial and appellate levels against 
the non-prevailing party. 
 

25. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

26. Amendment. This Agreement may not be altered, changed or amended, except by an instrument 
in writing, signed by both parties hereto. 
 

27. Assignment. This Agreement is not transferrable or assignable by either party without the 
written approval of both parties. In the event that the Contractor is purchased by, acquired by, or 
merges with another company, the new company must request the District’s written consent to 
the company’s assumption of this Agreement. 
 

28. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the District and 
the Contractor as an arm's length transaction.  In the case of a dispute concerning the 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, 
chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed 
against any party. 
 

29. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts together shall 
constitute, but one and the same instrument. 
 

30. Authorization. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the District and 
the Contractor, both the District and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of 
law, and both the District and the Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

31. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and neither party is to rely 
upon any oral representations made by the other party, except as set forth in this Agreement. This 
Agreement shall supersede and subsume any prior agreements. To the extent that any provisions 
of this Agreement conflict with the provisions in any exhibit, the provisions in this Agreement 
shall control over provisions in any exhibit. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the 

day and year first written above. 
 

Redtree Landscape Systems LLC 
 
 
       
Peter Lucadano,  
CEO 

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake 
Community Development District 
 
       
Beth Edwards 
Chair of the Board of Supervisors 

   



Exhibit A

Landscape Specifications
(11 Pages)



9 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Landscape Specifications 

The Contractor shall meet and/or exceed the expectations set by the Preserve at Wilderness Lake 
Community Development District. The community expects its residents to be able to reside and relax in 
an environment surrounded by heathy green turf, lush shrubbery, and graceful shade trees.  The vendor 
shall accomplish this by employing sound horticultural maintenance practices, installing high quality 
insect and disease-free sod and plant material according to accepted industry practices per the University 
of Florida’s Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences (UF/IFAS) recommendations. Additionally, a 
high attention to detail in the policing of the grounds is expected in both the “manicured” and the 
“natural” areas of the community. 

The specifications listed below should be practiced in accordance with BMP (Best Management Practices) 
for Florida Green Industries. 

Reference Material: Best Management Practices for Protection of Water Resources in Florida. 

Part II – Lawn Maintenance 

Mowing, Edging and Trimming: Contractor will mow all turf areas weekly, beginning on March 1st and 
ending on October 31st. (The growing season). No more than 1/3 of the leaf blades should be removed per 
mowing. Mowing shall be performed only with a closed deck, mulching mower. Mower blades will be sharp 
at all times to provide a quality cut. Mowing height will be according to grass type and variety 
recommendations. Contractor will leave clippings on the lawn as long as no readily visible clumps remain 
on the grass surface after mowing. Otherwise, Contractor will distribute large clumps of clippings by 
mechanical blowing or by collecting and removing them. Contractor shall make every effort to avoid blowing 

Exhibit A

1



10 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

cut grass into planting beds, ponds and drainage ditches. During the non-growing season, from November 
1st through February 28th, the Contractor will perform the lawn maintenance every other week. The 
Contractor shall remove litter branches, vegetation, furniture or any other objects that impedes the mowing 
process or presents a hazard to the Contractor, homeowner, staff or guest as a condition of this contract. The 
entire property must be mowed, trimmed, edged and blown off in a single day. 

If a mowing is missed due to inclement weather, and the Contractor is not able to perform the mowing that 
week, the Contractor shall provide the Association a credit for future services or add a mowing to be provided 
at a later date. The Contractor shall determine whether the credit or mowing at a later date shall be used.  

Value of single mow- line trim, hard and soft edge, blow clean $___________________ 

Contractor will hard edge all sidewalks, curbs, and appropriate driveways bordered by grass at every other 
mowing, and line trim all grassy areas not accessible to mowing equipment at every mowing. Line trimming 
along asphalt streets and paths shall be performed during every other mowing. Drainage swales and ditches 
shall be line trimmed when wet conditions prohibit mowing. All irrigation valve boxes, and vaults at ground 
level shall be kept clearly visible at all times, by regular line trimming. Planting beds shall be edged with a 
power edger during the alternate week, when hard edging is not being performed. Herbicide or any chemical 
treatment will not be used to control grass overgrowth at sidewalk, driveway, street, or decorative border 
edges, except to control overgrowth initially. Contractor will clean all grass clippings from sidewalks, curbs 
and roadways immediately after mowing and/or edging. Contractor will not sweep, blow or otherwise 
dispose of clippings in streets, garden beds or sewer drains.  

Where natural wooded areas adjoin the finished turf area, the turf shall be mowed all the way to the 
woodline and any un-mowed higher grass along the edge of the woodline shall be line trimmed down, 
leaving a neat transition into the woodline. This will prevent the encroachment of the natural areas into 
the finished landscape. The Contractor shall remove branches or other vegetation that impedes the mowing 
process or presents a hazard to the homeowner as a condition of this contract.  

In order to prevent damage to irrigation pipe by maintenance equipment; non-selective herbicides are to be 
used only around PVC pipes and backflow devices. Under no circumstance should non-selective herbicides 
be applied along grassy edges of garden beds, driveways, and sidewalks in lieu of mechanical edging, except 
to control overgrowth initially. 

The Contractor will be required to use the properly sized mowing equipment. Any damage to grounds and 
property incurred during maintenance operations will result in the Contractor being assessed for necessary 
repairs or replacement of damaged items. 

Any lawn that dies or becomes weak or unsightly due to negligence or improper maintenance procedures 
shall be replaced at the sole cost of the Contractor.  

B. Turf Insect, Disease and Weed Control: The Contractor will inspect lawn areas each visit for indications
of pest and problems and treat accordingly. Preventative and spot treatments shall be performed for chinch
bugs and grubs.

Fire ant mounds in the turf shall be spot treated within 48 hours of being reported. The reporting of fire ant 
activity along sidewalks and high pedestrian traffic areas shall be considered an emergency and shall be 
treated within the 24 hours of being reported. 

2,500.00

Exhibit A

2



11 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Upon confirmation of a specific problem requiring treatment, the Contractor will apply pesticides as needed. 
The Contractor will keep records on pest identified and treatment(s) rendered for control.  

All areas of St. Augustine turf shall receive two applications of pre-emergent herbicide to minimize the 
amount of germinating crabgrass and certain annual broadleaf weeds. A general rule of thumb for pre-
emergent herbicide application is February 15 in Central Florida, or before day temperatures reach 65ºF–
70ºF for 4 or 5 consecutive days. 

Any St Augustine turf that dies; becomes weed infested or becomes weak or unsightly due to negligence or 
improper maintenance procedures shall be replaced at the sole cost of the Contractor. This excludes damage 
from environmental conditions, water restrictions, poor cultural conditions, and nematodes or disease and 
insect activity for which there are no control measures. 

Turf dying in areas where third parties are amending settings on timers or disrupting the water source will 
be analyzed and handled on a case-by-case basis.  

Broadleaf weeds are to be controlled in turf areas by mechanical, physical or chemical methods. Only 
herbicides labeled for higher temperature use shall be used when temperatures excess 85º F. St. Augustine 
turf areas will be maintained essentially weed free. Bahia turf weeds will be spot treated when necessary 
with herbicides labeled for use on Bahia turf.  

As a condition of this agreement the turf area location between the clubhouse basketball court and the 
clubhouse main entry shall be core aerated once a year. 

The Contractor is also responsible for the control of grassy weeds in the turf. 

 License # ________________ Expiration Date _________________ 

D. Turf Fertilization: Contractor shall be responsible for determining fertilizer formulations and
application rates   that will result in a healthy, green, thick turf

  APPLICATION MONTHS 

  J     F     M    A      M  J  J  A  S     O     N      D 

 Bahiagrass 

-- -- C -- SRN -- -- C -- -- 

 St. Augustine Grass 

-- C -- N SRN -- Fe SRN -- C -- -- 

*This guide is for turfgrass fertilization under circumstances where a soil test does not exist. In order to
properly apply the rate of P and K required, a soil test is required. All turf fertilizer applications shall be

JF118508 June 1, 2019

Exhibit A

3



12 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

based on the results of two yearly pH tests conducted by the Contractor at randomly selected 
locations representative of the general site conditions. Written results shall be provided to the Client 
and PSA Horticultural with ten (10) business days. 

C = Complete fertilizer applied at 1.0 lb N/1000 sq ft containing no more than 0.7 lb soluble N. 

N = Soluble N applied at no more than 0.7 lb N/1000 sq ft. 

SRN = Slow-release N applied at no more than 2.0 lb N/1000 sq ft. in the spring and summer only; no 
more than 1.0 lb N/1000 sq ft in the fall and winter. 

Fe = Apply Fe to provide dark green color without stimulating excessive growth. For foliar application use 
ferrous sulfate (2 oz /3-5 gal water/1000 sq ft). If the Fe is applied to an acidic soil, use 1 lb of iron sulfate 
per 1000 sq ft. If the soil is calcareous, use the container label recommended rate of an iron chelate 

As of condition of this agreement; nutrient deficiencies shall be treated with supplemental applications of 
the specific lacking nutrient according to University of Florida Cooperative Extension recommendations, 
such as the addition of supplemental iron to the turf when necessary. Local fertilizer application regulations 
may supersede this schedule in some cases.  

The Contractor shall be responsible to remove any stains from hard surfaces caused by fertilizer application. 
Contractor shall notify the District five (5) business days in advance of a turf or ornamental fertilizer 
application. 

Part III – Landscape Plant Maintenance 
Trees, Palms, Shrubs, Ground Covers 

A. Fertilization:  Ornamental shrubs, trees and ground covers shall be fertilized after planting and then three
times per year. Two of the applications are scheduled for March and October. An all-purpose fertilizer shall
be used with an analysis of 8-0-12, 15-0-15 or similar, with application rates determined by the size of the
plants. Fertilizer labels shall be made available to the Client upon request. All shrub, tree and groundcover
fertilizer applications shall be based on the results of two yearly pH tests conducted by the Contractor at
randomly selected locations representative of the general site conditions. Written results shall be provided to
the Client and PSA Horticultural with ten (10) business days.

Mature palms in the landscape shall be fertilized four times per year at a rate of 5 to 8 lbs. each application. 
Palms under 8 feet tall will receive 2-5 lbs. per application four times per year. A fertilizer specifically for 
palms shall be used. Fertilizer labels shall be made available to the Client upon request. 

The fertilizer should be available in slow-release form. The fertilizer should also contain magnesium and a 
complete micronutrient amendment. The fertilizer analysis shall be 8-0-12-4 or similar. Fertilizer applied to 
shrubs and trees planted in beds shall be broadcasted over the entire plant bed. Fertilizer may be punched 
shallowly into the soil on berms and slopes where runoff is likely. 

Nutrient deficiencies shall be treated with supplemental applications of the specific lacking nutrient 
according to University of Florida Cooperative Extension recommendations. 

Exhibit A

4



13 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Any tree up to four-inch caliper, palm tree up to twelve feet of clear trunk, shrub or groundcover that dies or 
becomes weak or unsightly due to negligence or improper maintenance procedures, shall be replaced at the 
sole cost of the Contractor. Replacement will be of the size installed at original installation. This excludes 
damage from environmental conditions, poor cultural conditions, lack of precipitation and nematodes or 
disease and insect activity for which there are no control measures. 

Contractor shall notify the District five (5) business days in advance of a turf or ornamental fertilizer 
application. 

B. Pest, Disease and Weed Control: Contractor shall practice Integrated Pest Management (IPM) to control
insects, diseases and weeds on and around perennials, ground covers, shrubs, vines and trees. This will
include frequent monitoring and spot treatment as necessary. Weeds in beds or mulched areas and paved
surfaces (crack weeds) will be removed by mechanical, physical or chemical methods. Beds and mulched
areas are to be maintained essentially weed free. Essentially weed free” means that all beds should begin the
contract with no weeds, and that the only acceptable amount and size of weeds would be that which could
germinate and grow in a single week. Weeds over three inches tall shall be hand-pulled.

Bed and crack weed control as well as shrub pruning shall be performed simultaneously on a 
rotational basis in accordance with the map and schedule provided. Only by performing these tasks 
simultaneously can these areas be considered completed and less subject to financial penalties. This 
does not preclude the fact that bed and crack weeds must be controlled throughout the grounds on a 
continual basis. The clubhouse facility shall be “detailed” every week during the growing season. 

The Contractor shall not be responsible for the replacement of any tree, shrub or groundcover that suffers 
damage from an insect or disease for which there are no effective control products, such as ganoderma, lethal 
yellowing and fusarium wilt, etc. Contractor shall immediately bring to the attention of the Client all infected 
and/or damaged landscape items caused by insects or disease along with a plan to eradicate or mitigate the 
condition. Contractor shall be responsible for employing Green Industry Best Management Practices to 
mitigate the spread of such pests and/or diseases.  

Fire ant mounds in the beds shall be spot treated within 48 hours of being reported. The reporting of fire ant 
activity along sidewalks and high pedestrian traffic areas shall be considered an emergency and shall be 
treated within the 24 hours of being reported. 

A light-colored tracker dye shall be used with all Roundup (and comparable products) applications. 

C. Pruning: All pruning of tree and shrubs will follow ANSI recommendations and University of Florida
recommendations. Shrubs, groundcovers and vines will be pruned with hand or power shears as needed to
provide an informal shape, fullness and blooms, on a monthly basis. Shrubs in their flowering cycle shall
not be pruned until blooming is complete.  Shrubs, groundcovers and vines shall be trimmed on a schedule
so that they always are in a neat and attractive condition. All signs and light fixtures shall be kept clear of
vegetation at all times. Shrubs, groundcovers, and vines shall not be allowed to grow over sidewalks,
driveways, curbs, gutters, etc. Renewal pruning will be performed once a year, when necessary, during the
non-growing season, beginning in mid-February, but prior to the spring flush of growth. Removal of up to
one third (1/3) of shrub shall take place during this pruning. This type of pruning will promote healthier
interior growth and bring the shrub back to it proper proportions. The Contractor will remove all pruning
litter.

Exhibit A

5



14 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Bed and crack weed control as well as shrub pruning shall be performed simultaneously on a 
rotational basis in accordance with the map and schedule provided. Only by performing these tasks 
simultaneously can these areas be considered completed and less subject to financial penalties. This 
does not preclude the fact that bed and crack weeds must be controlled throughout the grounds on a 
continual basis. The clubhouse facility shall be “detailed” every week during the growing season. 

Palm pruning will be done two (2) times per year to remove only dead and yellowing fronds, seed heads and 
loose boots on palms over fifteen (15) feet-tall palms. On palms smaller than fifteen feet, remove only dead 
and yellowing fronds, seed heads and loose boots during regular maintenance visits. “Hurricane” pruning is 
not acceptable. All palm trees shall be pruned with the remaining palm fronds left in the 9 and 3 o’clock 
position. No pruning will be done during or immediately following growth flushes. No herbicides will be 
used for this purpose. The Contractor shall remove all pruning litter.  

Contractor shall be responsible for pruning of all lower tree branches up to a height of fifteen feet (15). 
Branches will be pruned just outside the branch collar and pruning paint will not be applied. All sidewalks, 
patios, driveways and other paved surfaces must have overhead tree clearance of at least eight feet. All trees 
shall be maintained at a uniform height. Contractor will remove all branches from property. All sucker 
growth shall be removed from around the base of trees on a regular basis. Crape myrtles and similar small 
ornamental trees shall be pruned regularly during the course of the year to remove dead, crossing and rubbing 
branches as well as water sprouts and sucker growth. Ligustrum trees will be trimmed to maintain their 
natural shape. They shall not be sheared tightly, “hat racked” 

Ornamental grasses shall be cut back three times per year with the exception of all Muhly grass, which shall 
be cut back once per year in the spring. This will ensure a healthy full plant in the growing season.  

All woodline vegetation which encroaches over any mowable turf area(s) or planting bed(s) shall be pruned 
back to the edge of the turf/bed line at the woodline edge. In addition, all turf at the edge of the woodline 
shall be line trimmed back to the same line created by the vegetation pruning. The line trimming shall be 
performed at the same height as the mowing. This pruning shall be performed in accordance with the mowing 
frequency. 

All tall palm pruning shall be pruned as a separate line item which will be paid separately from the 
monthly invoice. The client is under no obligation to use the landscape maintenance contractor for the 
pruning of tall palms.  

D. Mulching: All Client designated planting beds will be replenished with pine bark once a year prior to the 
Thanksgiving holiday. Bark should be maintained at a depth of 3 inches. All curb, roadway and bed edges 
will be trenched to help contain the installed bark.  Bark shall not be placed directly against the trunks of 
trees.

All beds to be mulched are designated on Composite Exhibit C.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the proper measurement and to supply the appropriate quantity 
of pine bark. The mulching service shall be invoiced separately and not included in the monthly service 
agreement fee. 

The CDD reserves the right to sub-contract mulch- installation. 

Exhibit A

6



15 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Part IV- Seasonal Color 

            
           

              
            

              
          

              
               

          

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the proper measurement and to supply the appropriate quantity 
of annuals. 

The annuals shall be installed in: December (prior to Christmas and no later than the first week of 
December), March, June and September. 

Annuals and perennial bedding plants shall be fertilized at least monthly, (except from June 1-Sept 30) at a 
rate of ½ pound of nitrogen per 1,000 square feet of area every 3-4 weeks. A liquid fertilization schedule is 
also acceptable. An optional fertilizer schedule would use a slow-release fertilizer such as Osmocote or 
Nutricote incorporated in the bed at planting and applied thereafter according to label directions. The 
Contractor will be responsible for weed control.  Beds will be maintained essentially weed free. Pest control 
will follow IPM principles. (Item A will apply only if and when the Client requests annuals and / or 
perennials) 

The seasonal color service shall be invoiced separately and not included in the monthly service 
agreement fee. 

The CDD reserves the right to sub-contract seasonal color installation. 

Part V- Irrigation System  

A. Within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of this agreement, the Contractor (if a new Contractor is
selected) will inspect the irrigation system and make adjustments to ensure proper operation of the system,
and to check for preexisting conditions that would require repair. A written proposal of repairs will be
prepared for review by the Client. The proposal will have all necessary charges, unless it is difficult to
determine a charge, due to unforeseen circumstances. If that is the case, a “time and materials” proposal will
be presented. Any of the eligible repairs made by a Contractor will then be included under the scope of this
agreement as described in paragraphs B through F.

As a condition of this maintenance agreement, within (60) sixty days after the Contractor commences 
work, they shall furnish a color-coded irrigation map to the Client. The locations of any new valves, 
new mainlines and new zones shall be designated on this map. All valve boxes shall be numbered and 
correspond to a number key on the map. Each timer shall have the zone number, the zone location 
and the zone run time posted within in. This information shall also be given to the Client and PSA 
Horticultural within the above-mentioned sixty days. The Contractor shall maintain this irrigation 
system map at all times and update it as needed when/if any new valves, mainlines, controllers or any 

Exhibit A

7

A. Annual Flowers: The installation of annuals shall be done four times per year with approximately 
three thousand (3000) annuals being installed at each rotation. Tweleve thousand per year. Major 
renovation of annual beds shall be performed once per year, in January. A potting mix specifically 
blended for annuals will be used. The beds shall be eight inches deep at the deepest point tapering 
down to existing grade and angled for the best visibility and curb appeal. The potting mix will be 
“topped off” as needed during changeouts, as part of this agreement. Six inch-potted annuals will be 
planted on six-inch centers (average), depending on the variety. All annual shall be hand-watered at the 
time of installation. Any annual(s) that declines in health or dies, will be replaced at no cost to the Client 
with like variety, so that annual display always in its best display condition. Contractor will be 
responsible to purchase, install, and dispose of all debris.



16 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

other major components are added, removed, repaired or replaced. Any updates to this information 
shall be given to the Client and PSA Horticultural within thirty (30) days. 

B. The Contractor shall inspect and test all components and zones of the irrigation system on a monthly
basis, (within the first ten days of each month) and shall reset zone run times on a quarterly basis, according
to seasonal evapotranspiration changes, while ensuring that the common area is watered on the proper day,
according to local watering restrictions. During each inspection the Contractor shall sign, date, and initial an
inspection sticker that is located inside the timer cover and report to the management company any changes
on water timers immediately for appropriate action from the management company. The automatic shutoffs
(rain sensors) will be inspected annually prior to the May inspection. The sensors will be adjusted at this
time, and malfunctioning sensors will be reported to the management company.

C. Minor adjustments and repairs such as head/emitter cleaning or replacement filter cleaning, lateral line
leaks and timer adjustments shall be made at Contractor’s expense. The Contractor will not be financially
responsible for the repair or replacement of, irrigation timers, valve replacement, mainline breaks, rain
sensors or for the tracing of wires. Any four-inch spray head that must be replaced shall be replaced with a
six-inch spray head, installed on flex pipe. In addition, standpipes shall be raised and/or lowered according
to finished trimming height of shrubs, at contractor’s expense. The Contractor will provide written
documentation to PSA on a monthly basis, stating on what date(s) the inspection took place, the specific
repairs made, and the locations.

In addition, as a condition of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 

1. Replace any malfunctioning spray head located within the turf with a 6-inch spray head.

2. Straighten any non-vertical head(s).

3. Raise any standpipes that are blocked by high vegetation or when appropriate the vegetation may be
trimmed instead.

4. Keep the irrigation heads in the turf free of overgrowth by “runners”

5. Change the batteries in all battery-operated valves twice a year.

6. Change the batteries in all hard-wired controllers once each year or at any time after a power failure.

7. Flush out all drip irrigation zones during each monthly irrigation inspection.

8. Post the zone location and run times inside of each controller. This information shall also be submitted
to the Client.

9. Support any standpipe that does not stay in a vertical position when under pressure by attaching a
reinforcement bar attached to the standpipe with a zip tie.

10. Ensure that any drip irrigation tubing is buried under mulch and pinned into the soil.

D. The Contractor shall notify the Client of a malfunctioning controller, and the cost to repair or replace the
controller, prior to the work being performed. All non-emergency repairs shall be made within five business

Exhibit A

8



17 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

days. The Contractor may charge the Client for repairs that the Client mandates be made on a schedule that 
differs from the five business days. All emergency irrigation repairs must be completed within twelve (12) 
hours of issuance of a work order. PSA must be contacted in writing within twenty-four (24) hours that the 
problem has been corrected. Failure to meet these deadlines will result in the Contractor being penalized 
during the monthly inspection. During weekly maintenance, the Contractor will note and report to the Client 
any symptoms of inadequate or excessive irrigation, drainage problems, etc. 

E. Pumping Systems: Contractor shall inspect and maintain all pump components monthly, within the first
ten days of each month as part of this agreement. The Client shall be responsible for the costs of the
repairs, and preventative maintenance. Contractor shall be responsible for hiring and overseeing any
company hired to perform work on the pumping system. Any repairs that are performed due to neglect by
the Contractor shall be borne by the Contractor. The Client shall be provided with a written cost estimate
on pumping system repairs, before any work commences. All warranties associated with pumping
components or repairs shall be assigned to the Client.

F. The Contractors Irrigation license(s) must be current at all times during the term of this contract. Failure
to maintain a current license will be deemed a breach of this contract.

G. The Contractor will be financially responsible for the replacement of any and all turf, trees (up to four-
inch caliper) and shrubs that die or decline in health due to improper irrigation management.

H. The Contractor shall notify the On-site Manager of any irrigation repairs and obtain approval prior to the
commencement of the repair(s). The Contractor shall notify the On-site Manager when the repair(s) are
completed.

I. Irrigation and/or landscape emergency contact phone number(s):

#_____________________________ #_____________________________ 

Part VI- General Site Maintenance 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing all debris and litter from the jobsite during each
maintenance visit. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper off-site disposal of this debris.

B. During each regular maintenance visit, Contractor shall inspect the entire site and remove any fallen
branches, or debris on the common grounds and right of ways. This includes dead branches stuck in trees at
a height up to fifteen feet.

C. Guard house areas shall be kept weed free by mechanical, hand or chemical means.

D. Contractor shall remove any accumulation of road silt, soil or the like from hard surfaces.

E. Tracker dye shall be used with all Roundup (and comparable products) applications.

F. Contractor shall be responsible for the removal and proper disposal of any animal carcasses.

G. Contractor shall control weeds in all paved surfaces, such as gutters, curbs, driveways, sidewalks and the
like. These areas shall be maintained weed free.

(727) 919-3915 (727) 919-3915

Exhibit A

9



18 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

H. Contractor shall be responsible for debris cleanup from normal weather conditions.

I. Contractor shall not be responsible for any severe weather-related cleanup (hurricane, tornado, etc) outside
the normal contracted scope of services. The Contractor will provide the Client with an hourly rate for
supervisory and cleanup personnel. Upon mutual agreement normal contracted services may be exchanged
for severe weather cleanup services. Upon mutual agreement missed mowing services, or any other missed
contractual service may be credited to the Client with a specific dollar value to be applied to future services.

J. Where natural wooded areas adjoin the finished turf area or landscape beds, a buffer zone of at least three
feet shall be maintained with herbicide by the Contractor. This will prevent the encroachment of the natural
areas into the finished landscape. Any large-scale wood line cutbacks will be done at an additional cost to
the Client. The Contractor shall remove branches or other vegetation that impedes the mowing process or
presents a hazard to the homeowner as a condition of this contract.

K. Heavy leaf or pine needle accumulation, as determined by the Client or the Client’s representative, will
be removed during the non-growing season no less than four times per year. Leaves and pine needles should
not be blown or raked into the lawn or planting beds unless specified by the Client. All leaves and pine
needles shall be disposed of off-site.

L. Stakes shall be removed when approved by Contractor or the management company. Staked trees shall
be re-staked and adjusted as necessary as part of ongoing maintenance. This excludes re-staking as a result
of adverse weather conditions. All new stakes shall be removed after 12 months.

M. Dead plant material shall be removed and disposed of by the Contractor. This does not include large
trees, which would necessitate the services of an arborist. The Contractor shall contact the client in writing
of any plant removals and of plants that need to be replaced. Specific locations must be included in the report.

Part VII-Job Site Considerations 

A. Contractor shall provide client and include with signed contract with a calendar year schedule(s) outlining
the planned Grounds Maintenance, Pest Control, Weed Control, Fertilization, and Irrigation Maintenance
functions by month prior to the beginning of their contract start date.

B. Contractor shall provide PSA with a Weekly Contractor Report (provided by PSA) via email by 9am on
the following Tuesday after each work week. In addition, the Contractor shall provide PSA with the
Contractor’s own irrigation inspection report within five days after the completion of the monthly inspection
as per Section IV parts A and B of this agreement.

C. Care should be taken to not drive over any plastic catch basins, French drains and decorative borders.

D. The Contractor will be responsible for the repair of all damage to screening, edging, and PVC pipes if
these items are protected by a buffer or physical barrier.

E. Contractor shall be responsible for the cleaning up of any fluids that drain from their trucks or equipment.
They shall also be responsible to repair any damage to street or plant material. Contractor may not park work
vehicles on turf areas or in planting beds. Equipment must be fueled over a paved surface.

F. No work may commence earlier than 7:30am Monday through Saturday.

Exhibit A

10



19 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

G. Contractor shall display a sufficient number of pesticide notification placards at the conclusion of each
insecticide, herbicide, fungicide or fertilizer treatment. Placards will indicate material applied, the date of
application.

H. A representative of the Landscape Maintenance contractor shall attend CDD Board of Supervisor
meetings when called upon to do so.

Exhibit A

11



Exhibit B

Proposal 
(4 pages)



21 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Landscape Maintenance Pricing 
*Annual costs must be equally divisible by 12.

There shall be no price increases for the 2-year term of this contract. 

CONTRACTRUAL SERVICES Annual Cost Monthly Cost 
Annual Cost/12 

Grounds Maintenance   
Irrigation System Inspections*   
Hardwood Tree Pruning   
TOTAL LANDSCAPE PROGRAM 

*Includes all irrigation parts and labor from the exit side of the valve to the terminus of zone.

SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES Per Application or 
Event Annual Total 

Fertilization Program for Turf and Shrub (total 
of program outlined in the matrix’s below)  
Pest Control (all labor and materials) 
(If entire pesticide allowance is required)*  
Tall palm pruning 
Seasonal Color Program  
Mulching Program-Apr  1000 cu. yards  

  Topdress-Oct  700 cu. yds  

Pest Control- *This is an allowance for treatments of trees, ornamentals, groundcovers, etc. and 
should include only those pesticides/herbicides not already included in the turf fertilizer section. This 
dollar amount will not be equally divided amongst the monthly invoices. The portion of the 
allowances used on any particular event shall be billed the month after services are rendered. 
Contractor shall continue to be responsible for the eradication of all weeds, pests and diseases after 
the allowance listed above has been exhausted. 

Bahia Sod 

MONTH FORMULA 
APPLICATION RATE 

(LBS. N/ 1000 SF) 

TOTAL 
POUNDS 

PRODUCT 
TO BE 

APPLIED 
COST PER 

APPLICATION 
March 15-0-15 + PreM 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 8,695 lbs  
April 21-0-0 0.5 lbs / 1,000 sf 1,500 lbs  
June 16-0-8 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 8,695 lbs  

August 
FeSO4 

2 oz. per 3 gallon / 1,000 
sf 

800 lbs 
 

October 15-0-15- + PreM 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 8,695 lbs  

$13,200.00 $1,100.00

$1,000.00$12,000.00

$40,000.00

$28,000.00

$40,000.00

$28,000.00

$6,000.00 $12,000.00
$13,980.00$1,165.00

$30,000.00see below

$2,400.00
$2,400.00
$2,400.00

$2,400.00

$2,400.00

$154,800.00 $12,900.00

Exhibit B

1

$180,000.00 $15,000.00

$4,050.00 $16,200.00



22 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

St. Augustine Sod 

MONTH FORMULA 
APPLICATION RATE 

(LBS. N/ 1000 SF) 

TOTAL 
POUNDS 

PRODUCT 
TO BE 

APPLIED 
COST PER 

APPLICATION 
February 15-0-15 + PreM 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 7,300 lbs  

April 21-0-0 0.5 lbs / 1,000 sf 1,052 lbs  
May 16-0-8 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 7,300 lbs  
July 

FeSO4 
2 oz. per 3 gallon / 1,000 

sf 
560 lbs 

 
August 16-0-8 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 7,300 lbs  
October 15-0-15- + PreM 1.0 lbs / 1,000 sf 7,300 lbs  

Ornamentals 

MONTH FORMULA 
APPLICATION RATE 

(LBS. N/ 1000 SF) 

TOTAL 
POUNDS 

PRODUCT 
TO BE 

APPLIED 
COST PER 

APPLICATION 
March 8-10-10 4 lbs / 1,000 sf 3,000 lbs  
June 8-10-10 4 lbs / 1,000 sf 3,000 lbs  

October 8-10-10 4 lbs / 1,000 sf 3,000 lbs  

Palms 

MONTH FORMULA 

APPLICATION RATE 
(1.5 LBS. / 100 SF 
PALM CANOPY) 

TOTAL 
POUNDS 

PRODUCT 
TO BE 

APPLIED 
COST PER 

APPLICATION 
March 8-2-12 1.5 lbs / 100 sf 1,100 lbs  
June 8-2-12 1.5 lbs / 100 sf 1,100 lbs  

September 8-2-12 1.5 lbs / 100 sf 1,100 lbs  
November 8-2-12 1.5 lbs/ 100 sf 1,100 lbs  

Please list any additional fertilization for those plant materials requiring specialized applications. 

$1,500.00
$1,500.00
$1,500.00

$1,500.00

$1,500.00

$1,500.00

$1,500.00
$1,500.00
$1,500.00

$750.00
$750.00
$750.00
$750.00

Exhibit B

2



23 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Specialty Plant Materials 

MONTH FORMULA 

PLANTS TO BE 
FERTILIZED 
(i.e., Crapes, 

Loropetalum, Knockout 
Roses, etc.) 

TOTAL 
POUNDS 

PRODUCT 
TO BE 

APPLIED 
COST PER 

APPLICATION 
April 14-14-14 15 lbs / 1000 sf 1,100 lbs  
June 14-14-14 15 lbs / 1000 sf 1,100 lbs  
August 14-14-14 15 lbs / 1000 sf 1,100 lbs  
October 14-14-14 15 lbs/ 1000 sf 1,100 lbs  
The totals in the “Cost per application” column should equal your Total Fertilization 

Cost for the year. 

OTC Injections will be performed at the discretion of the District’s BOS 
(This shall not be included in either of the Pest Control Cost listed above nor shall it be 

included in the Grand Total or Contract Amount) 

OTC Injections - (all labor and materials) 

$ __________________/ Yr (based on quantities below) 
(OTC Injections per specs- do not include in Grand Total) 

PALM TYPE 
PALM 

QUANTITY 

# of inoculations per 
quarter per palm (based 

on side) i.e. (2) 
inoculations per large 

Canary Palm per ¼, etc.) 

Cost per 
individual 
inoculation 

(One 
Cartridge) 

Total Cost per 
Year 

(4x per year) 
Phoenix dactylifera 

‘medjool’ 1 
1 

 
Sabal palmetto 145 1   

The CDD reserves the right to subcontract out any and all OTC Injection events. 

$375.00
$375.00
$375.00
$375.00

$100.00 $400.00
$28.00 $16,240.00

16,640.00

Exhibit B

3



24 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

There shall be no price increases for the 2-year term of this contract. 

Supplemental Pricing 
Add a second detail during each growing season month        $________________  
Tall palm pruning -over 15’ ea.        $________________ 
Install 4” annual-each        $________________ 
Install 6” annual -each       $________________ 
Freeze protection for all annuals-supply and remove cloth. Per freeze event.  $________________ 
All treatment of Fire Ants (cost per year) $________________ 
Core Aeration per 10,000 sq. ft.  $________________  
Pine Bark-supply and install per cu. yd. $________________ 
Pine Straw-supply and install per bale.       $________________  
Supervisory labor per hour $________________ 
General labor- per employee, per hour   $________________ 
Irrigation technician per hour  $________________ 
New valve-supply and install 1.5”  $________________  
New valve-supply and install 2”       $________________  
Valve solenoid –supply and install $________________ 
Rain sensor-supply and install (wired & wireless)   $________$_______ 
Irrigation timer- supply and install 12 zone exterior  $________________ 
Irrigation timer- supply and install 24 zone exterior  $________________ 
Irrigation timer battery – supply and install       $________________  
Storm Cleanup- per hour $________________  
Bahia sod-supply, strip and install (500 sq. ft. min) per. sq. ft.        $________________  
500 gallon water truck- per hour $________________ 
1G shrub-supply, install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)   $________________ 
3G shrub-supply, install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)  $________________ 
7G shrub-supply, install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)  $________________ 
15G shrub-supply, install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)        $________________ 
35G tree -Florida #1 install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)        $________________ 
45G tree-Florida #1 (install, warrantied for contract term (ea.)        $________________ 

Company Name_________________________________________________________________ 

2,500.00
45.00
$1.35
$2.50
2,000.00
4,500.00
$200.00
40.00
8.00
30.00
25.00
55.00
120.00

150.00

75.00
45.00 135.00
400.00

300.00
0.65
 400.00
7.00
16.00
35.00
110.00
250.00
375.00

RedTree Landscape Systems LLC

840.00
20.00

Exhibit B

4



Composite 
Exhibit C

Maintenance Maps 
(5 pages)



7 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Composite Exhibit C

1



26 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Composite Exhibit C

2



 
 

27 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

 
 

 
 

Composite Exhibit C

3



28 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Composite Exhibit C

4



29 
WLP 2018 Maint Specs________________ 

Composite Exhibit C

5



Exhibit D

Score Sheet
(3 pages)



 

PSA-LAKE	WILDERNESS	01/19	 1	

        

 

    
Landscape Consulting & Contract Management 
“Protecting Your Landscape Investment” 
 
720 Brooker Creek Blvd., Suite 206 
Oldsmar, FL 34677 
 
LANDSCAPE INSPECTION RESULTS 
Date:                _______________     
Client:             Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District  
Attended by:   _______________________ 

           
     
This landscape inspection report and subsequent ones will serve as a both a benchmark of current 
landscape maintenance concerns and the progress toward corrective actions. It will also serve as a 
deficiency list of items that should be addressed under the current landscape agreement.  

In accordance with the current landscape maintenance specifications the landscape deficiencies 
noted in this report should be completed before the next walk through or other designated time. 
These items must be completed by Insert date here Notify PSA in writing upon their completion, via 
fax or email, on or before 9 am on Insert date here. Contractor must initial the bottom of each page 
and sign at the bottom of the last page. The reason for any uncompleted deficiency must be listed.  

SCORE 1=POOR   2= FAIR   3=GOOD 

Insert score here MOWING/EDGING/TRIMMING 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here WOODLINE MAINTENANCE  

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here TURF COLOR 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here TURF DENSITY 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here TURF WEED CONTROL 
 
Deficiencies listed here 

 
 

Exhibit D

1



 

PSA-LAKE	WILDERNESS	01/19	 2	

Insert score here TURF INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL/OVERALL HEALTH 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here SHRUB–TREE INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL/OVERALL HEALTH 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here BED WEED CONTROL 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT 

Deficiencies listed here 

Insert score here SHRUB PRUNING 

Deficiencies listed here 

*It should be noted that the shrubs, including but not limited to, the hawthorns and schilling hollies, 
should not be pruned too tightly. This means that too much vegetative growth is being removed, 
limiting the plants availability to make food for itself. In addition, the plant will look more attractive 
by not having “holes” in it, and allowing it to develop its more natural shape. (i.e. Indian Hawthorn 
has a natural mounded habit) Permanent verbiage box 

Insert score here TREE PRUNING 
 

Insert score here CLEANUP/RUBBISH REMOVAL 

Insert score here APPEARANCE OF SEASONAL COLOR 

Insert number if applicable here CARRIED FORWARD FROM PRIOR MONTH    

INSPECTION SCORE Insert number here of 39 –PASSED AND/OR FAILED INSPECTION. 
Passing score is 33 of 39 or 30 of 39 (w/o flowers). Payment for Insert inspection month here 
services should be released after the receipt of the DONE REPORT.  

FOR MANAGER 

Insert Manager recommendations here 

PROPOSALS 
 
Insert proposal recommendations here 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Insert inspection summary here. 

Insert landscape contractor name here certifies that all work on this list has been completed in the 31-
day timeframe specified in the contractual agreement and provided to PSA within the same period. 

Exhibit D

2



 

PSA-LAKE	WILDERNESS	01/19	 3	

 
Signature____________________________________________ 

Print Name __________________________________________ 

Company____________________________________________   

Date__________ 

Exhibit D

3



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



 
 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENT PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
Wild Oak Lane hedgerow 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
Scope of Work 
  
Enhancement at Wild Oak Lane hedgerow.   
 

    
                               

Item Unit Cost Total Cost 
Remove (8) existing dead Viburnum Included 
Install (8) 3-gallon Viburnum Odoratissimum $16.00 $128.00 
All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 

 
 

TOTAL COST:  $128.00 
 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 
 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENT PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
Wild Oak Lane hedgerow 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
Scope of Work 
  
Enhancement at Wild Oak Lane hedgerow.  
 

    
 
                     

Item Unit Cost Total Cost 
Remove (8) existing dead Viburnum Included 
Install (8) 7-gallon Viburnum Odoratissimum $61.25 $490.00 
All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 

 
 

TOTAL COST:  $490.00 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENT PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
Along tennis court fence – facing main blvd. 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
Scope of Work 
  
Enhancement along tennis court fence – facing main blvd. 
                           

    
 

Item Unit Cost Total Cost 
Remove existing Guava $150.00 $150.00 
Install (3) 35-gallon Crepe Myrtles $250.00 $750.00 
Install (300) square feet of Floratam sod $2.25 $675.00 
Install (1) cubic yard Pine Bark mulch $40.00 $40.00 
All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 

 

TOTAL COST:  $1,615.00 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 
 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
By Pool pump 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
Scope of Work 
  
Installing Guava by pool pump.   
 

 
                               

Item Unit Cost 
Install (1) 15-gallon Guava (Pineapple) $137.50 
All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 

 
 

TOTAL COST:  $137.50 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 
 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
By Pool pump 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
Scope of Work 
  
Installing Guava by pool pump.                           
                               

 
 

Item Unit Cost 
Install (2) 7-gallon Guava (Pineapple) $56.25 
All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 

 
 

TOTAL COST:  $112.50 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 
 
 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 
5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 
SOD INSTALLATION PROPOSAL 

FOR 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD – 
At curb by Pediatric Office – outside of Wilderness fence 

 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

October 26, 2023 
 
 
 
Scope of Work 
 
  
Installing sod at curb by Pediatric office - outside of Wilderness fence.                            
                               
 

Item Unit Cost 
Install (1,800) square feet of Floratam sod at 
location noted above $2.25 

All labor, materials, hauling, and dumping fees. included 
 
 
 

TOTAL COST:  $4,050.00 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________   ________/________/________ 
Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 

 
Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 

jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



GHS Environmental 
   PO Box 55802 

   St. Petersburg, FL 33732-5802 

   727-667-6786 

PO Box 55802, St. Petersburg FL 33732-5802 ▪ #727-667-6786 

      October 25, 2023 
The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD 
c/o Mrs. Tish Dobson 
21320 Wilderness Lake Boulevard 
Land O’ Lakes, Florida 34637 
 
Re: The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District (CDD) 

October 2023 Summary Report   
 
Dear Mrs. Dobson, 
 
GHS Environmental (GHS) herein submits this report to summarize the work that was 
completed during the month of October 2023 at the Wilderness Lake Preserve (WLP) 
community located in Land O’ Lakes, Florida.  
 
Dates Worked Performed: October 4, 6, 10, 13, 20 and 24 
  
Summary of Monthly Objectives/Goals Achieved: 
 

1. Performed monthly inspections and maintenance of vegetation/algae in stormwater 
ponds.  

2. Removed trash from stormwater ponds. 
3. Field checked control structures CS-P1 and CS-P2 located in Wetland P to ensure there 

are no blockages.  
4. Reviewed conservation area behind 7543 Grasmere Drive with T. Dobson to confirm the 

location of the conservation area and discuss allowable vegetation removal per the CDD 
and the Southwest Florida Water Management District.  

5. Reviewed submerged vegetation around the dock behind 21236 Quiet Haven Court with 
T. Dobson.  

6. Reviewed littoral vegetation behind 7806 Grasmere Drive with T. Dobson.  
7. Treatment of cattails and primrose willow in Wetland P.  
8. Reviewed control structure CS-P1 with T. Dobson. Documented grass clippings being 

dumped adjacent to the control structure.   
9. Phone and email correspondence with WLP staff.   
10. Prepared and submitted monthly summary report. 
 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist you with this project. Please do not hesitate to call us at 
(727) 432-2820 with any questions or if you need any additional information. 

 
Sincerely yours, 
 
GHS Environmental 
 
 
 
 
 
Chuck Burnite 
Senior Environmental Scientist 





  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

 
 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD 
ENGINEER’S REPORT FOR November 1st, 2023 BOARD MEETING 

 
Ongoing Projects Report and Updates: 
 
Paver Replacement Project 
Pasco county has performed an inspection to close out the paver replacement project ROW use permit 
and issued a punchlist with all administrative items. BDi is in process to coordinate with the geotechnical 
testing company and respond with all items requested.  
 
ACPLM has completed the punchlist items for their portion of the project on October 9th.  
 
Draycott Drainage 
District management contacted BDi to investigate a drainage issue on Draycott Way. BDi performed a 
site visit to investigate possible causes. No major issues were found; however, a recommended scope of 
maintenance work was created that would possibly improve the conditions and was sent to potential 
contractors to perform the work. A proposal is attached that covers the recommended work.  
 
Cormorant Dock Rehab 
BDi has received and forwarded the dock inspection report performed for the Cormorant Dock. BDI was 
directed by the District Manager to begin obtaining bids for the recommended work from the report. No 
proposals have been received yet, but multiple dock vendors have been contacted to solicit bids. Bids 
will be sent to the District Manager as soon as they are received.  
 
Pine Knot Lane Swale Issue 
BDi attended a site visit with the District Manager, Supervisor Beth Edwards, and the resident at 21003 
Pine Knot Lane. BDi reviewed the site both in the field and the design plan. The CDD property just west 
of the private property features a swale that runs east and west and collects runoff from the berm to 
the south adjacent to the sidewalk and from the two adjacent private properties. The design plans show 
that this area was to ultimately drain north to the existing wetland. Is unknown whether this swale was 
dug at the time of construction, however, Tish has said that the swale has always been there in her time 
at the community even though no swale is shown on the design plan. There are no records of any utility, 

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

piping, or anything that would cause settlement. The parcel is labeled as a passive park space on the 
design plan.  
 
The concern of the resident is that the swale continues to get longer, continue to deepen, and will 
eventually start to impact private property and a future lanai expansion that he has planned.  
 
Observations during the site visit and the review of the design plans do validate the concerns. The swale 
is preventing water from reaching the wetland as the design is intended. It currently collects water and 
acts as a dry retention area that relies on percolation or evaporation to dry out. These type of areas do 
result in some slight settlement and cause the ground to remain soft. This softness when mowed with 
commercial mowers tends to rut and settle even more.  
 
It is recommended to provide conveyance of the runoff to the adjacent northern wetland as the design 
intends. Confirming this conveyance would eliminate the possibility of standing water, further erosion 
and rutting, and would optimize drainage. This can be achieved by cutting a new swale to the wetland 
while using the excess fill from the swale creation to fill in the swale ends closest to the private 
properties where the erosion concerns are or by re-grading the entire area of the swale back to design 
which would essential get rid of the swale and provide a constant overland slope with no channelization. 
Either method would require a survey to use as a basis of design and confirm conveyance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Below are pictures of the swale and the design plan with a mark-up of the location.  
 

 

Figure 1: View of swale taken from Back of 21003 PINE KNOT LN 

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Figure 2: View of swale taken from ROW berm looking north to existing wetland 

 

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


BDi  
 

 
   536 4th Ave. S, Unit 4 St. Petersburg, Fl 33701             D. (813) 361-1466 www.bdiengineers.com 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

 

Figure 3: Design plan with Mark-up showing location of swale 

http://www.bdiengineers.com/


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



Clarson
CONSULTING

Reuben 

 ASSESS. ADVISE. DESIGN.
Certificate of Authorization #9206

MARINE ENGINEERING
Florida Licensed Engineer #16313

780 94th Avenue North, Suite 102, St. Petersburg, FL 33702
T: 727.895.4717 E: Info@ReubenClarsonConsulting.com W: ReubenClarsonConsulting.com

September 7, 2023 
 
Jerry Whited 
Wilderness Lake Preserve 
21539 Cormorant Cove Dr 
Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
Email: jwhited@bdiengineers.com  
 
Re: Dock Inspection Report for Wilderness Lake Preserve at 

21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637  
 
Dear Mr. Whited,  
 
This letter provides a summary of the field inspection performed on August 28, 2023, of the dock 
and boardwalk system located at the above referenced address.  The following is a summary of 
findings and recommendations. All right and left directions given in this report are orientated to 
facing the water. 
 
Existing Dock Conditions/Construction 
 

• 260 sq. ft Main Platform 
• 120 sq. ft. Lower Platform 
• 693 sq. ft. Walkout 
• 330 sq. ft. Boat Roof 
• Composite Decking (2” x 6”)  
• Double Exterior Stringers (2” x 8”) 
• Single Interior Stringers (2” x 8”) 
• Caps (3” x 10”) 
• Wood Pilings (6” diameter) 
• Railings (34” high) 

 
Approximately 1,073 sq. ft. of dock superstructure consisting of composite decking and railings 
(2” x 6”). The dock substructure consists of double exterior stringers (2” x 8”), single interior 
stringers (2” x 8”), caps (3” x 10”), and 6” diameter unwrapped pilings. Exterior stringers and 
caps are starting to degrade from sun and water exposure.  
 
The lower platform consists of 2” x 8” and 3” x 10” boards with 2” x 6” composite decking 
connected to stringers and caps. A splitting cap board was evident. Some of the bolts, nuts, 
washers, and nails connecting the stringers and caps to pilings in this platform were rusted to the 
point that they are less structurally supportive than originally designed.  One splitting piling was 
observed along the far-right waterward side of the platform.  
 
The walkout consists of 2” x 8” and 3” x 10” boards with 2” x 6” composite decking connected  
 
 

mailto:jwhited@bdiengineers.com


Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

to stringers and a cap. The railings were observed to be leaning and slanted throughout sections 
of the walkout. Railings shifted when pressure was applied especially near the center of the 
walkout. Some of the railing boards were splitting. Deterioration in the deck boards was 
observed.  
 
Approximately 330 sq. ft. of boat roof structure with 3” x 10” and 2” x 8” boards and brackets 
evident. No splitting of boards was apparent.  
 
Dock Recommendations 
 
The estimated useful life of a wood dock structure is approximately 25-30± years in freshwater. 
This dock structure has limited useful life remaining. Due to the structural defects found in the 
dock substructure, we recommend one of the following options to be completed. 
 
Option 1: Repair and Aid in Structurally Supporting Dock Structure 
 
The following maintenance and repair items are recommended for the dock structure. 
 

• Monitor dock boards and railings for additional splitting and movement.   
• Add additional bolts to secure railings. 
• New or additional SIMPSON Strong-Tie Strong-Drive SDWH TIMBER-HEX HDG 

Screw or 5/8” diameter HDG bolts should be installed in areas with rusting bolts. 
• Monitor the decking for additional deterioration. Replace deteriorated deck boards as 

needed. 
• Replace the splitting piling in the lower platform.  

 
The above recommendations could roughly cost in the $4,000± ballpark range. It should be noted 
that the cost to replace stringers, caps, and bolts depends on the selected contractor and is 
difficult to estimate at this time. Upon completion of the above repairs, we recommend planning 
to replace the existing dock system within 10-12± years. We recommend monitoring the dock 
structure for additional structural defects and movement with engineering inspection at least 
every 3 years. The estimated remaining useful life can be revised upon future inspection as 
needed.  
 
Option 2: Replacement of Dock Structure (useful life 20-25± years) 
 
We recommend planning on replacement of the existing dock structure in approximately 10-12± 
years with repairs or approximately 3-5± years without repairs. The cost of dock replacement in 
today’s prices is approximately $60-$90/sq. ft depending on decking materials, railings, lighting, 
and other amenities. Therefore, the total cost for replacement in today’s prices ranges from 
approximately $84,180 to $126,270±.  
 
Other Possible Costs: 
 
It should be noted that the above estimates for repair and/or replacement do not include costs for 
permitting and engineering that vary based on municipalities.  



Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

 
If you should have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.  We 
appreciate the opportunity to provide this report. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
REUBEN CLARSON CONSULTING, INC. 
 
 
John B. Adams, Jr., PE     
FL Professional Engineer No. 53963  
  
Dock Photos 

View of the Walkout 

Splitting Railing 



Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

View of the Walkout 

Deteriorated Boards 



Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

Main Deck and 
Lower Platform 

Splitting Piling 



Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

View of the Boat 
Roof 

Underside View of 
the Dock 



Mr. Jerry Whited, Wilderness Lake Preserve 
RE: Dock Inspection Report – 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr Land O' Lakes, FL 34637 
September 7, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Splitting Cap 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



 
 

Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 
Wilderness Lake Preserve 

21320 Wilderness Lake Blvd  Land O Lakes, FL   34637 
Phone: 813-995-2437   Fax:  813-995-2436 

 

October 2023 Clubhouse Operations / Maintenance Updates: 

• Cleaned the upper interior and exterior windows of the Activities Center, Lodge, Fitness Center, 
and Nature Center.  

• Deep cleaned the Nature Center rugs.  
• Replaced six light bulbs on the Lodge portico and all the front lanai light bulbs of the Nature 

Center and Lodge.  
• Removed debris from the gutters.  
• Pressure washed the walkways and lanais.  
• Repainted Oakhurst, Woodsmere, Quail Trace, Eagles Watch, Eagles Landing, Eagles Nest, and 

Hawk Wind Trail monuments.  
• By means of an aerial boom, spider webs were removed from the interior and exterior of the 

buildings.  
• Repaired several stone pillars on Wilderness Lake Blvd.  
• Reported several aggressive alligators to FWC.  
• Reported several irrigation breaks to RedTree.  
• Replacing one poolside grill. (On order) 
• Pressure washed the pillars on Wilderness Lake Blvd.  
• Repainted the fence line at the front entrance of community. 
• Replaced the several light bulbs on the Lodge Playground and Stoneleigh Park.   
• Repaired several fence lines.  
• Repaired several toilets.  
• Routine maintenance of the Kubota.  
• Repaired several poolside chairs.  
• Assisted with bringing the AC units in the Activities Center online.  
• Repairing the community communication boards.  
• Repainting several walls in the Nature Center Classroom.  
• Reported multiple street light outages to Duke Energy.  
• Prepping the holiday décor for installation.  
• Setup for the following events: Grill & Chill, Comedy Show, CDD Meeting, Fall Festival, Taco 

Tuesday, Sip & Paint, Fall Garage Sale, ARC Meetings, HOA Meeting, the Haunted House, and 
various resident events.  

1st Quarter 2023/2024 Projects: 

• Replace several poolside shade structures and umbrellas: In progress.  
• Update the website: Continually updated.  
• Add additional swing mats under the swings throughout the community: On backorder.  
• Partner with a newsletter media company: In progress.  
• Consider Cleaning Services proposals: New contractor vetted to begin in October.  
• Add two ADA doors to the Nature Center. (Front and rear): Installation scheduled for November.  

 



 
Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Contractors: 

ACCI:  
Assisted Ideal Networks Solutions in troubleshooting the cameras at the front and back entrance of the 
community.  
 
ACPLM: 
Repaired the curbing damaged in the removal of the roadway pavers and replaced the sod damaged by 
the roadway construction.  
 
Cool Coast: 
Repaired the two AC units in the Activities Center.  
 
Cooper Pools: 
Replaced the Lap Pool Stenner Pump.  
 
Floria Coast Equipment: 
Replaced the thermostat, radiator cap, muffler gasket, and cleaned the brakes.  
 
Fitness Logic: 
Performed routine maintenance on all fitness equipment. 
Replaced the cable on the Lat machine.  
 
Himes Electric: 
Replaced a Pool Heater and Jacuzzi breaker.   
 
Ideal Network Solutions: 
Networked the two parking lot cameras to allow for viewing in the General Manager’s office. 
Assisted with troubleshooting the Ranger Station and back entrance cameras.  
Replaced and reconfigured the Barracuda Backup equipment.  
 
PBSS Doors & Hardware: 
Repaired one of the Aerobics Room rear door locks. The lock seized with the key in the chamber.  
 
Phoenix Pools: 
Scheduled to repair the touch pad on the Splash Pad by end the day on Friday, November 3rd.  
 
RedTree:  
Working through the deficiencies that were identified on the Landscape Inspection.   
Installed a 2” ball valve on the back entrance irrigation pump & well.  
 
Rentalex Tools & Equipment: 
Rented a narrow lift for the maintenance team to clean the upper windows and rafters of the buildings.  
Rented a Mule ATV for the maintenance team to utilize while the Kubota was being serviced.  
 



 
Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Staffing:  
Screened several candidates to fill the open part-time Lodge Representative position.  
Hired Christina Monaco as the new Event Coordinator. Start date: November 15th.  
Staff training is continual. 
 
Pasco Sheriff’s Special Detail Report on Citations & Warnings:  

• See Report Under Separate Cover. 
 

Scheduled Room Usage/Rentals (June): 
 
In preparation for a meeting or rental, the staff on duty are responsible for the presentation of the 
room. This may include cleaning, staging of tables & chairs, and concierge services.  
*AC: Activities Center and NC: Nature Center Classroom  
10/1 – Private Rental – AC  
10/2 – Story Time – NC  
10/3 – Resident Event – Theater  
10/4 – Resident Event – Lodge  
10/4 – CDD Meeting – Poolside & AC 
10/5 – Private Rental – AC  
10/6 – Lodge Event – AC  
10/7 – Private Event – AC  
10/7 – Comedy Show – Theater  
10/8 – Private Event – AC  
10/9 – Story Time – NC  
10/9 – ARC Meeting – AC  
10/10 – Girl Scouts – NC  
10/11 – Resident Event – AC  
10/12 – Big Band Practice – AC 
10/14 – Fall Festival – Lodge Campus 
10/15 – Private Event – AC  
10/16 – Story Time – NC  
10/17 – Taco Tuesday – AC  
10/18 – Private Event – AC  
10/18 – Resident Event – Theater 
10/20 – Sip & Paint – AC  
10/21 – Fall Garage Sale – Community Wide 
10/22 – Private Rental – AC  
10/23 – Story Time – NC  
10/23 – ARC Meeting – AC  
10/24 – HOA Meeting – AC  



 
Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

10/25 – Spooky House Contest – Community Wide 
10/27 – Haunted House – NC & Classroom 
10/28 – Haunted House – NC & Classroom 
10/29 – Private Rental – AC  
10/29 – Private Rental – NC  
10/30 – Story Time – NC  
10/31 – Kids’ Costume Parade – Lodge Campus 
 
 Upcoming Events: 

 
 November: 

• Business Expo – 11/4 
• Sip & Paint – 11/10 
• Blood Drive – 11/11 
• Caring & Sharing – 11/12 
• Sip & Paint – 11/17 
• Ice Cream Social – 11/18 
• Turkey Trot – 11/23 

 
 December: 

• Santa’s Arrival – 12/2 
• Lighting of the Menorah – 12/7 
• Grill & Chill – 12/8 
• Breakfast with Santa – 12/16 
• Best Decorated House Contest – 12/20 
• Gingerbread House Decorating and Holiday Workshop – 12/22 
• Holiday Caroling by the Fire Pit – 12/23 
• Taco Thursday – 12/28 
• Pizza by the Slice – 12/29 
• Bounce in the New Year – 12/30 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Resident Requests: 

Village Monument Hedges 
Trim the monument hedges lower to allow for the name of the village to be viewed from all angles.  
 
Holiday Décor  
Extend the festive décor to include the village monuments or for this FY add colored filters to the 
landscape lights to illuminate the monuments in red / green for the season. The HOA is interested in 
partnering with the CDD to assist with the request.  
 
Common Area Trees 
The bus drivers are requesting a heavy cutback / lifting of the trees surrounding the Oakhurst / 
Woodsmere Park.  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



Event reconciliation Report
10/1/2023 - 9/30/2024

October Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue 
 Paid to 
Vendors  Debt. Card 

Total for each 
Month

Story Time October No Sign-In 100.00$       
Grill & Chill 10/6/2023 8 30.00$         -$              (25.46)$           
Comedy Show 10/7/2023 17 25.00$         -$              -$                 -$                
Oktoberfest 10/14/2023 300+/- 3,000.00$    120.00$         (2,247.90)$       (718.98)$         
Taco Tuesday 10/17/2023 25 100.00$         -$                 (178.00)$         
Sip & Paint 10/20/2023 4 -$             12.00$           -$                 -$                
Garage Sale 10/21/2023 300 guests 300.00$       75.00$           (307.80)$         
Haunted House 10/27/2023 250+/- 500.00$       (276.06)$         
Halloween Costume Parade 10/28/2023 200.00$       
Spooky House Contest 10/25/2023 4 40.00$         
Yoga October
Misc. Shopping for the Month October

November Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time November 100.00$       
Paint & Sip with Mr. Joe 150.00$       

Business Expo & Holiday Shopping 250.00$       
Turkey Trot 100.00$       
Yoga November
Misc. Shopping for the Month November

December Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time December 100.00$       
Santa Arrival & Tree Lighting 1,500.00$    
Best Decorated House 50.00$         
Breakfast with Santa 2,500.00$    
Gingerbread House Workshop 100.00$       
Bounce in the New Year 900.00$       
Yoga December $1,000



Event reconciliation Report
10/1/2023 - 9/30/2024

Misc. Shopping for the Month December

January Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (4 Wk) January 100.00$       
Sip & Paint

Jonny Bird - The Voice of New 
Vegas
Yoga January
Misc. Shopping for the Month January

February Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (4 Wk) February 100.00$       
Valentine Celebration 1,000.00$    
Kids Valentine Event 75.00$         
Yoga February
Misc. Shopping for the Month February

March Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (4 Wk) March 100.00$       
Spring Break (5 Days) 700.00$       
St. Patty’s Celebration 900.00$       
Yoga March
Misc. Shopping for the Month March

April Events Date # of Attendees  Budget 
Story Time (4 Wk) April 100.00$       
Easter Celebration 3,200.00$    
Yoga April -$              
Misc. Shopping for the Month April -$              -$                    

May Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (5 Wk) May 100.00$       
Cinco de Mayo Celebration 700.00$       
Mother’s Day Celebration 500.00$       
Memorial Day BBQ 2,200.00$    



Event reconciliation Report
10/1/2023 - 9/30/2024

Yoga May -$             
Misc. Shopping for the Month May -$             

June Events Date # of Attendees  Budget 
Story Time (4 Wk) June 100.00$       
Pool Party 1,000.00$    
Father’s Day Celebration 250.00$       
Snow Cones 15.00$         
Yoga June
Misc. Shopping for the Month June -$             

July Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (5 Wk) July 100.00$       
4th of July 1,000.00$    
Craft Fair 200.00$       
Yoga July
Misc. Shopping for the Month July -$             

August Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (4 Wk) August 100.00$       
Boo Hoo Breakfast 100.00$       
Back to School Pool Party 1,000.00$    
Yoga August
Misc. Shopping for the Month August -$             

September Events Date # of Attendees  Budget  Revenue  Vendors  Debt. Card 
Total for each 

Month
Story Time (4 Wk) September 100.00$       
Labor Day BBQ 1,000.00$    
Yappy Hour 80.00$         
Yoga September -$             
Misc. Shopping for the Month September -$             

25,765.00$  

Yearly Budget 30,000.00$       
Year-To-Date Expenditures $3,754.20

Proposed Budget



October 29 - November 11, 2023

 Sunday                
Oct 29

 Monday             
Oct 30                          

Story Time 

 Tuesday                               
Oct 31   

Costume 
Parade      

  Wednesday            
Nov. 1                   

CDD Mtg, Food 
Truck

 Thursday              
Nov. 2

Friday                          
Nov. 3                    

 Saturday        
Nov. 4                    

Biz Expo Total Hours
Tish Off Off 8:30- 6:30 8:30-10:30PM 8:30-4Mtg 8:30-6:00 7:30-5:00

Terri Off 8:30-5:00 12:30-9:00 Off 12:30-9:00 12:30-9:00 8:30-5:00 40.00
Megan 12:00-9:00 12:30-9:00 8:30-5:00 8:30-5:00 Off Off 1:30-10:00 40.00
Mardy Off 8:30-3:00 2:00-9:00 1:00-9:00 8:30-5:00 8:30-4:00 Off 35.00
Temp 12:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-10:00 29.00
Trevor 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 Off Off 40.00
Phillip Off Off 8:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 40.00

224.00

Sunday          
Nov. 5     

 Monday              
Nov. 6                  

 Tuesday        
Nov. 7                  

 Wednesday               
Nov. 8                    

 Thursday            
Nov. 9                                     

Friday                    
Nov. 10

Saturday         
Nov. 11        

Blood Drive          Total Hours
Tish Off Off 1:30-9:00 Mtg. Training 8:30-4 LI & Mtg. 8:00-5:00 8:00-5:00
Terri Off 8:30-5:00 12:30-9:00 Training 8:30-5:00 8:30-5:00 Off 40.00
Megan 11:30-9:00 1:00-9:00 8:30-5:00 8:30-5:00 Off Off 1:30-10:00 40.00
Mardy 12:00-9:00 Off Off 1:00-9:00 4:00-9:00 4:00-9:00 3:00-10:00 36.50
Temp 9-1 & 5:00-9:00 9:00-1:00 9-1 & 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 10:00-1:30 31.50
Trevor 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 Off Off 40.00
Phillip 7Off OffOff 88:00-4:30 88:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 77:00-3:30 77:00-3:30 40.00

228.00
AM only ES - Event Setup
Can't work *30 minute lunch break required for anyone working at least 6 hours or more
PM only *1 hour lunch *30 min lunch



November 12 - November 25, 2023

 Sunday                
Nov. 12

 Monday             
Nov. 13                            

Story Time 
 Tuesday       
Nov. 14           

  Wednesday            
Nov. 15                   

Food Truck
 Thursday              

Nov. 16 

Friday                          
Nov. 17                  

Sip N Paint                

 Saturday        
Nov. 18              

Ice Cream Social 
/ Comedy Show                     Total Hours

Tish Off Off 8:30-4:00 Mtg. 8:30-6:00 8:30-6:00 8:30-6:00 8:30-7:00

Terri Off 8:30-5:00 12:30-9:00 Off 8:30-5:00 12:30-9:00 8:30-5:00 40.00
E. Coord. 
Megan 12:00-9:00 12:30-9:00 8:30-5:00 8:30-5:00 Off Off 1:30-10:00 40.00
Mardy 11:30-9:00 8:30-3:00 Off 3:00-9:00 3:00-9:00 8:30-3:00 Off 32.00
Temp 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 5:00-10:00 25.00
Trevor 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 Off Off 40.00
Phillip Off 8:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 8:00-4:30 7:00-3:30 Off 40.00

217.00

Sunday          
Nov. 19      

 Monday              
Nov. 20               

 Tuesday        
Nov. 21                          

 Wednesday               
Nov. 22            

Close at 3:00                          

Thursday              
Nov. 23           

Closed Turkey Trot

Friday                 
Nov. 24             

Open at Noon             
Saturday         
Nov. 25      Total Hours

Tish Off Off 8:30-6:00 8:30-3:00 Turkey Trot - Animals 8:30-6:00 8:30-6:00
Terri Off 8:30-5:00 12:30-9:00 Off Off 12:00-9:00 1:30-10:00 40.00
E. Coord. 
Megan 12:00-9:00 12:30-9:00 8:30-5:00 8:30-3:00 Off Off 1:30-10:00 40.00
Mardy 11:30-9:00 8:30-2:00 Off 8:30-3:00 Off Off 9:00-5:30 33.50
Temp 5:00-9:00 5:00-9:00 Off 5:00-9:00 12.00
Trevor 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:00 Off Off Off 40.00
Phillip 7Off OffOff 8:00-4:30 7:00-3:00 Off 7:00-3:30 7:00-3:30 40.00

205.50
AM only ES - Event Setup
Can't work *30 minute lunch break required for anyone working at least 6 hours or more
PM only *1 hour lunch *30 min lunch



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

PETERS, JOSHUA (3096)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023564272
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: 0
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: Not Applicable
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

No violations observed. Slow night. all people left around 
1030. Walked the clubhouse, gym and docks area. No 
trespassers observed. Nobody observed near the pools 
after close. Patrolled the community and did not observe 
and traffic violators. No calls for service.

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

No violations observed. Slow night. all people left around 
1030. Walked the clubhouse, gym and docks area. No 
trespassers observed. Nobody observed near the pools 
after close. Patrolled the community and did not observe 
and traffic violators. No calls for service.

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 9/30/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/4/2023



LAPOINTE, KEVIN (6854)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023571724
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: NA
Number of parking tickets: 3 CITATION'S, 16 WARNINGS
Amount of time running radar: NONE
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

NONE

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

I provided security for the community by conducted many 
patrols throughout the property as well as mobile patrols 
of the clubhouse grounds. I did not observe any issues 
around the clubhouse but observed dozens of parking 
issues, some of which were not added to this note. The 
following parking issues were enforced, all citations were 
documented and photographed. Any parking issues not on 
this note were warnings. (Wng=Warning, CIT-Citation).
Parking Citations:
-21814 Waverly Shores Ln Wng
-21823 Waverly Shores Ln (2) Wng
-21852 Waverly Shores Ln Wng
-7021 Kendall Heath Way CIT (Parked in intersection)
- Across from 7006 Kendall Heath Way (2) Wng
-7100 Kendall Heath Way Wng
-7101 Kendall Heath Way Wng
-7018 Kendall Heath Way Wng
-7123 Kendall Heath Way Wng
-7514 Ambleside Dr Wng
-7429 Minnow Brook Way Wng
-7903 Grassmere Dr CIT (Parked in intersection) 
-7650 Citrus Blossom Dr Wng 
-7742 Citrus Blossom Dr (Parked in intersection)
-7752 Citrus Blossom Dr Wng
-21030 Green Wing Ct Wng
-21027 Follensby Ct Wng
-21020 Follensby Ct Wng
-7816 Foxgrove Dr Wng

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

GOMES, SYLVESTER (7160)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023576048
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: 0
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: 1 HOUR FOR SPEED ENFORCEMENT, NO RADAR STAYED 

AT GATE WITH LIGHTS ON TO SLOW TRAFFIC DOWN.
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

NO

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

ARRIVED 5 MINUTES EARLY, MADE CONTACT WITH 
EMPLOYEES, PERFORMED TWO FOOT PATROLS AND ONE 
SPEED ENFORCEMENT DIRECTIVE.

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/6/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

GABORIAULT, AUSTIN (6937)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023577750
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: 0
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: 0
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

0

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

Upon arrival I retrieved the Key Card from the ranger’s 
station, I checked in with the staff at the club house. 
Conducted frequent perimeter checks of the clubhouse 
throughout the duration of my shift. Closed the gym at 
11pm. Conducted frequent directed patrols throughout the 
duration of my shift. At the end of my shift I returned the 
key card to the ranger’s station.

9:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 9:00PM 1:00AM

-

-

1:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/7/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

MYERS, MATTHEW (2080)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023585319
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: 0
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: N/A
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

N/A

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

Arrived at clubhouse at 9pm to ensure employees got out 
safely to their vehicle/s. Patrolled community with a focus 
on the clubhouse area. It rained the majority of the shift. 
No suspicious activity to report.

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/11/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

LONG, ZANE (3971)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023589314
On Arrival Did You Check-in: YES
Number of field interview reports: 1 for Trespass Warning
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: 0
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

Trespass Warning (2023589314)

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

Upon arrival, I checked in with both employees at the 
lodge. I ensured they left to their vehicles without issue. I 
conducted periodic patrols of the neighborhood, focusing 
on the parks. I did not encounter anyone at any of the 
parks after hours. I checked all roads and observed several 
vehicles parked on the roadway, however, none of the 
vehicles were a hindrance to traffic. At approximately 
midnight, I made contact with two juveniles (CAD# 
2023589314), Jesse Tooley and Isabella Christensen, who 
had taken two chairs from the back of the clubhouse and 
were using them on the dock. I issued both juveniles a 
trespass warning and they moved the chairs back. I 
checked the clubhouse and I did not observe anyone inside 
past 11:00 PM and no one was outside using the facilities. I 
conducted traffic enforcement and no vehicles appeared to 
be speeding or violating any other traffic laws. I did not 
encounter anyone or anything which appeared suspicious 
during the detail and no significant events occurred.

9:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 9:00PM 1:00AM

-

-

1:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/13/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/18/2023



PACK, BRANDEN (6107)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023598548
On Arrival Did You Check-in: NO
Number of field interview reports: None
Number of parking tickets: one citation and three written warning citations
Amount of time running radar: 30 minutes
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

None

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

Upon arrival I patrolled the neighborhood for suspicious 
activity observing none. Right as the club house was 
closing a male, and two females were leaving. They 
appeared to have been working out. They left in two 
separate vehicles. During my foot patrol I did not see 
anyone at the dock, any areas trashed, smell of burnt 
marijuana, or juveniles looming the area. I reviewed a 
recent trespass warning of a younger white male who 
apparently likes to use the parking to conduct marijuana 
deals.

There was a few vehicles that pulled in, but left right away 
when they saw me. A ran radar for about 30 minutes near 
the ranger station entrance. Almost every vehicle would see 
me and slow down. I did not get any violators above 30 
miles an hour. I issued a parking citation to a black 2020 
Kia sedan illegally parked on Waverly Shores Lane 
obstructing the flow of traffic. The vehicle was registered 
out of the community. On the street over I issued three 
written warning citations to a white work truck, dark Toyota 
SUV, and silver colored Chevy sedan all parked on Kendall 
Heath Way. All three vehicles were residents not 
obstructing the flow of traffic unlike the black Kia.

There was no calls for service within Wilderness Lake 
Estates during my post.

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

KEENE, JUSTIN (5802)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023602689
On Arrival Did You Check-in: NO
Number of field interview reports: 0
Number of parking tickets: 0
Amount of time running radar: 0
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

0

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

Upon arrival, I conducted multiple patrols of the 
community maintaining a visible position. At approximately 
2255 hours I responded back to the lodge and conducted a 
foot patrol. I did not observe anyone in the pool area. I 
entered the gym and observed 0 occupants except the 
cleaning company. I did not observe anyone trespassing at 
any of the amenities after they had closed. No calls for 
service occurred within the community while on the detail. I 
did not observe any suspicious activity or traffic violations.

8:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 8:00PM 12:00AM

-

-

12:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/20/2023



Pasco Sheriff's Office
ATTN: Secondary Employment Office Administrator
8700 Citizen Drive
New Port Richey, FL 34654

CLAUDIO, CRYSTAL (6248)

Display Text Answer Text1
Event Number: 2023616282
On Arrival Did You Check-in: NO
Number of field interview reports: NA
Number of parking tickets: NA
Amount of time running radar: NA
Were there any other types of violations, such as 
trespassing, written warnings, additional event 
numbers:

NO

Please document a detailed Narrative of events 
that took place during your detail:

POSTED IN THE FRONT OF THE CLUBHOUSE FOR KIDS 
AND STAFF TO LOCK UP AND LEAVE SAFELY. PATROLLED 
CLUBHOUSE AND AMENTIES AT 2300 HOURS TO ENSURE 
ALL DOORS WERE LOCKED AND NO TRESPASSERS. ALL 
AMENTIES WERE LOCKED AND EMPTY. NO TRESPASSERS 
OR DISTURBANCES OBSERVED THROUGHOUT ENTIRE 
SHIFT. DID NOT OBSERVE ANY TRAFFIC VIOLATORS OR 
DISTURBANCES THROUGHOUT COMMUNITY. ACCESS 
CARD AND KEY WERE RETURNED AND LOCKED AT THE 
RANGERS STATION.

9:00PMScheduled Time
Actual Time 9:00PM 1:00AM

-

-

1:00AM

Deputy:

Position: Community (Security)

The below is a consolidated daily report of all the deputies that worked the THE PRESERVE AT WL CDD* 
Community (Security) detail on 10/27/2023



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



 
 

Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 
Wilderness Lake Preserve 

21320 Wilderness Lake Blvd  Land O Lakes, FL   34637 
Phone: 813-995-2437   Fax:  813-995-2436 

 

District Manager’s Report: 

ADA Door (Nature Center): 
Product is on order with an installation date by the end of November.  
 
GHS Environmental: 
Assessed the large pond on Grasmere Drive for thinning of the grasses and Lily Pads.  
 
Irrigation: 
RedTree completed multiple irrigation breaks throughout the community and at the Lodge; however, 
there are sections of Wilderness Lake Blvd. that appear to be lacking the much-needed overlapping 
irrigation coverage. These areas were reported to RedTree for assessment. 
 
Landscaping:  
The installation of the annuals was met with disappointment, as the beds were sparce and lacked the 
“Wow Factor.” The initial count reflected 1300+/- Marigolds. The week of October 23rd, RedTree 
installed an additional batch of annuals, which brought the total to 1600+/- annuals. The annuals at the 
Lodge and back entrance of the community are maturing with the recent irrigation repairs; however, the 
annual bed as you enter the community off Hwy. 41 continues to struggle.  
 
Lightning Strike: 
Assisting Egis with the insurance claim.  
 
Newsletter:  
IKare Publishing is in the process of reviewing the publication agreement.  
 
Roadway Paver Project Update:  
The damaged sod and curb were remediated without issue. Pasco County cleared the roadway repair for 
release of the Performance Bond and acceptance of the three-year Maintenance Bond for work in the 
right of way. 
 
Splash Pad: 
Phoenix Pools is scheduled to repair the touch pad by Friday, November 3rd.  
 
Staffing:  
The Event Coordinator is advancing through the new hire onboarding process with an anticipated start 
date of November 15th.  
The part-time Lodge Representative position remains open, as the prospective new hire was a “no 
show” for the screening process.  
 
Tennis Court LED Lighting Project: 
The LED lighting system is scheduled to arrive on November 14th.  
 
 



 
Wilderness Lake Preserve Community Development District (CDD) 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Training: 
Staff training is ongoing.  
Vesta Manager Training is scheduled for Wednesday, November 8th.  
 
Events Update: 
 The Family Oktoberfest was well attended with plenty of activities and fun for all ages.  
 The community had 300+ Garage Sale attendees who passed through the Ranger Station eager 

to pick up the Big-Ticket Item Map. 
 The Haunted House, along with the 12 ghoulish volunteers, frightened roughly 250+/- thrill 

seeking residents.  
 The upcoming Biz Expo & Holiday Shopping event has thirty vendors eagerly awaiting to service 

the residents and their guests on Saturday, November 4th.  



                                               Landscape Projects & Proposal Tracker

Project/Proposal Requested Date Requested Date Received Date Approved Completion Date
Moss Ledge Run Tree Trimming 1/27/2023 Hold
Tennis Court Tree Trimming 2/20/2023 Hold
Grasmere Berm Sod Replacement 3/16/2023 5/24/2023
Replace Hybrid Irrigation Controller 3/27/2023 5/8/2023 5/15/2023

Pine Tree Removal Butterfly Garden 4/23/2023 4/26/2023 4/26/2023 5/5/2023
3 Pine Tree Removals -                    
Bircholm Court                                            
Pine Knott                                            
Palmetto Pines 4/26/2023 5/1/2023 5/8/2023 7/27/2023
Fire Bush along Tennis Court 4/13/2023 5/2/2023 5/10/2023 5/25/2023
Pine Encroachment - Draycott Berm 4/13/2023 5/4/2023 5/10/2023

Remove Dead Maple - Stoneleigh Park 4/13/2023 5/11/2023 5/11/2023 5/22/2023
Butterfly Garden & Rear Amenities 
Bldg. 4/13/2023 5/18/2023 5/29/2023
Neighborhood Park Scrubber Valve 5/23/2023 5/25/2023 6/6/2023
Palm Tree Trimming Project 5/11/2023 5/27/2023 6/1/2023 6/1/2023

Draycott Berm Irrigation Controller 5/11/2023 6/5/2023

Verbal on 
6/5/2023 - 

Executed on 
6/20/2023 
(Vacation) 6/27/2023

Draycot Berm Dead Pines 5/11/2023 6/19/2023 6/19/2023 7/27/2023
Lodge Oak Tree Removal 6/19/2023 6/19/2023 6/19/2023 7/27/2023
Two Pine Tree Removal Across from 
Lakewood Retreat 5/11/2023 6/21/2023 6/21/2023 7/27/2023
Lakewood Retreat Monument 
Landscape Proposal 3/6/2023 6/21/2023 7/5/2023 10/6/2023
Oakhurst Monument Pine Tree 
Removal 6/8/2023 6/28/2023 6/28/2023 7/27/2023



Replace the  Dwarf Hawthorn at the 
rear of the Fitness Center with 
Firebush 7/13/2023 8/1/2023 8/1/2023 10/6/2023
Pool Deck and Lanai Pots 7/13/2023 8/19/2023 Under revision
Azaleas Rear AC - Warranty 7/13/2023 10/9/2023
Thryallis Rear AC - Warranty 7/13/2023 10/9/2023
Milk Weed Front of B.G. 7/13/2023 8/29/2023 September 2023

Remove failing Bottle Brush at Lagoon 
Pool -  Replace with Pringle 7/13/2023

Sent reminder for 
proposal

Pool deck entrance from the driveway, 
move Azaleas and replace with sod. 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/3023 In progress. 

Thin Saw Palmettos near Tennis Courts 8/10/2023 October 2023
Lodge Magnolia Bed - Fill in the gaps 
with Fire Bush and Loropetalum - 
50/50 split 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/2023 October 2023

Oak tree bed enhancement - Meet 
with Beth and Kevin 8/1/23

9/17/2023 - 
Revised Proposal 
rcvd. 9/27/2023 10/4/2023

Add Fire Bush or Loropetalum under 
the Lodge window near the water 
faucet. 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 9/3/2023 October 2023
Sod replacement - In front of the AC - 
Warranty 8/10/2023 8/23/2023 8/22/2023 10/1/2023
Remove dead Palm tree behind the 
Nature Center 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 8/22/2023 September 2023



19 dead Pine Trees - Remove 8/1/2023 8/17/2023

8/27/2023 - 
Approved 
removal by 
priority.  All 
sections under 
the DM's 
threshold.  August 2023

Remove branches from the roof line at 
the entrance of Water's Edge 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 8/22/2023 In progress. 
Trim Oak tree branches on the 
outbound lane of Water's Edge. Call 
homeowner. 8/10/2023 8/22/2023 8/22/2023  September 2023

Remove the three dead Anise shrubs at 
the lift station on WL Blvd. 8/10/2023 10/1/2023

Replace the dead Viburnum shrubs on 
WL Blvd. Multiple locations- Warranty 8/10/2023

Proposals came in 
separately. See 

below. 
Sod replacement - WL Blvd. and 
Neighborhood Park - Warranty 7/13/2023 8/23/2023 10/1/2023
Deerfield's Berm move irrigation out of 
the hedge. 7/13/2023 8/18/2023 8/22/2023 Sent a reminder
Roadway construction sod 
replacement. 7/13/2023 8/16/2023

Forwarded to 
the engineer. October 2023

Clean out/thin Saw Palmettos behind 
the pool equipment pond. 9/21/2023 October 2023
Tennis Court Guava beds - Proposal to 
removed the Guava hedge, remove 
mulch, prune oaks, add sod, adjust 
irrigation. 9/21/2023 10/26/2023
Water's Edge entrance/exit beds - Add 
Azaleas 9/21/2023



Wild Oak Lane/Osprey Point/Quail 
Trace/Hawk Wind Trails/Eagles 
Watch/Heron's Wood Monument 
Islands - Proposal to enhance the bed. 9/21/2023
Sod installation at cub by Pediatric 
office - outside of PWL fence. 10/12/2023 10/26/2023

 Splash Pad Pump - (1) 15-gallon Guava 10/12/2023 10/26/2023

Splash Pad Pump - (2) 7-gallon Guava 10/12/2023 10/26/2023
Wild Oak Lane Hedge Line - (8) 3-gallon 
Viburnum 10/12/2023 10/26/2023
Wild Oak Lane Hedge Line - (8) 7-gallon 
Viburnum 10/12/2023 10/26/2023



                                        Project Tracker - October 2023

                                                 Current Projects

Date Project Task Update Update Estimated       
Completion Date

9/14/2022 New Sand for Beach 
Volleyball court

To replenish the sand out at the 
beach volleyball court

Have obtained three 
proposals and submitted 
to District Management.

Expecting proposal from Sitemasters to 
address underlying drainage issues at the 
court before any new sand is purchased. Tabled

12/9/2022 Tennis Court Lights To install new lights throughout 
the entire tennis facility.

Requested proposal on 
12/9/22 and am awaiting 
receipt. Vendor given 
OK to address immediate 
needs on the tennis 
courts and replace like 
with like at an NTE of 
2k.

Work on the immediate needs to begin 
week of 1/17/23. Proposal for complete 
overhaul submitted to District 
Management for Board review at the 
April meeting. Options to include 
replacing just the fixtures with similar 
bulbs, fixtures plus the ballasts, and a 
third option for all LED. 

By Thanksgiving

7/13/2023 Water's Edge 
Monument Island

Replace the tip of the Water's 
Edge monument island be with 

concrete.          * Meet with Aga.

Vegetation is thriving. 

Repainted the monument. Assessing 
vegetation vs a concrete tip. 

10/30/23

8/1/2023
ADA doors Nature 

Center
Add an ADA auto door to front 
and rear of building. 

Proposal approved 
October 2023.

Product is on order to be installed by end 
of November. 

10/30/23

9/1/2023
Lodge Oak tree bed 

enhancement. 

Landscape proposal and design 
under review during the October 
meeting. 

Benches and vegetation 
on order.

By Thanksgiving



                                                Potential Future Projects
Date 

Entered Project Task Update 1 Update 2 Estimated       
Completion Date

8/15/2022 Storage Shed Add a 10x16 shed to where an 
empty lot now sits.

Obtained 3 bids from 
area dealers. Received 
proposal from 
Sitemasters to add a 
concrete slab to support 
the structure. Chuck 
from GHS has 
determined the area is 
good from a drainage 
perspective.

Directed to suspend activity for the time 
being, which would involve obtaining 
proposal for additional security camera 
and determining costs to insure the 
contents of the storage shed. Board must 
first determine whether this is a project 
they are even interested in first. Tabled 
at the Oct. & Nov. meeting. 

Tabled

2/1/2023 Security 
Improvements

Add new security cameras to 
account for several (7) areas in 
the amenities areas and at the 
outer parks where we are 
currently blind. 

Met with Convergint for 
initial consultation and 
then with DCSI for more 
specific 
recommendations as far 
as hardware is 
concerned. Proposal 
pending. Additional 
proposals forthcoming.

Received proposal from DCSI for new 
camera system with expanded 
capabilities beyond the 30 channels our 
current system provides. Awaiting 
proposal for the cameras.

Tabled

Received multiple bids 
and presented to the 
Board at the March 
meeting. Advised to 
revisit the numbers and 
indicate where in the 
budget to draw that 
from, then come back 
present again at the 
April meeting. Numbers 
have been crunched and 
it is on the April Agenda. 

1/28/2023 Seasonal Security 
Patrols

Add professional security patrol 
services during the summer break 
period of 5/23 – 8/23.

On hold per the Board. 

Tabled



10/1/2023

Consider enhancing 
the Osprey Point and 

Quail Trace 
monument islands. Proposals forthcoming.

                     Completed Projects
Date 
Entered Project Task Update 1 Update 2 Completion Date

8/15/2022 Brick Pavers Repairs Repair areas 4,5,7, and 9. Areas 4 and 5 completed. Nine (9) areas near the entrance now to 
have the brick pavers removed and 
replaced with asphalt. 3-4 days to 
complete work once it begins.

7/1/23

8/17/2022 Floating Dock Dock has a long piece of wood 
coming separated.

Support column 
underneath dock has 
collapsed and is in 
immediate need of repair 
or replacement.

Floating dock to be replaced with new, 
including EZ dock launch, canoe paddle-
on launch, canoe/kayak rack, and roof 
for kayak. Contract has been signed by 
all parties and the deposit has been sent 
in.

6/1/23

8/22/2022 New signage for the 
Pools

Signs to be created by Cooper 
Pools to include specific language 
regarding water bottles and swim 
diapers.

Called for update on 8/23 
and am awaiting a 
response.

Signs delivered but were missing the 
language we were in need of. Requested 
new proposal from Romaner Graphics 
on 3/27/23 and am awaiting receipt.

5/23/23

12/16/2022 Gate Installation

To install new gate and chain link 
fence at the end of Grasmere Dr. 
which would allow for mowers to 
access the common area next to 
7947 Grasmere Drive. 

Board opted to go with a 
6’ PVC fence identical to 
the one currently seen 
across the street. Project completed. 3/23/23

10/19/2022 Splash Pad at Pool 
Area

To repair underlying issues at the 
splash pad and to resurface once 
repairs are completed.

Project approved by 
Board and work is in 
progress.

Project completed. 3/23/23



12/1/2022 Markers for storm 
drains

To install “No Dumping” markers 
on every storm drain throughout 
the WLP community.

Proposal received and 
sent to District 
Management for review.

Project completed 3/23/23

1/26/2023 Outdoor Trash Bins Add three (3) new outdoor trash 
bins to amenities areas similar in 
style to what we currently have 
on hand.

Proposals submitted to 
District Management for 
Board consideration at 
the February meeting.

Proposal approved with a 43 day lead 
time on delivery.

7/1/23

2/1/2023 Community Pressure 
Washing

Pressure wash and treat rust 
stains along common sidewalk 
areas throughout the community.

Proposal received.

Project completed. 3/23/23

3/1/2023 New Signage for 
Business Center

Add new signage at Lodge 
Business Center

Proposal executed 3/3/23 Project completed. 3/23/23

3/9/2023 Handicap Lift Chair Replace actuator and hub 
assembly kit at Lagoon pool 
handicap chair lift

Proposal received 3/9 
and sent to District 
Management for review.

Proposal executed and am awaiting 
parts.

4/23/23

5/1/2023 Fire/Burglary 
Monitoring Services

 A Total Solutions to 
repair/replace damaged 
equipment. 

Fire & Burg online & 
functioning as designed. 

Project completed. 
7/1/23

5/1/2023 Splash Pad Palm Tree 
Rings

Replace the rock around the Palm 
trees. 

Project completed. 7/3/23



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

PRESERVE AT WILDERNESS LAKE 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community 4 
Development District was held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. at the Preserve at Wilderness 5 
Lake Lodge, 21320 Wilderness Lake Boulevard, Land O’ Lakes, FL 34637. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Call to Order/Roll Call 7 

Ms. Dobson called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Holly Ruhlig Board Supervisor, Chairwoman 10 
Bryan Norrie Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 11 
Agnieszka Fisher Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
Beth Edwards Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Heather Hepner (via phone) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also present were: 15 

Tish Dobson District Manager, Vesta District Services 16 
Scott Smith Vesta Property Services 17 
Julie Cortina Vesta Property Services 18 
John Vericker (via phone) District Counsel, Straley Robin Vericker 19 
Stephen Brletic (via phone) District Engineer, JMT 20 
Kevin Smith RedTree Landscaping 21 
John Burkett RedTree Landscaping 22 
Kim Uhlig IKare Publishing 23 
 24 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the October 4, 2023 Preserve at 25 
Wilderness Lake CDD Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting. 26 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Pledge of Allegiance 27 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 28 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda 29 
items) 30 

An audience member stated that she felt it was unfair that the nail tech was being asked to share 31 
the room which she operated out of, emphasizing the small size of the room and the possible 32 
reduction in work hours and income. 33 

Another audience member expressed agreement with the previous audience member’s comments, 34 
adding that there may be hazards introduced by making the small space more crowded. The 35 
audience member additionally observed issues with the configuration of the meeting room for 36 
residents in attendance, indicating that it was often difficult to hear staff and Board members. 37 

A resident on Pine Knot Lane stated that there was a common area behind his lot which appeared 38 
to have escalated in erosion rate over the last five years, and requested for some sort of study on 39 
any possible subterranean infrastructure that may be affecting the ground. Ms. Dobson stated that 40 
they had gone through the plat and ensured that there were no underdrains or conduit infrastructure 41 
elements running through, though noted that historical satellite data seemed to show orange groves, 42 
and suggested that recent movement may be due to the ground settling out. Discussion ensued, with 43 



Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD October 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 5 

 
Mr. Brletic offering that he could be available for a visit to collect data on specific elevation points 44 
and any possible changes if needed. 45 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisor Comments 46 

There were no comments from any Board Supervisors. 47 

Prior to proceeding with the next order of business, representatives from IKare Publishing 48 
presented their community newsletter publishing services and agreement pricing for a full year of 49 
publication to the Board. Discussion ensued between the Board, the District Manager, and the 50 
presenters regarding newsletter formats, particularly advertising inserts. Comments were made in 51 
favor of establishing a 50/50 split between community content and advertisements, and having a 52 
calendar on the center page of the newsletters. Additional suggestions were made for there to be no 53 
advertising on the calendar or front and back pages. Ms. Edwards voiced support for language to 54 
be included, allowing for a 30-day cancellation clause for both parties. Ms. Dobson stated that she 55 
would send the agreement and the CDD’s requested criteria to District Counsel for review and 56 
preparation for the next monthly meeting’s agenda. Ms. Dobson additionally recalled previously 57 
emailing some suggested price points to the vendor in early discussions, and stated that she would 58 
track these down and forward them over. 59 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Exhibit 1: Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) 60 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 61 

A. Landscaping & Irrigation 62 

1. Exhibit 2: RedTree Landscape Inspection Reports – August & September 2023 63 

2. RedTree Irrigation Inspection Report 64 

Mr. Smith and Mr. Burkett presented the RedTree reports to the Board, with comments 65 
made noting that they would be entering the offseason with a bimonthly mowing crew 66 
schedule beginning November 1. In response to Supervisor comments, Mr. Burkett stated 67 
that he would review the contract and contact Ms. Edwards with a copy for clarification 68 
purposes. Ms. Dobson additionally noted that if there were delays on the planned sod 69 
installation, she would send out an eblast to the community explaining the bare sod areas. 70 

3. RedTree Proposals (if any) 71 

a. Exhibit 3: Oak Bed Renovation 72 

Mr. Smith stated that he had met with Ms. Edwards and Ms. Dobson to discuss the 73 
oak bed and possible designs to beautify the area. Ms. Dobson suggested for the 74 
vendor to indicate that work related to oak replacement was the result of lightning 75 
damage, for insurance purposes. Comments were heard suggesting a dog waste 76 
station, and Ms. Dobson expressed concerns about strong odor, recommending a 77 
general-purpose trash can instead. 78 

On a MOTION by Ms. Ruhlig, SECONDED by Ms. Edwards, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 79 
the RedTree Oak Bed Renovation proposal, in the amount of $5,590.00, for the Preserve at Wilderness 80 
Lake Community Development District. 81 

Following the motion, Mr. Smith gave an update on the planter pots at the pool and around the 82 
building, stating that he would still need to work on a revision. Mr. Smith discussed issues with the 83 
soil’s age and staleness for proper plant growth. Additional discussion ensued regarding irrigation 84 
breaks and response times to repairing and resolving reported issues. Ms. Dobson stressed that 85 
working irrigation was crucial for the oak tree bed’s success. 86 



Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD October 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 5 

 
B. Aquatic Services 87 

1. Exhibit 4: GHS Environmental Report 88 

Ms. Dobson noted that SWFWMD had become involved in a matter between the HOA and 89 
a homeowner and that she anticipated a report back in the future regarding whether the 90 
fence installed was impeding the flow of water. 91 

C. Exhibit 5: District Engineer 92 

Mr. Brletic stated that, regarding the ongoing conveyance, they were now only waiting on a 93 
confirmation from Pasco County acknowledging their takeover of maintenance, and that everything 94 
needed for administrative processes had been submitted. Mr. Brletic additionally advised that 95 
ACPLM would be on site on October 9 to fix curbing and address sod issues from when 96 
construction had taken place. 97 

D. District Counsel 98 

Mr. Vericker and Mr. Smith presented and discussed the two addendums that had been prepared to 99 
the District Management and Amenity Management contracts. Mr. Smith explained that the 100 
addendum was a housekeeping item to formalize the consolidation of the on-site General Manager 101 
and District Manager roles, to be held by Ms. Dobson. In response to Supervisor comments, Mr. 102 
Smith stated that he could provide a breakdown of salary and benefits for transparency, and that he 103 
anticipated that the transition would be complete over the next 30 to 60 days. Mr. Vericker advised 104 
that a motion was needed for each addendum. 105 

On a MOTION by Ms. Edwards, SECONDED by Ms. Ruhlig, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 106 
the first addendum to the Vesta District Services District Management contract, for the Preserve at 107 
Wilderness Lake Community Development District. 108 

 109 

On a MOTION by Ms. Edwards, SECONDED by Ms. Ruhlig, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 110 
the first addendum to the Vesta Property Services, Inc. Amenity Management contract, for the Preserve at 111 
Wilderness Lake Community Development District. 112 

(The Board recessed the meeting at 11:19 a.m., and reconvened at 11:26 a.m.) 113 

E. Community Manager 114 

1. Exhibit 6: Presentation of Community Manager Report 115 

Ms. Dobson asked the Board whether they had any comments or questions. The Board 116 
discussed the seating arrangement for the meeting space. Ms. Dobson additionally provided 117 
an update on the touch pad operations and lap pool heating, the latter of which would start 118 
operating on October 6 to heat the pool to 82 degrees. Ms. Edwards and Ms. Dobson 119 
commented on recent discussions and work regarding a wetland buffer violation on 120 
Draycott which they had reviewed with Mr. Burnite. 121 

F. District Manager 122 

1. Exhibit 7: Presentation of District Manager & Field Operations Report 123 

Ms. Dobson stated that a new ad for immediate recruitment had gone out. Ms. Edwards 124 
stated that she had looked into the ad on the recruiting sites and expressed some concerns 125 
about how it presented what they had communicated as far as wants and needs for the 126 
person to fill the position. Ms. Edwards suggested that the ad did not have sufficient 127 



Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD October 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 4 of 5 

 
emphasis on coordinating major activities or working with families in the community and 128 
volunteers. Additional discussion regarding salary ranges and job descriptions, as well as 129 
a recent candidate who had rescinded their acceptance of an official job offer. Following 130 
discussions, the Board suggested an increase in the salary range for the Event Coordinator 131 
position. Ms. Dobson additionally stated that she would revise the language in the 132 
advertised job descriptions based on Supervisor comments and send them to the Chair for 133 
review. 134 

2. Exhibit 8: Discussion of Spa Services 135 

A summary was provided of previous discussions regarding the space currently used by 136 
the Nail Tech. Comments were made stressing the Board’s appreciation for the nail tech 137 
and her services, and clarifying that the space was owned by the CDD and used by the tech 138 
as an independent contractor on a schedule that generally left the space unused during 139 
weekends and evenings. Supervisors made comments noting that the space had been 140 
designed for full-time use, which was the Board’s motivation for pursuing additional use 141 
of the space for spa services. Ms. Dobson additionally advised that Egis would not insure 142 
the District for injectable services categorized under “medical services”. Following further 143 
discussion, the Board requested for a copy of the nail technician’s monthly schedule, and 144 
an assessment on the proportion of resident and non-resident clients, as well as a report on 145 
various expenditures for the spa service. 146 

3. Exhibit 9: Presentation of Landscape Project-Proposal Tracker 147 

There were no comments on the Landscape Project-Proposal Tracker. 148 

4. Exhibit 10: Presentation of Project Tracker 149 

There were no comments or revision requests on the Project Tracker. 150 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Consent Agenda 151 

A. Exhibit 11: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular 152 
Meeting Held September 6, 2023 153 

B. Exhibit 12: Consideration for Acceptance – The August 2023 Unaudited Financial Report 154 

C. Exhibit 13: Consideration for Acceptance – The August 2023 Operations & Maintenance 155 
Expenditures 156 

On a MOTION by Ms. Ruhlig, SECONDED by Ms. Fisher, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 157 
items A through C of the Consent Agenda, as presented, for the Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community 158 
Development District. 159 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items 160 

A. Exhibit 14: Consideration of ADA Door Proposal Options - previously presented 161 

1. DH Pace 162 

2. Magnum Door Solutions 163 

Ms. Dobson advised that the Magnum Door Solutions proposal had been recommended by 164 
the PBSS door company that worked on the District’s regent doors 165 

 166 

 167 

 168 



Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD October 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 5 of 5 

 
B. Exhibit 15: Consideration of Himes Electrical ADA Door Electric Proposal 169 

On a MOTION by Ms. Edwards, SECONDED by Ms. Ruhlig, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 170 
the Magnum Door Solutions ADA Door proposal, in the amount of $6,114.00, and the Himes Electrical 171 
ADA Door Electric proposal, in the amount of $880.00, to be coded to the Lodge Maintenance line item 172 
and submitted via application to Egis Insurance, for the Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community 173 
Development District. 174 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 175 

Ms. Edwards made comments regarding landscaping, particularly irrigation failures leading to 176 
remediation costs, as well as negotiating replacement of warranty items. 177 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – New Business 178 

There being none, the next item followed. 179 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: November 1, 6:30 PM 180 

Ms. Edwards, Ms. Fisher, Ms. Ruhlig, and Ms. Hepner stated that they would be able to attend the 181 
next meeting in person, which would constitute a quorum. Mr. Norrie was not present for the 182 
quorum check. 183 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 184 

Ms. Dobson asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 185 
adjourn the meeting. There being none, Ms. Ruhlig made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 186 

On a MOTION by Ms. Ruhlig, SECONDED by Ms. Fisher, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 187 
the meeting at 1:03 p.m. for the Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District. 188 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 189 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 190 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 191 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 192 
meeting held on November 1, 2023. 193 

 194 

 195 

Signature  Signature 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 196 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 



The Preserve at Wilderness Lake
Community Development District

Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Preliminary

September 30, 2023

Page 1



  
General Reserve Debt Service Debt Service

Fund Fund 2012 2013 TOTAL
1 ASSETS  
2 BANKUNITED OPERATING 1,115,586$       -$                      -$                      -$                      1,115,586$       
3 TRUIST OPERATING 13,209              -                        -                        -                        13,209              
4 PETTY CASH 300                   -                        -                        -                        300                   
5 TRUST ACCOUNTS: -                        
6 REVENUE FUND -                        -                        42,353              74,663              117,015            
7 RESERVE FUND -                        -                        128,912            153,444            282,356            
8 INTEREST FUND -                        -                        -                        1                       1                       
9 PREPAYMENT FUND -                        -                        4,039                7,621                11,660              

10 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
11 ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE - ON ROLL 10,436              -                        999                   1,851                13,285              
12 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS -                        776,763            1,470                2,731                780,964            
13 PREPAID EXPENSES 3,975                -                        -                        -                        3,975                
14 DEPOSITS 28,750              -                        -                        -                        28,750              
15 DUE FROM OTHERS 16                     -                        -                        -                        16                     
16 TOTAL ASSETS 1,172,272$       776,763$          177,772$          240,311$          2,367,119$       

17 LIABILITIES
18 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 105,256$          31,681$            -$                      -$                      136,937$          
19 RENTAL DEPOSITS PAYABLE 920                   -                        -                        -                        920                   
20 DEFERRED REVENUE - ON-ROLL -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
21 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 776,763            -                        -                        -                        776,763            
22 OUTSTANDING CHECKS 225                   -                        -                        -                        225                   
23 TOTAL LIABILITIES 883,165            31,681              -                        -                        914,846            

24 FUND BALANCE
25 NONSPENDABLE
26 PREPAID & DEPOSITS 32,725              -                        -                        -                        32,725              
28 CAPITAL RESERVES -                        -                        179,002            231,729            410,730            
27 OPERATING CAPITAL -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
29 UNASSIGNED 256,383            745,082            (1,229)               8,582                1,008,818         
30 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 289,107            745,082            177,772            240,311            1,452,273         

31 TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 1,172,272$       776,763$          177,772$          240,311$          2,367,119$       

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2023

Page 2



FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE % Actual
Adopted Month of Total Actual Over (Under) YTD / 
Budget September Year-to-Date  to Budget FY Budget

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
3 ASSESSMENTS ON-ROLL 1,647,700$       -$                      1,669,106$       21,406$            101%
4 INTEREST EARNINGS
5 INTEREST 9,500                118                   15,732              6,232                166%
6 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
7 GENERAL STORE 7,000                1,703                10,406              3,406                149%
8 GUEST FEES 4,500                236                   4,803                303                   107%
9 EVENTS & SPONSORSHIPS 3,500                28                     3,496                (4)                      100%

10 RENTAL REVENUES 8,250                320                   11,930              3,680                145%
11 FEE-BASED SERVICES -                        25                     930                   930                   
12 OTHER MISC. REVENUE 500                   -                        1                       (499)                  
13 INSURANCE PROCEEDS -                        -                        41,810              41,810              
14 PRIOR YEAR CREDIT -                        -                        636                   636                   
15 TOTAL REVENUE 1,680,950         2,430                1,758,851         77,901              105%

16 BALANCE FORWARD FROM PREVIOUS YEAR 248,796            -                        248,796            -                        

17 TOTAL REVENUE & BALANCE FORWARD 1,929,746$       2,430$              2,007,647$       77,901$            104%

18 EXPENDITURES
19 LEGISLATIVE
20 SUPERVISOR FEES 14,000$            1,000$              17,400$            742$                 124%
21 PAYROLL FICA TAXES -                        -                        -                        -                        
22 PAYROLL SERVICE FEES -                        -                        -                        -                        
23 TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 14,000              1,000                17,400              3,400                124%

24 FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
25 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 8,874                790                   9,616                742                   108%
26 DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 25,078              -                        28,657              3,579                114%
27 DISTRICT ENGINEER 17,000              1,145                45,018              28,018              265%
28 DISCLOSURE REPORT 2,200                -                        2,000                (200)                  91%
29 TRUSTEE FEES 7,800                3,300                10,152              2,352                130%
30 TAX COLLECTOR / PROPERTY FEES 150                   -                        -                        (150)                  0%
31 FINANCIAL & REVENUE COLLECTIONS 5,724                477                   6,351                627                   111%
32 ASSESSMENT ROLL 5,724                -                        5,724                -                        100%
33 ACCOUNTING SERVICES 26,024              2,167                28,297              2,273                109%
34 AUDITING SERVICES 3,635                -                        3,635                -                        100%
35 LEGAL ADVERTISING 2,250                79                     1,726                (524)                  77%
36 MISC. MAILINGS 2,500                41                     134                   (2,366)               5%
37 DUES, LICENSES, & FEES 825                   40                     602                   (223)                  73%
38 WEBSITE & EMAIL HOSTING 7,500                -                        3,946                (3,554)               53%
39 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 115,284            8,039                145,858            30,574              127%

40 LEGAL COUNSEL
41 DISTRICT COUNSEL 20,000              -                        37,605              17,605              188%
42 TOTAL LEGAL COUNSEL 20,000              -                        37,605              17,605              188%

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

Page 3



FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE % Actual
Adopted Month of Total Actual Over (Under) YTD / 
Budget September Year-to-Date  to Budget FY Budget

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

43 INSURANCE
44 PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY INSURANCE 3,050                -                        2,733                (317)                  90%
45 SUPERVISOR WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE 250                   -                        664                   414                   266%
46 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 4,331                -                        3,880                (451)                  90%
47 PROPERTY INSURANCE 42,272              -                        38,011              (4,261)               90%
48 TOTAL INSURANCE 49,903              -                        45,288              (4,615)               91%

49 LAW ENFORCEMENT
50 OFF DUTY DEPUTY 34,750              3,300                21,758              (12,993)             63%
51 TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 34,750              3,300                21,758              (12,993)             63%

52 UTILITIES
53 ELECTRICITY UTILITY SERVICES 165,000            15,637              167,094            2,094                101%
54 GAS UTILITY SERVICES 30,000              -                        32,326              2,326                108%
55 SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT 3,250                -                        3,795                545                   117%
56 GARBAGE RECREATION FACILITY 1,500                -                        5,250                3,750                350%
57 WATER-SEWER SERVICES 30,000              2,506                18,760              (11,240)             63%
58 STORMWATER ASSESSMENTS 3,125                -                        2,377                (748)                  76%
59 TOTAL UTILITIES 232,875            18,143              229,603            (3,272)               99%

60 LANDSCAPE
61 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 158,000            12,900              158,520            520                   100%
62 LANDSCAPE FERTILIZATION 30,000              4,275                30,000              -                        100%
63 LANDSCAPE ANNUAL FLOWERS 16,200              -                        23,850              7,650                147%
64 LANDSCAPE REPLACEMENT PLANTS 45,000              -                        33,171              (11,829)             74%
65 LANDSCAPE MULCH 68,000              -                        120                   (67,880)             0%
66 LANDSCAPE INSPECTION SERVICES 13,200              2,200                15,400              2,200                117%
67 LANDSCAPE PEST CONTROL 13,980              1,165                14,134              154                   101%
68 LANDSCAPE AERATION 4,000                -                        640                   (3,360)               16%
69 TREE TRIMMING SERVICES 32,000              2,750                100,875            68,875              315%
70 IRRIGATION REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 25,000              -                        31,584              6,584                126%
71 IRRIGATION INSPECTION 13,600              -                        4,365                (9,235)               32%
72 WELL MAINTENANCE 2,500                -                        -                        (2,500)               0%
73 TOTAL LANDSCAPE 421,480            23,290              412,659            (8,821)               98%

74 LAKE AND WETLAND MAINTENANCE
75 WETLAND PLANT INSTALLATION -                        -                        -                        -                        
76 MONTHLY AQUATIC WEED CONTROL 34,500              2,875                23,000              (11,500)             67%
77 WETLAND STAFF OVERSIGHT 2,000                167                   1,833                (167)                  92%
78 PRIVATE RESIDENT CONSULTATION 780                   65                     715                   (65)                    92%
79 WETLAND NUISANCE SPECIES CONTROL 10,500              875                   10,475              (25)                    100%
80 WETLAND INITIAL CLEANUP 30,300              -                        20,175              (10,125)             67%
81 WETLAND ROUTINE CLEANUP 13,200              -                        8,150                (5,050)               62%
82 SPECIAL PROJECTS 5,000                -                        -                        (5,000)               0%
83 TOTAL LAKE AND WETLAND MAINTENANCE 96,280              3,982                64,348              (31,932)             67%

84 ROAD & STREET FACILITIES
85 STREET LIGHT DECORATIVE MAINTENANCE 500                   -                        -                        (500)                  0%
86 STREET SIGN REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 500                   -                        1,600                1,100                320%
87 ROADWAY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 10,000              -                        12,079              2,079                121%
88 SIDEWALK REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 3,000                -                        -                        (3,000)               0%
89 SIDEWALK PRESSURE WASHING 8,000                -                        4,300                (3,700)               54%
90 ENTRY & WALLS REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,000                -                        3,963                2,963                396%
91 TOTAL ROAD & STREET FACILITIES 23,000              -                        21,941              (1,059)               95%

Page 4



FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE % Actual
Adopted Month of Total Actual Over (Under) YTD / 
Budget September Year-to-Date  to Budget FY Budget

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

92 PARKS & RECREATION
93 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT - PAYROLL 450,000            40,766              417,388            (32,612)             93%
94 EMPLOYEE MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2,500                -                        1,445                (1,055)               58%
95 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT - DM FEES 18,000              2,089                16,767              (1,233)               93%
96 LODGE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 50,000              27,238              66,315              16,315              133%
97 LODGE JANITOR CONTRACT SERVICES 30,000              2,012                24,657              (5,343)               82%
98 LODGE JANITOR SUPPLIES 7,500                313                   7,116                (384)                  95%
99 SPA LINEN & MAT SERVICES 8,000                499                   8,829                829                   110%

100 POOL SERVICE CONTRACT 58,520              5,853                62,232              3,712                106%
101 POOL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 5,000                710                   9,327                4,327                187%
102 POOL PERMITS 1,000                -                        (1,000)               0%
103 TELEPHONE, INTERNET, CABLE 14,000              456                   12,562              (1,438)               90%
104 COMPUTER IT SUPPORT & REPAIR 3,750                -                        6,918                3,168                184%
105 SECURITY SYSTEM MONITORING 12,000              -                        6,213                (5,787)               52%
106 SECURITY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 7,500                600                   25,226              17,726              336%
107 RESIDENT SERVICES 7,500                292                   9,662                2,162                129%
108 RESIDENT ID CARD 1,500                725                   853                   (647)                  57%
109 OFFICE SUPPLIES 8,000                854                   5,987                (2,013)               75%
110 GENERAL STORE 7,000                274                   4,917                (2,083)               70%
111 NATURE CENTER OPERATIONS 6,000                55                     5,045                (955)                  84%
112 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 14,400              1,200                14,585              185                   101%
113 SPECIAL EVENTS 30,000              1,830                31,365              1,365                105%
114 FITNESS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,500                110                   1,210                (290)                  81%
115 FITNESS EQUIPMENT REPAIR 7,000                1,845                5,951                (1,049)               85%
116 EQUIPMENT LEASE 5,000                -                        -                        (5,000)               0%
117 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & REPLACEMENT 10,000              -                        38,787              28,787              388%
118 ATHLETIC COURT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 5,250                -                        7,063                1,813                135%
119 PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,000                -                        922                   (78)                    92%
120 PLAYGROUND MULCH 8,000                -                        -                        (8,000)               0%
121 DOG WASTE STATION SUPPLIES 5,000                1,386                6,869                1,869                137%
122 HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 15,000              6,000                19,386              4,386                129%
123 LANDSCAPE LIGHTING REPLACEMENT 2,000                -                        613                   (1,388)               31%
124 CONTINGENCY -                        -                        2,700                2,700                
125 TOTAL  PARKS AND RECREATION 801,920            95,106              820,909            18,989              102%

126 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,809,492         152,859            1,817,369         7,877                100%

127 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 120,254            (150,429)           (58,518)             (178,772)           

128 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
129 TRANSFERS IN -                        100                   100                   100                   
130 TRANSFERS OUT (120,254)           (100)                  (120,354)           (100)                  
131 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING RESOURCES & USES (120,254)           -                        (120,254)           -                        

132 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - UNAUDITED 467,879            467,879            -                        
133 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                        (150,429)           (178,772)           (178,772)           
134 FUND BALANCE - ENDING - PROJECTED 467,879$          289,107$          (178,772)           

135 ANALYSIS OF FUND BALANCE 
136 NON SPENDABLE DEPOSITS
137 PREPAID & DEPOSITS 32,725              32,725              
138 CAPITAL RESERVES -                        -                        
139 OPERATING CAPITAL -                        -                        
140 UNASSIGNED 256,383            256,383            
141 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 289,107$          289,107$          

Page 5



FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE
Amended Total Actual Over (Under)
Budget Year-to-Date to Budget

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 128,719$          129,833$          1,114$              
3 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE -                        -                        -                        
4 TOTAL REVENUE 128,719            129,833            1,114                

5 EXPENDITURES
6 CAPITAL RESERVES 248,973            272,335            23,362              
7 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 248,973            272,335            23,362              

8 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (120,254)           (142,502)           (22,248)             

9 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES
10 TRANSFERS IN 120,254            120,254            -                        
11 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
12 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES 120,254            120,254            -                        

13 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 767,331            767,331            -                        
14 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                        (22,248)             (22,248)             
15 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 767,331$          745,082$          (22,248)$           

16 ANALYSIS OF FUND BALANCE
17 ASSIGNED
18 FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS -                        -                        
19 WORKING CAPITAL -                        -                        
20 UNASSIGNED 745,082            745,082            
21 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 745,082$          745,082$          

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Capital Reserve Fund (CRF)

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

Page 6



FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE
Adopted Total Actual Over (Under)
Budget Year-to-Date to Budget

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 169,967$          172,120$          2,154$              
3 INTEREST REVENUE -                        7,855                 7,855                 
4 MISC REVENUE -                        -                        -                        
5 TOTAL REVENUE 169,967            179,976            10,009              

6 EXPENDITURES
7 INTEREST EXPENSE
8 November 1, 2022 -                        35,240              35,240              
9 May 1, 2023 -                        35,240              35,240              

10 November 1, 2023 -                        -                        -                        
11 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT                          -                        
12 May 1, 2023 -                        95,000              95,000              
13 PRINCIPAL PREPAYMENT -                        20,000              20,000              
14 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 169,967            185,480            15,513              

15 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXP. -                        (5,504)               (5,504)               

16 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
17 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
18 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
19 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                        -                        -                        

20 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 183,277            183,277            -                        
21 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                        (5,504)               (5,504)               
22 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 183,277$          177,772$          (5,504)$             

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Debt Service Fund - Series 2012

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

Page 7



FY 2023 FY 2023 VARIANCE
Adopted Total Actual Over (Under)
Budget Year-to-Date to Budget

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (NET) 315,438$          319,021$          3,583$              
3 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - OFF ROLL -                        4,439                 4,439                 
4 INTEREST REVENUE -                        10,821              10,821              
5 MISC REVENUE -                        -                        -                        
6 TOTAL REVENUE 315,438            334,282            18,843              

7 EXPENDITURES
8 INTEREST EXPENSE
9 November 1, 2022 -                        59,266              59,266              

10 May 1, 2023 -                        59,266              59,266              
11 November 1, 2023 -                        -                        -                        
12 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT                          -                        
13 May 1, 2023 -                        190,000            190,000            
14 PRINCIPAL PREPAYMENT -                        20,000              20,000              
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 315,438            328,533            328,533            

16 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXP. -                        5,749                 5,749                 

17 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18 TRANSFERS IN -                        -                        -                        
19 TRANSFERS OUT -                        -                        -                        
20 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                        -                        -                        

21 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 234,562            234,562            -                        
22 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                        5,749                 5,749                 
23 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 234,562$          240,311$          5,749$              

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Debt Service Fund - Series 2013

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023

Page 8



Pg Date Ref. Num Name Memo Expense Deposits Disbursements Balance
05/31/2023 EOM Balance 200,000.00
06/07/2023 1010 Pasco County Property Appraiser Annual Fees Due 150.00 199,850.00
06/08/2023 1013 Agnieszka Fisher BOS Meeting 5/24/23 200.00 199,650.00
06/08/2023 1015 Badges of Honor LLC Name Badges gold black 55.00 199,595.00
06/08/2023 1014 Body Luxxe Reissue 8/23/22: it's Lit Candle making class 225.00 199,370.00
06/08/2023 1008 Bryan Norrie BOS Meeting 5/24/23 200.00 199,170.00
06/08/2023 1012 Fitness Logic 352.99 198,817.01
06/08/2023 1011 GHS, LLC Monthly Aquatic Weed Control Program 3,981.67 194,835.34
06/08/2023 1016 Heather Hepner BOS Meeting 5/24/23 200.00 194,635.34
06/08/2023 1009 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Service call - Checked breakers for splash pool 539.47 194,095.87
06/08/2023 1002 Holly Ruhlig BOS Meeting 5/24/23 200.00 193,895.87
06/08/2023 1007 Judy Smith Replacement of swim wear damaged w/ bleach in the spa 73.99 193,821.88
06/08/2023 1006 Nuricproductions DJ Service for Summer Pool Party 250.00 193,571.88
06/08/2023 1005 RedTree Landscape Systems 2,955.00 190,616.88
06/08/2023 1004 Tampa Bay Times Legal advertising- Budge Workshop 147.50 190,469.38
06/08/2023 1003 Vanguard Cleaning Systems Of Tampa Bay June Monthly cleaning services 1,950.00 188,519.38
06/08/2023 1010 Virginia B. Edwards BOS Meeting 5/24/23 200.00 188,319.38
06/08/2023 1001 Waste Connections Of Florida ACC#023988-0001 21320 WIlderness Lake Blvd Land   6/1- 6/30 420.43 187,898.95
06/09/2023 08ACH060923 Frontier FiberOptic Internet 200 static IP 5/15-6/14 105.98 187,792.97
06/13/2023 ACH 061323 Frontier Local service 5/19- 6/18 904.76 186,888.21
06/14/2023 Deposit 9,242.15 196,130.36
06/14/2023 0614ACH1 BankUnited Check order 50.72 196,079.64
06/15/2023 Deposit 10,332.12 206,411.76
06/15/2023 01ACH063023 Ready Refresh Drinking Water service 5/9- 6/8 147.07 206,264.69
06/16/2023 07ACH061623 Frontier Local service 5/22- 6/21 100.99 206,163.70
06/16/2023 Funds Transfer 1,508,637.34 1,714,801.04
06/21/2023 1017 ALSCO 437.85 1,714,363.19
06/21/2023 1018 Brletic Dvorak Inc Engineering services 2,937.50 1,711,425.69
06/21/2023 1019 Cooper Pools Inc. Monthly commercial pool service & Algaecide Lap Pool 5,903.00 1,705,522.69
06/21/2023 1020 FitRev Inc Wipe dispensers for fitness room 140.00 1,705,382.69
06/21/2023 1021 Ideal Network Solutions, Inc. Lodge Reconstruction Project 5,485.00 1,699,897.69
06/21/2023 1022 PSA Horticultural June Landscape inspection 1,100.00 1,698,797.69
06/21/2023 1023 RedTree Landscape Systems 14,625.00 1,684,172.69
06/21/2023 1024 Straley Robin Vericker Professional services rendered - General Matters 2,958.50 1,681,214.19
06/21/2023 1025 Trevor Elliott Gas for Maintenance 16.60 1,681,197.59
06/21/2023 1026 Vantage Point Corporation Trend Micro Worry- Free Business security services Maintenance 288.45 1,680,909.14
06/21/2023 1027 Vesta District Services 10,946.00 1,669,963.14
06/21/2023 1028 Amber Tucker Expense May 305.81 1,669,657.33
06/21/2023 1029 Karen Deal Expenses May 1,359.65 1,668,297.68
06/21/2023 ACH 062123 FL Dept. of Rev. May 2023 Sales tax 112.47 1,668,185.21
06/26/2023 1030 Agnieszka Fisher BOS Meeting 6/22/23 200.00 1,667,985.21
06/26/2023 1031 Bryan Norrie BOS Meeting 6/22/23 200.00 1,667,785.21
06/26/2023 1032 Heather Hepner BOS Meeting 6/22/23 200.00 1,667,585.21
06/26/2023 1033 Holly Ruhlig BOS Meeting 6/22/23 200.00 1,667,385.21
06/26/2023 1034 Virginia B. Edwards BOS Meeting 6/22/23 200.00 1,667,185.21
06/26/2023 1035 A Total Solution, Inc 7,206.27 1,659,978.94
06/26/2023 1036 ACCI labor & Equipment for all existing structured cabling in the clubhouse 1,539.00 1,658,439.94
06/26/2023 1037 Arrow Exterminators 1,306.00 1,657,133.94
06/26/2023 1038 Cool Coast Heating & Cooling Inc Performed filter change & Drain Cleaning 629.00 1,656,504.94
06/26/2023 1039 FitRev Inc Diamond Pro 20kg Bar 444.00 1,656,060.94
06/26/2023 1040 GHS, LLC Monthly Aquatic Weed Control Program 6,931.67 1,649,129.27
06/26/2023 1041 McNatt's Cleaners Laundry 19.00 1,649,110.27
06/26/2023 1042 Nuricproductions DJ Service for 4th of July 250.00 1,648,860.27
06/26/2023 1043 Pasco Sheriff's Office 3,277.50 1,645,582.77
06/26/2023 1044 Site Masters Of Florida LLC Constructed swales in common area at northwest end of Grasmere Dr. 1,700.00 1,643,882.77
06/26/2023 1045 Toni Rulon Room Rental Deposit Refund (6/11/23) 250.00 1,643,632.77
06/27/2023 01ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 21320 Wildnerness Lake Blvd 4/19-5/18 6,791.47 1,636,841.30
06/27/2023 02ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 0 Waverly Shores Lane 4/19-5/18 12.14 1,636,829.16

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Check Register - FY2023

Page 9



Pg Date Ref. Num Name Memo Expense Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Check Register - FY2023

06/27/2023 03ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 20750 Wilderness Lake Blvd 4/19-5/18 33.21 1,636,795.95
06/27/2023 04ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr 4/19-5/18 12.14 1,636,783.81
06/27/2023 05ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 7639 Grasmere Dr 4/19-5/18 12.14 1,636,771.67
06/27/2023 06ACH062723 Pasco County Utilities 21922 Waverly Shores Lane 4/19-5/18 28.34 1,636,743.33
06/27/2023 1046 The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD Opening Merchant Account 100.00 1,636,643.33
06/27/2023 10ACH062723 Duke Energy 7973 Citrus Blossom Dr- Herons Glen 5/3-6/2 30.79 1,636,612.54
06/27/2023 11ACH062723 Duke Energy need back up 13,800.33 1,622,812.21
06/27/2023 12ACH062723 Duke Energy 7739 Citrus Blossom Dr- Sign Herons Wood   5/3-6/2 30.79 1,622,781.42
06/27/2023 ACH062723 Frontier Local service6/22- 7/21/23 100.99 1,622,680.43
06/28/2023 ACH062823 Frontier FiberOptic Internet 200 static IP 6/15-7/15 105.98 1,622,574.45
06/28/2023 1048 Fitness Logic Monthly general maintenance and cleaning of all equipment 110.00 1,622,464.45
06/28/2023 1049 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. 517.50 1,621,946.95
06/28/2023 1050 RedTree Landscape Systems 5,065.00 1,616,881.95
06/28/2023 1051 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Service call - Troubleshot no power to tennis court lights 227.04 1,616,654.91
06/29/2023 1052 Badges of Honor LLC Navy baseball hat w/ embriodery 150.00 1,616,504.91
06/29/2023 1053 ProPet Distributors DOGIPOT SMART Litter pickup Bags and Trash Bags Liner 1,385.80 1,615,119.11
06/29/2023 1054 Trevor Elliott Reimbusement -Gas for Maintenance and battey 244.63 1,614,874.48
06/29/2023 Deposit 9,318.94 1,624,193.42
06/29/2023 1055 Katie Grubaugh Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,623,943.42
06/29/2023 1056 Lindsey Palmer Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,623,693.42
06/29/2023 1057 Marlene Suarez Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,623,443.42
06/29/2023 1058 Mitzi Whitaker Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,623,193.42
06/29/2023 1059 Nevena Ugrenovic Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,622,943.42
06/29/2023 1060 Pam Morley Refund: Pool Rental Deposit 250.00 1,622,693.42
06/29/2023 1061 Susan Gosman Refund: Room Rental Deposit 250.00 1,622,443.42
06/29/2023 1062 Vanguard Cleaning Systems Of Tampa Bay July Monthly cleaning services 1,950.00 1,620,493.42
06/29/2023 1063 Vesta District Services Billable Expenses May 23 84.14 1,620,409.28
06/30/2023 1065 Fitness Logic Reattached cable to top plate on precor leg press 99.00 1,620,310.28
06/30/2023 Interest 61.77 1,620,372.05
06/30/2023 EOM Balance 1,537,592.32 117,220.27 1,620,372.05

1 07/01/2023 1047 A Total Solution, Inc Security System Monitoring/Maint. 1,320.00 1,619,052.05
3 07/06/2023 1066 Daphine Sterner Room Rental Deposit Refund (6/24/23) Rental Deposit 250.00 1,618,802.05
4 07/07/2023 1067 Test Lab, Inc. Testing Services Roadway Repair & Maint. 4,084.50 1,614,717.55
5 07/07/2023 ACH 070723 Frontier Business Fiber Internet 06/07- 07/06 Telephone, Internet, Cable 169.98 1,614,547.57

07/12/2023 1068 Agnieszka Fisher BOS Meeting 7/05/23 Supervisor Fees 200.00 1,614,347.57
07/12/2023 1069 Heather Hepner BOS Meeting 7/05/23 Supervisor Fees 200.00 1,614,147.57
07/12/2023 1070 Holly Ruhlig BOS Meeting 7/05/23 Supervisor Fees 200.00 1,613,947.57
07/12/2023 1071 Virginia B. Edwards BOS Meeting 7/05/23 Supervisor Fees 200.00 1,613,747.57

6 07/12/2023 1078 Site Masters Of Florida LLC Replace 3 elevated sidewalk panels Lodge Repair & Maint. 1,800.00 1,611,947.57
7 07/13/2023 1ACH071323 Frontier Local service 6/19- 7/18/23 Telephone, Internet, Cable 795.44 1,611,152.13
8 07/13/2023 0713ACH1 Ready Refresh Water Service Rental Spa Linen & Mat Services 39.98 1,611,112.15
9 07/14/2023 1074 Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank Services rendered in connection w/ audit of basic financial statement Auditing Services 3,635.00 1,607,477.15

10 07/14/2023 1075 Cooper Pools Inc. Pool Repair, Pool Service, 5,888.00 1,601,589.15
12 07/14/2023 1076 MPLC MPLC Umbrella License covering 7/26/23 - 7/25/24 Resident Services 3,118.79 1,598,470.36
14 07/14/2023 1077 Vesta District Services Billable Expenses May 23 District Management 7,225.31 1,591,245.05
31 07/17/2023 1079 Palm Beach Security Safes, Inc. Rekeying Facility & Guard House Lodge Repair & Maint. 4,202.50 1,587,042.55

07/18/2023 Deposit 3,981.67 1,591,024.22
33 07/18/2023 100000 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000171279 (Reference: service call on your access control system      Lodge Repair & Maint. 2,097.47 1,588,926.75
36 07/18/2023 100001 Brletic Dvorak Inc Invoice: 1136 (Reference: Project Manager & Senior Inspector.  ) District Engineer 5,162.50 1,583,764.25
37 07/18/2023 100002 Cooper Pools Inc. Invoice: 7130 (Reference: ORP Probes.  )  Invoice: 7131 (Reference: Repla      Pool Repair & Maint. 9,100.00 1,574,664.25
40 07/18/2023 100003 GHS, LLC Invoice: 2023-344 (Reference: Monthly Aquatic Services.  ) Monthly Aquatic, Wetland Staff, Private Residen   3,981.67 1,570,682.58
41 07/18/2023 100004 Tampa Bay Times Invoice: 061423-9621 (Reference: Legal Advertising.  ) Legal Advertising 121.60 1,570,560.98
42 07/18/2023 100005 Vesta District Services Invoice: 411693 (Reference: Management Fees & Payroll.  ) Management Contract - Payroll 29,590.00 1,540,970.98
43 07/18/2023 100006 Admit One Products, Inc. Invoice: 337820 (Reference: Wristbands.  ) Resident Services 163.81 1,540,807.17
44 07/18/2023 100007 Business Observer, Inc. Invoice: 23-01129P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  )  Invoice: 23-01099P   Legal Advertising 573.13 1,540,234.04
48 07/19/2023 1080 Ashlyn Valenta Room Rental Deposit Refund (7/8/23) Rental Deposit 250.00 1,539,984.04
49 07/19/2023 1081 Sysco West Coast Florida, Inc. 2,094.56 1,537,889.48
55 07/19/2023 0719ACH1 Duke Energy Collective accounts 5/3-6/2 Electric Utility Services 1,435.20 1,536,454.28

Page 10



Pg Date Ref. Num Name Memo Expense Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Check Register - FY2023

56 07/19/2023 1083 Site Masters Of Florida LLC Replace Missing Grate Contingency 1,200.00 1,535,254.28
57 07/20/2023 1084 A Total Solution, Inc Security System Monitoring 5,493.20 1,529,761.08
59 07/20/2023 1085 Site Masters Of Florida LLC Installed surface drainage pip in sand Volleyball court Lodge Repair & Maint. 2,100.00 1,527,661.08

07/25/2023 Deposit 291.90 1,527,952.98
60 07/26/2023 1ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 20750 Wilderness Lake Blvd 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 39.88 1,527,913.10
61 07/26/2023 2ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 21320 Wildnerness Lake Blvd 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 1,745.18 1,526,167.92
62 07/26/2023 3ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 10.29 1,526,157.63
63 07/26/2023 4ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 21922 Waverly Shores Lane 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 29.73 1,526,127.90
64 07/26/2023 5ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 7639 Grasmere Dr 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 10.29 1,526,117.61
65 07/26/2023 6ACH072623 Pasco County Utilities 0 Waverly Shores Lane 5/18-6/19 Water/Sewer Services 10.29 1,526,107.32
66 07/27/2023 ACH072723 Duke Energy 05/26-06/27 Electric Utility Services 14,218.28 1,511,889.04
67 07/27/2023 1ACH072723 Duke Energy 7973 Citrus Blossom Dr- Herons Glen 6/3-7/3 Electric Utility Services 30.79 1,511,858.25
68 07/27/2023 2ACH072723 Duke Energy 7739 Citrus Blossom Dr- Sign Herons Wood   6/3-7/3 Electric Utility Services 30.79 1,511,827.46
69 07/27/2023 100008 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14124 (Reference: Arbor Care.  )  Invoice: 14144 (Reference: Tree     Irrigation, Landscape Maint, Tree Trimming 18,291.00 1,493,536.46
73 07/27/2023 100009 Inteligy Tampa Bay LLC Invoice: 16549 (Reference: Lightening Damage.  ) Lodge Repair & Maint. 1,759.00 1,491,777.46
74 07/28/2023 100010 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000172173 (Reference: Lightning damage.  ) Security System Maint. 4,125.62 1,487,651.84
76 07/28/2023 100011 ALSCO Invoice: LTAM996518 (Reference: Mats.  ) Spa Linen & Mat Services 145.95 1,487,505.89
77 07/28/2023 100012 Fitness Logic Invoice: 113735 (Reference: Triceps Rope.  )  Invoice: 113734 (Reference:   Fitness Equipment Repair 1,880.11 1,485,625.78
81 07/28/2023 100013 FitRev Inc Invoice: 28827 (Reference: Diamond Pro - IWF 20kg Bar.  ) Fitness Equipment Repair 444.00 1,485,181.78
82 07/28/2023 100014 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Invoice: 23569 (Reference: Lightning damage.  )  Invoice: 23507 (Referenc   Lodge Repair, Landscape Lighting 707.50 1,484,474.28
84 07/28/2023 100015 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 13968 (Reference: Landscape Maint..  )  Invoice: 14176 (Referenc     Irrigation, Landscape Maint, Tree Trimming 17,665.00 1,466,809.28
87 07/28/2023 100016 Straley Robin Vericker Invoice: 23330 (Reference: General Matters.  ) District Counsel 4,228.00 1,462,581.28
89 07/28/2023 100017 Business Observer, Inc. Invoice: 23-01158P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  ) Legal Advertising 72.19 1,462,509.09
90 07/31/2023 1ACH073123 Frontier Business Fiber Internet 07/07- 08/06 Telephone, Internet, Cable 334.05 1,462,175.04

07/31/2023 Interest 136.14 1,462,311.18
07/31/2023 EOM Balance 4,409.71 162,470.58 1,462,311.18

1 08/01/2023 1086 Sysco West Coast Florida, Inc. Customer # 692814 570.10 1,461,741.08
2 08/01/2023 100018 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 000183051 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance Agreement.  ) 600.00 1,461,141.08
3 08/01/2023 100019 Vesta District Services Invoice: 411768 (Reference: District Management Services.  ) 5,473.00 1,455,668.08
4 08/02/2023 ACH080223 Pasco County Utilities 159.92 1,455,508.16
6 08/03/2023 1087 Vesta Property Services, Inc Management Fees & Payroll. 37,467.97 1,418,040.19
7 08/03/2023 1088 Grant Hemond & Associates DJ Services Back to School Party 395.00 1,417,645.19
9 08/03/2023 1089 Marie Moore Room Rental Deposit Refund (5/21/23) 250.00 1,417,395.19

12 08/03/2023 1090 Tish Dodson Reimbursements 1,046.04 1,416,349.15
25 08/04/2023 ACH 080423 Duke Energy Collective accounts 6/3-7/2 1,388.80 1,414,960.35

08/07/2023 1091 Agnieszka Fisher BOS Meeting 8/01/23 200.00 1,414,760.35
08/07/2023 1092 Bryan Norrie BOS Meeting 8/01/23 200.00 1,414,560.35
08/07/2023 1093 Heather Hepner BOS Meeting 8/01/23 200.00 1,414,360.35
08/07/2023 1094 Holly Ruhlig BOS Meeting 8/01/23 200.00 1,414,160.35
08/07/2023 1095 Virginia B. Edwards BOS Meeting 8/01/23 200.00 1,413,960.35

26 08/07/2023 100020 ACPLM Invoice: 2023758 (Reference: Thermoplastic Striping.  ) 7,994.00 1,405,966.35
27 08/08/2023 ACH080823 Frontier FiberOptic Internet 200 static IP 7/15-8/14/23 105.98 1,405,860.37
28 08/10/2023 100021 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000172372 (Reference: Lightening Damage.  ) 457.00 1,405,403.37
29 08/10/2023 100022 ACCI Invoice: 60858 (Reference: Rack Mount Modification in Clubhouse.  ) 1,398.94 1,404,004.43
30 08/10/2023 100023 ALSCO Invoice: LTAM998178 (Reference: 11 Mats.  )  Invoice: LTAM993189 (Reference: Monthly Mat Service... 455.06 1,403,549.37
33 08/10/2023 100024 Arrow Exterminators Invoice: 52944376 (Reference: pest control.  ) 154.00 1,403,395.37
34 08/10/2023 100025 Cooper Pools Inc. Invoice: 7154 (Reference: Pool Service.  )  Invoice: 1188 () 6,563.00 1,396,832.37
36 08/10/2023 100026 Ideal Network Solutions, Inc. Invoice: 6963 (Reference: Set-up of 3 Roku Devices.  ) 285.00 1,396,547.37
37 08/10/2023 100027 Pasco Sheriff's Office Invoice: I-20237-10008 ()  Invoice: I-20238-10093 () 6,270.00 1,390,277.37
41 08/10/2023 100028 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14420 (Reference: irrigation repairs.  ) 205.70 1,390,071.67
42 08/10/2023 100029 Vanguard Cleaning Systems Of Tampa Bay Invoice: 107052 (Reference: Monthly Cleaning Service.  ) 1,950.00 1,388,121.67
43 08/10/2023 100030 Vesta District Services Invoice: 411686 (Reference: Reimb. of Billable Expenses.  ) 3,721.48 1,384,400.19
45 08/10/2023 100031 State Wildlife Trapper, LLC Invoice: 1772 (Reference: Hog removal in June.  ) 1,200.00 1,383,200.19
46 08/11/2023 1096 Terry Oakley Reimbursements 133.82 1,383,066.37
52 08/14/2023 ACH081423 Frontier Local service 7/19- 8/18/23 440.07 1,382,626.30
53 08/14/2023 ACH081423 Ready Refresh Water Service Rental 7/09 - 8/08/23 167.87 1,382,458.43
54 08/14/2023 ACH081423 Extra Space Management Inc Rent 194 238.00 1,382,220.43
55 08/15/2023 ACH081523 Frontier Local service 7/22- 8/21/23 100.99 1,382,119.44

Page 11



Pg Date Ref. Num Name Memo Expense Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Check Register - FY2023

56 08/16/2023 1097 Amber Tucker Expenses 6/6/23 - 7/10/23 407.09 1,381,712.35
71 08/17/2023 100032 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000171685 (Reference: Lightning Damage.  )  Invoice: 0000172183 (Reference: Lightening... 3,272.68 1,378,439.67
74 08/17/2023 100033 ALSCO Invoice: LTAM999855 (Reference: Mats.  ) 167.54 1,378,272.13
75 08/17/2023 100034 Brletic Dvorak Inc Invoice: 1179 (Reference: Inspection Fee.  ) 1,145.00 1,377,127.13
77 08/17/2023 100036 Fitness Logic Invoice: 114143 (Reference: General Maint - Aug 2023.  ) 110.00 1,377,017.13
78 08/17/2023 100037 GHS, LLC Invoice: 2023-382 (Reference: Monthly Weed Control.  ) 3,981.67 1,373,035.46
79 08/17/2023 100038 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14220 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance.  )  Invoice: 14439 (Reference: Lightening Damage... 27,250.00 1,345,785.46
83 08/17/2023 100039 Tampa Bay Times Invoice: 081323-6166 (Reference: Renewal.  ) 106.61 1,345,678.85
84 08/17/2023 100040 Vesta District Services Invoice: 411632 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Jun 2023.  ) 541.89 1,345,136.96
85 08/17/2023 100041 State Wildlife Trapper, LLC Invoice: 1782 (Reference: Monthly Wildlife Svc - Jul 2023.  ) 1,200.00 1,343,936.96
86 08/17/2023 100042 Cusip Global Services Invoice: CI10-00025984 (Reference: Legal Name Identification Fee.  ) 91.00 1,343,845.96
87 08/17/2023 100043 Vesta Property Services, Inc Invoice: 412226 (Reference: Personnel - Jul 2023.  ) 47,044.46 1,296,801.50

08/18/2023 1098 Grant Hemond & Associates Labor Day Pool Party 395.00 1,296,406.50
88 08/18/2023 100044 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14438 (Reference: Landscape Enhancement.  ) 1,500.00 1,294,906.50
89 08/18/2023 100045 State Wildlife Trapper, LLC Invoice: 1790 (Reference: Monthly Service - August.  ) 1,200.00 1,293,706.50
90 08/18/2023 100046 DCSI, Inc. Invoice: 31049 (Reference: RFID Bracelets for existing access control system.  ) 725.00 1,292,981.50
91 08/21/2023 1ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 20750 Wilderness Lake Blvd 6/19/23-7/18/23 31.36 1,292,950.14
92 08/21/2023 2ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 21320 Wildnerness Lake Blvd 6/19/23-7/18/23 2,004.26 1,290,945.88
93 08/21/2023 3ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr 6/19/23-7/18/23 10.29 1,290,935.59
94 08/21/2023 4ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 21922 Waverly Shores Lane 6/19/23-7/18/23 26.49 1,290,909.10
95 08/21/2023 5ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 7639 Grasmere Dr 6/19/23-7/18/23 10.29 1,290,898.81
96 08/21/2023 6ACH082123 Pasco County Utilities 0 Waverly Shores Lane 6/19/23-7/18/23 10.29 1,290,888.52
97 08/23/2023 1099 U.S. Bank Trustee Fees Series 2013 (07/01/23-06/30/24) 3,555.75 1,287,332.77
98 08/25/2023 1ACH082523 Duke Energy 06/28-07/26 14,148.81 1,273,183.96
99 08/25/2023 2ACH082523 Duke Energy 7973 Citrus Blossom Dr- Herons Glen 7/4-8/2 30.79 1,273,153.17

100 08/25/2023 3ACH082523 Duke Energy 7739 Citrus Blossom Dr- Sign Herons Wood   7/3-8/2 30.79 1,273,122.38
101 08/25/2023 100047 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000172765 (Reference: Service Call 08.03.23.  ) 278.00 1,272,844.38
102 08/25/2023 100048 ALSCO Invoice: LTAM1001563 (Reference: Mats.  ) 163.16 1,272,681.22
103 08/25/2023 100049 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Invoice: 23605 (Reference: Lightning Damage - Rewire circuit board.  ) 140.00 1,272,541.22
104 08/25/2023 100050 PSA Horticultural Invoice: 1416 (Reference: Landscape Inspection - Aug 2023.  ) 1,100.00 1,271,441.22
105 08/25/2023 100051 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14470 (Reference: Landscape Enhancement.  )  Invoice: 14471 (Reference: Landscape Enhan... 3,173.00 1,268,268.22
113 08/25/2023 100052 Waste Connections Of Florida Invoice: 6922934 (Reference: Monthly Fee - Aug.  )  Invoice: 6863444 (Reference: Monthly Fee - J... 1,895.96 1,266,372.26
115 08/25/2023 100053 Illuminations Holiday Lighting, LLC Invoice: 32823 (Reference: Holiday Lighting and Decorations.  ) 6,000.00 1,260,372.26
116 08/30/2023 100054 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000172875 (Reference: Lightning Damage - Replace maglock at tennis court.  ) 1,679.87 1,258,692.39
117 08/30/2023 100055 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Invoice: 23611 (Reference: Deposit for LED Light Fixtures for tennis courts.  ) 22,000.00 1,236,692.39
118 08/30/2023 100056 ProPet Distributors Invoice: 143393 (Reference: Dog Waste Station Supplies.  ) 1,385.80 1,235,306.59
119 08/30/2023 100057 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14472 (Reference: Replace existing plants at oak tree in the Butterfly Garden.  )  Invo... 759.00 1,234,547.59
121 08/30/2023 100058 Vesta District Services Invoice: 412474 (Reference: June Reimbursable Expenses.  ) 540.57 1,234,007.02
122 08/30/2023 100059 Business Observer, Inc. Invoice: 23-01451P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  ) 78.75 1,233,928.27
125 08/30/2023 100060 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 21823 (Reference: Rewire chandelier in Activity Center.  ) 450.00 1,233,478.27
126 08/30/2023 100061 The Laker / Lutz News Invoice: 53481 (Reference: Advertising for Class Community Yard Sale.  ) 52.00 1,233,426.27
127 08/31/2023 ACH083123 Duke Energy Collective accounts 7/4-8/2 1,426.14 1,232,000.13
128 08/31/2023 1105 Alexis Jennings Room Rental Deposit Refund (8/19/23) 250.00 1,231,750.13
129 08/31/2023 1106 Terry Oakley Reimbursements 238.97 1,231,511.16
132 08/31/2023 Interest 118.29 1,231,629.45

08/31/2023 1ACH083123 Frontier Business Fiber Internet 08/07- 09/06 249.52 1,231,379.93
08/31/2023 EOM Balance 118.29 231,049.54 1,231,379.93
09/01/2023 100062 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 000183093 () 600.00 1,230,779.93
09/01/2023 100063 Vanguard Cleaning Systems Of Tampa Bay Invoice: 107440 () 1,950.00 1,228,829.93
09/11/2023 1107 Agnieszka Fisher BOS Meeting 9/6/23 200.00 1,228,629.93
09/11/2023 1108 Heather Hepner BOS Meeting 9/6/23 200.00 1,228,429.93
09/11/2023 1109 Holly Ruhlig BOS Meeting 9/6/23 200.00 1,228,229.93
09/11/2023 1110 Virginia B. Edwards BOS Meeting 9/6/23 200.00 1,228,029.93
09/11/2023 100064 Florida Coast Equipment Invoice: P1523705 (Reference: Kubota Oil - 1 case.  ) 14.90 1,228,015.03
09/13/2023 1111 Carlos Sorriecato Room Rental Deposit Refund (4/21/23) 250.00 1,227,765.03
09/13/2023 100065 Vesta District Services Invoice: 412547 (Reference: Monthly contracted management  fees.  ) 5,473.00 1,222,292.03
09/14/2023 ACH091423 Ready Refresh Water Service Rental 8/09 - 9/08/23 39.98 1,222,252.05
09/14/2023 100066 Brletic Dvorak Inc Invoice: 1202 (Reference: Engineering Svcs.  ) 1,845.00 1,220,407.05

Page 12



Pg Date Ref. Num Name Memo Expense Deposits Disbursements Balance

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD
Check Register - FY2023

09/14/2023 100067 McNatt's Cleaners Invoice: 47960 (Reference: Laundry - Aug 2023.  ) 49.90 1,220,357.15
09/14/2023 100068 Pasco Sheriff's Office Invoice: I-20239-10173 (Reference: Security - Aug 2023.  ) 2,160.00 1,218,197.15
09/14/2023 100069 PSA Horticultural Invoice: 1409 (Reference: July 2023 Landscape Inspection.  ) 1,100.00 1,217,097.15
09/14/2023 100070 RedTree Landscape Systems Invoice: 14624 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance - Sep 2023.  )  Invoice: 14743 (Reference: August... 22,190.00 1,194,907.15
09/14/2023 100071 Vesta Property Services, Inc Invoice: 413122 (Reference: Billable Expenses.  ) 37.39 1,194,869.76
09/15/2023 100072 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000173200 (Reference: Svc Call - CCTV System.  ) 286.00 1,194,583.76
09/15/2023 100073 Fitness Logic Invoice: 114535 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance- Sep 2023.  )  Invoice: 114573 (Reference: Repla... 585.58 1,193,998.18
09/15/2023 100074 Vesta Property Services, Inc Invoice: 412695 (Reference: Personnel - Aug 2023.  ) 40,765.72 1,153,232.46
09/15/2023 100075 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 21843 (Reference: Install new heating elements in women's sauna.  ) 185.00 1,153,047.46
09/19/2023 1112 Cool Coast Heating & Cooling Inc Performed full maintenance on all 8 units 629.00 1,152,418.46
09/20/2023 1113 Grant Hemond & Associates DJ Services - Fall Festival/Oktoberfest Party (DEPOSIT) 238.50 1,152,179.96
09/21/2023 01EFT092123 Pasco County Utilities 0 Whispering Wind Dr.  6/19/238-7/18/23 411.38 1,151,768.58
09/21/2023 02EFT092123 Pasco County Utilities 0 Whispering Wind Dr.  6/19/23-7/18/23 1.85 1,151,766.73
09/22/2023 1114 Terry Oakley Reimbursements 156.60 1,151,610.13
09/22/2023 1115 Tish Dodson Reimbursements 43.87 1,151,566.26
09/22/2023 ACH092223 Waste Connections Of Florida Monthly Fee - Sep 15.42 1,151,550.84
09/25/2023 1ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 364.22 1,151,186.62
09/25/2023 2ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 20750 Wilderness Lake Blvd 7/18/23-8/17/23 31.36 1,151,155.26
09/25/2023 3ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 21320 Wilderness Lake Blvd 7/18/23-8/17/23 967.94 1,150,187.32
09/25/2023 4ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 21539 Cormorant Cove Dr 7/18/23-8/17/23 10.29 1,150,177.03
09/25/2023 5ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 21922 Waverly Shores Lane 7/18/23-8/17/23 29.73 1,150,147.30
09/25/2023 6ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 7639 Grasmere Dr 7/18/23-8/17/23 10.29 1,150,137.01
09/25/2023 7ACH092523 Pasco County Utilities 0 Waverly Shores Lane 7/18/23-8/17/23 10.29 1,150,126.72
09/25/2023 100076 A Total Solution, Inc Invoice: 0000173281 (Reference: Service Call 08.01.23.  ) 1,876.38 1,148,250.34
09/25/2023 100077 GHS, LLC Invoice: 2023-435 (Reference: Monthly Service - Sep 2023.  ) 3,981.67 1,144,268.67
09/25/2023 100078 Himes Electrical Service, Inc. Invoice: 23650 (Reference: Service Call 9/12, 9/13.  ) 175.88 1,144,092.79
09/25/2023 100079 PSA Horticultural Invoice: 1425 (Reference: September 2023 Landscape Inspection.  ) 1,100.00 1,142,992.79
09/25/2023 100080 Vesta District Services Invoice: 412408 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Jul 2023.  )  Invoice: 413151 (Reference: Billab... 6,722.80 1,136,269.99
09/25/2023 100081 Business Observer, Inc. Invoice: 23-01557P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  ) 98.44 1,136,171.55
09/25/2023 100082 State Wildlife Trapper, LLC Invoice: 1796 (Reference: Service for Sept 2023.  ) 1,200.00 1,134,971.55
09/25/2023 100083 Inteligy Tampa Bay LLC Invoice: 16931 (Reference: Hosted/Faxing Services.  ) 330.00 1,134,641.55
09/25/2023 100084 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 21862 (Reference: Replace thermostat in women's sauna.  ) 100.00 1,134,541.55
09/27/2023 3ACH092723 Duke Energy 07/27-08/28 14,485.09 1,120,056.46
09/27/2023 1116 Victoria Morgan Refund: Pool Rental Deposit 250.00 1,119,806.46
09/27/2023 1117 U.S. Bank Tax Distributions DS 2012 Tax Distributions 1,470.03 1,118,336.43
09/27/2023 1118 U.S. Bank Tax Distributions DS 2013 Tax Distributions 2,730.61 1,115,605.82
09/28/2023 1ACH092823 Duke Energy 7739 Citrus Blossom Dr- Sign Herons Wood  8/3-9/2 30.79 1,115,575.03
09/28/2023 2ACH092823 Duke Energy 7973 Citrus Blossom Dr- Herons Glen 8/3.-9/2 30.79 1,115,544.24
09/29/2023 1119 Terry Oakley Reimbursements 58.99 1,115,485.25
09/30/2023 Interest 100.49 1,115,585.74
09/30/2023 EOM Balance 100.49 115,894.68 1,115,585.74

Page 13



Date Ref. Num Name Memo Amount
10/7/2022 100722-2 Leaders Leader's Casual Furniture Co Deposit for 25 Lounge Chairs 10/22 5,000.00        
10/7/2022 100722-Leaders Leader's Casual Furniture Co Deposit for 25 Lounge Chairs 10/22 1,918.03        
10/14/2022 101422-Anova Anova Furnishings, Inc New Bench for Outdoor Use 10/22 1,102.71        
10/26/2022 104 Phoenix Pools, Inc. 50% Deposit to Start Project 10/22 12,240.00      
11/8/2022 110822-FitRev Deposit FitRev, Inc. 50% Deposit on Gym Equipment 11/22 28,708.00      
11/11/2022 8694 Cool Coast Heating & Cooling Inc. Change Out Air System 11/22 9,098.00        
9/16/2022 50-Balance Softroc of Ocala/ Tampa Balance Due - Splash Pad Resurfacing 12/22 9,735.00        
12/10/2022 121022- Leaders Leader's Casual Furniture Co Deposit for New Swing Bench 12/22 502.90           
12/29/2022 SOTAM4462 Leader's Casual Furniture Co Swing Bench 12/22 502.89           
12/11/2022 19 Construction Management Services, LLC Main Club House Splash Pad Removal 12/22 2,000.00        
2/6/2023 100314 Gaydos Hydro Services, LLC Materials for Dock Vegetation Clearing 01/23 2,146.09        
2/8/2023 020823 Leader\'s Leader's Casual Furniture Co Remaining Balance Due - Lawn Chairs 02/23 6,918.03        
2/24/2023 27585 FitRev, Inc. Gym Equipment 02/23 28,708.00      
3/6/2023 264154 Almetek Industries Catch Basins 03/23 2,624.42        
3/13/2023 031323 CK RQ ACPLM, Inc. 50% Deposit Asphalt Paving 03/23 42,705.00      
3/14/2023 20230315 CK RQ Tampa Dock & Seawall Floating Dock Deposit 03/23 20,000.00      
3/28/2023 162 Phoenix Pools, Inc. Project Completion 03/23 12,240.00      
3/28/2023 2023609 ACPLM, Inc. Asphalt Paving 03/23 42,705.00      
4/12/2023 041223-2 Site Masters of Florida, LLC 50% Deposit Construct Swales 04/23 1,700.00        
4/28/2023 042823 Debit Card Expense 04/23 1,600.00        
5/9/2023 20230509 Tampa Dock & Seawall Balance of contract 31,681.00      
5/26/2023 052623-1 Site Masters of Florida, LLC Construct Swales 05/23 1,700.00        
7/7/2023 7125 Cooper Pools Inc Service Call on Gas Heater 6,800.00        
8/31/2023 Total Capital Reserve Expenditures 272,335.07    

For the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023
Reserve Fund Expenditures

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake CDD



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 



��������	
������� �����������������������
�����	��� �!" �	##"$ �%�&'(')*�+,-./012033�4560�710301809:�;03<5�=-3<1-><�?018->03�@��A2<0125<-:25.�76BCDE?<0���4560�F51CE�G4���HIJ KL�&�
��,-./012033�4560�71030180����J�,-./012033�4560�M.8/452/�N�45603E�G4���@I�&O�O���O 
�PQKR0<��@ �S���	
���J���� P�&T:U01 V����	
	 W�X�Y'*�����$Z)�Y K�P������	
�

&[" ���H�H\�I�\���� W']��H�H\�I�\@��� �̂Z'!*5>>:_2<310>0-85U.0̀ 5<:<5.3:._<-:2D>:ab�)�K!�� BBBD5<:<5.3:._<-:2D>:a c�defgefe����hi�jikd�defjef�l�cem�nopoqr

s�tNts4�?N4utANRE�AR9D�vst?w?0>_1-<C�x�G-10�71:<0><-:2�I�H�y0C3<:20�T:5/t51z:2�?z1-2{3E�G4��IJ��7|:20}�H�H\�I�\������G5~}�H�H\�I�\@���
�
�Q ��K�P�&
��� �
� P	
� 	Q�S�
I�������?5.03 F:2<|.C�F5-2<0252>0�s{100a02< � J��D�� J��D��F:2<|.C�3018->0�>|51{0��:1�522_5.�G-10�s.51a�-23z0><-:23EG-10�?z1-26.01�-23z0><-:23�52/�U-022-5.�3a:60�/0<0><:13023-<-8-<C�<03<Ds22_5.��-10�5.51a�-23z0><-:2s22_5.�3z1-26.01�-23z0><-:2s22_5.��-10�0~<-2{_-3|01�-23z0><-:2s22_5.�G-10?0>_1-<C�s.51a�a:2-<:1-2{�B-<|��I�|1�<03<-2{T0z.5>0a02<�:��U5<<01-03��:1�<|0��-1030>_1-<C�5.51a�3C3<0aE5>>033�>:2<1:.�3C3<0aE�52/�z:B01�3_zz.-03t0>|2->5.�3_zz:1<�:2�5..�3C3<0a3��IH?018->0�>5..3t0>|2->-52�.5U:1��:1�5..�3C3<0a3�_2/01�3018->0�>:2<15><t0>|2->-52�.5U:1��:1�0a01{02>C�>5..3�v5�<01�|:_13E�B00602/352/�|:.-/5C3w��:1�5..�3C3<0a3�_2/01�3018->0�>:2<15><D

753<�/_0�5>>:_2<3�510�3_U�0><�<:�5��D@��-2<0103<�>|51{0�z01�a:2<|D�A��C:_�z5C�UC�910/-<�951/52/�>52>0.�z5Ca02<�C:_�510�103z:23-U.0��:1�5..�>|51{0�U5>6��003D�T0<_120/�A<0a�G00�:���@D��D �J��D���J��D���J��D����D��



��������		
������������� ����������������� ! �" �#$�%&'( �) !!�*#+ �,--�.��/)$ �)#$&0)#'��+12�!3&$ �4��5*#+ �6#�27�8'�����9 :;<;�=�; >?��>@A�BCDBDECEF

��������G�A@HIJ
K����LMJ�L�	�N�OM�PQ;QRSTUVWXYZ[\]̂X_̀Z[�abbc̀X_d

efghiijklf�mnnofppqrjkstjon�uvfjkhks�wxpifgp�yz�{jg|j�}jx~�����yoi�njvf�}v�n��pthif��~��{jg|j���v�~~���

���������������������������������������������������� �������¡��������¢��£¤¥¦§̈�¥©ª«¬®®�̄¢°®±�#² ��³́ ³+!�µ#&'�$0¶��5���·0�$́(#' �̧'"(7�!3&$ �4���7�¹#µ²#7�8'���9��% �#'!0�#³³ ²$�º,»�²#2µ )$!¼

�	�½�¾���� ¿�À Á��� ÂÃ�
��Ä ²$ µÅ ��Æ���������Ç����������È�60)$́'2�Ä �"&³ �Ç�Ä �"&³ �º((� !!¶������%&'( �) !!�*#+ �̧'"(É�*#)(�Ê�*#+ !7�8'���9�� � �7�.�É�� �7�.�É��¹

ËBÌÍÎCÏCCÐ�7�.�É��Ð�É��ÑÒÓÒÒ





���������	�
����
��
	��
����������������
����
	��������������������� !���!� ������"#$$�%&��'���	�(�	)��*�+�,�	��((��
���-�..������/�)��0.����/�(�	�1��12��3�(�
�/�(�	�1����	)�1�(���������	�
����
��
	��
�������������
����
	����������� ���
�

456789:�/
��� ���;2� 2�������)��1��<� ��� �������	.(� ��=������/���/
��� �� �2� 2�������.�� ������'��1���	
1��,�.
�
>�.����?��(��
(�?���(���

@ABCD#EF#&G� HIJGF#FK� LJFA� MN&IGF�/�(�	�1���
�
>�.������	)�1�(�  � �� ����;O���P�)�	�.����Q��	�(�����,�R11������>���	)�1�(�  � �� �� ��O���P���	
�R,.���(�	
�������	)�1�(�  � �� ���O������
�1�
�Q�S�)�����-��1����(�  � �� ���O������
� �����O���MN&IGF�@IA� �����O������



���������	
����������������������
���������

������������� �!��"#��� $%&'���(� )�*� "��& %+�%���

,-.�./-�011�.23456�7�������
���������
��89������
�����:

;<=>=?�@A�BC@ADE�BFGHI�JKKL�?HMNCHF�ODC@IP�QHMGC�ARNCBGS�@I�MTG�UI@MGS�OMHMGA�HISVGHNM@WNFFX�BCHWMGS�@I�JKKL�CGBXBFGS�VRMMFGA�HIS�BHIAY�ZG�ANCG�MR�HSS�IG[�OM@FF�JKKL?HMNCHF�ODC@IP�QHMGC�@I�J\R]�BHIA�HIS�ODHĈF@IP�_GHBT�@I�J\R]�BHIA�MR�XRNC�IG̀M�RCSGCY
abbcdef�gdhijklmmmnopmqorsetcubj�gdhijkl orsmmmnopmqorabfutufv�wkchl mxymqyor�z�mqymxyor{u||ue}�~�fjl mqy�oyor~j|utjkv�a��kj��l�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

_CG�@RNA�ZHFHIBG �J��Y �_HX¡GIMA�¢�£CGS@MA �J��Y �£NCCGIM�¤BM@�@MX�WCR¡�K ¢K¥¢\¦�§�K¥¢K ¢\¦ �¦¥Y¥ R̈MHF�¤BBRNIM�ZHFHIBG�HA�RW�K¥¢J\¢\¦ �¦¥Y¥ �©��ª��«�¬¬®��̄°±ª�²³���������������������¬́��́���©�������������������������¬́��́����������������������������������� µ¶�·̧¹�¹¶º»�¼½¾¾�̧¿À�Á½ÂÃ�¹¶º»º·Ä¶Å½¿Æ�ÀÂ¾½ÁÂ»½ÂÇÈ�Á½Ç½É�ºÇ�̧É�ÊÂ̧À¹ÊÂË»ÂÇÌÍÄ¶Å
ÎÏÐÍÐÑ

Ò̈Ó�_<ÓOÓ<ÔÓ�¤̈ �Q=ÕÖÓ<?ÓOO�Õ¤×Ó¤_�Y¦Ø¦Ø�£;ÕQÓÕÕ�¤ÔÓ?UÓÖ Ó�\KK¤̈Ù_¤�ÚÕ�¦¦�JØ§ ¦¥K¤ÖÖ<ÓOO�OÓ<Ô=£Ó�<ÓÛUÓÖ ÓÖ
_;�ZR̀�¦KK K£RFFGPG�OMHM@RIE�̈Ü��� Ø\

��������O=>?�U_�Ú;<�Ú<ÓÓ�¤Ü ;_¤ÝÞ�O@PI�UD�<GßN@CGS�;I�<G�GCAG�O@SG�;C��@A@M�<GHSX<GWCGATYBR¡
àáâááááãäåáæäçå�áááçææè�áááçææèá�à_FGHAG�AGIS�DHX¡GIM�MRé

µ¶Ȩ́¾�êÄÄ¶º¿É�ȩ̈¾̧¿ÄÂ�̧Ç�¶Ë�ìÐíîïíïÏ¤££;U?̈ �?UÙZÓ<�§�KKK�\ØK¥\¦ =?Ô;=£Ó�?UÙZÓ<�§�\¦=KKK�\ØK¥\¦êðµñòóêôT̈HÎ�ÝRNÞ<GHSX<GWCGATZFNG̈C@MRI�ZCHISAE�=IBY_Y;Y�ZR̀� õ�� KÕRN@A�@FFGE�×Ý�ØK\ õ§�� K
_HPG�J�RW�J

JKK\K�§KõK§Kö£ö�§§Ø§Ö§¤§£����������¥E\J 

��_<ÓÔ=;UO�Z¤Õ¤?£Ó J��Y � ¢JØ õ\��¦K ��_¤ÝÙÓ?̈ §̈Ò¤?×�Ý;U §J��Y ��� ���¥¢KJ =�\¦\��� ��<Ó?̈ ¦¥Y¥ �� ����� ���_Ó<�Ý;U<�=?Ö <U£̈ =;?OE�QÓ�Q=ÕÕ�ZÓ�£Ò¤<>=?>�̈ÒÓ�¤Ù;U?̈ �ÖUÓ�̈;�Ý;U<�ÖÓO=>?¤̈ ÓÖ�_¤ÝÙÓ?̈ �O;U<£ÓY�?;�¤£̈ =;?=O�?Ó£ÓOO¤<ÝY�



�����������

	
��������
�������������������� ���!"#�����#"������$%& $�'�()����*+��!�,��-���������%&$.��#/0&1#�"�#"��$%2/�3 �4567489:4))�;7�$�%�$������<#.1�$"�%%�)�=��8>>�6�%����$�?�$�@���$�#/�%A�+�4"��$"��#�"�.��=B@2'����2�A+-)�=��C�$@'�(.�$#1����A*��!"#��1������% 4567489 �A+A>�;9 +DE+�EA+A�;9FC� 5����+>!9�>�;9 �+E+�EA+A��F7G98;�5�C9�$�%�$������<#.1�$"�%%�)�=��8>> �� ��>9�8F4�;475 H;I F�;9 �C7!5;�$�J�/��C�"���$ K� ��*�L���?���M *N�+ A++2++ �'�++2++��"#�$�4"%?�/��$ K� ��D�L�� ����M �N++ ���2++ ���2++� :�)�589�>!9 OPQRSTUVV



�����	
��� ��� ����� ��������� ���� �������� ! ����������� �������� ! ��������� ���" #��$% ��& ��'����(�"� ���� �������� ! �)��������� ���� *��+,-�./ �(��������� ���" #��$% ��& ���"���0�1�02������� ���"� 3456789::;-�<-�.=��+-!/�>=?@�!� -=�;--�& =.� -=

�ABCBADB�EF�GHIJBAKBCC��ELB�2�MM��0�N�O�1����M����O0��02�
�-.�&�P��� =Q�R��@S�T���=&.=!�S�U-��-V�W@�X=Q =���Y?�*�@-��?Z>=,- ! =Q�[��<��� =Q?\2OO��]FHDHFHBC
+�.̂!-���$.̂�+�. =.Q��;-<@�. =�_�R�.=?���, �VS�� ���̀ ? �S�*�@-�� =QR.,���*�@. ��;--� &=.� -=�a�*b$�c?��R��< �� =QS�̀�=&-��;--�& =.� -=S�� ���̀ ? �?S�U =.��>=?@�!� -=
�defgdhf�ijkdjiig







��������	�
����������������������� ���������������������
� !"#�$%&'())*!�+))("&,--./�$&"#01 '2�3456#24&07�+))("&�,14(0(!7' 7#'8����9(7(:&0�;'(<&.&=��#'7�>("%&2?�@A��B�CB -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�F�A;3>.3$$�A,G3�9;;������F�A;3>.3$$�A,G3�HAE;�A,.;�+*A,G3$?�@A��B���$&'<("&�; 7&3456#2&& I#J�. 4& KLMNL�OPQRSNT�UNVWXPYYRW�ZMLR [Q\�]RRT8̂�̂����>,��?�_�9D,3A�������-D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂B̂����H>+$.,.?�G,>�$$,������� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂�̂����H>+$.,.?�G,>�$$,������� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂�̂����I,$�3>?�,.;>3F������� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂��̂����_p3>$?�_,--D3F�����8� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂��̂����G33.3?�Iq$-�.���C8�� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂��̂����H>+$.,.?�G,>�$$,������� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c deff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff8̂��̂����r,H+>�,qA-?�,q$-�.������� -D3��>3$3>E3�,-�FA�9;;̀�9#44a0(72�b$&"a'(72c sfeff�gh ijff klmjff knofjff����� knsifjfftuvwxyz{w�|v}~|�y{}��{�zy�v���~|}vw���v~wv��z{x~�x��z{x~�x����������������� gMT���K�RNP���T����P�Rono��ll�oodmgMT��K�RNP��T���P�R�KRN�P�RZR��RTLTj�Ttuvwxyz{w�|v}~|�y{}��~��v{x���v~wv��z{x~�x��z{x~�x����������������� gMT���K�RNP���T����P�Rono��ll�oodm

����������������������	������� ���������̂�̂�����̂Ĉ����



��������	
������
��
�������	�
��������������������������� �!"��#$%&'()*�+,-./001(�200/)-��3"��������#$%&'()*�+,-./001(�200/)-45567�89:.'�;<:=�&.*>.'?@ABB�C/:/D-E�;./F-�6-G�&*.:�H/),-=I�JK�LMNOM
PQRSTUV�WXPQRSTUV�YSZ[\XPQRSTUV�]ŜX _̀aBaLb̀cBcALdacNBeBB5f8�&H8+8Hg8�45�h_K;8H68++�K4i8�C;;&'=?-E:�5-.?(7�;<-�<j*E�.-)-/j:&k-'(-�/E)k<l-�_EF*/)-�m�/E�),-)n�)*??-E:



��������	
�����������
������������
����	�������	 ����� �	�������	 ��!"#$!%&�'�����	��(���
�)�������		������%**�+��#�	
��������
��,��(��	-�.�!�
����
���������� ��,
� �-.������/����������-0�� ��.1.0+��+-.-�.�+��+-.-�"�
��.
��*2�& 2%�!#!�3 *&,%4!��!$" 5�3 42�& 2/$6"�.0+��+-.-� 7����-.-������	����!�	��
��� � ���.. .. ���.. ..

�)��
������������
�������8�	���		9�,2�,��(��	:,���;��
����*�(�������
�����	����!�	��
���	,���������<�
�%��	��
��� =2�2"%&�*6&



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
�-�� �����	
(��.
�����	��������/-� *�$0��1��1���� &	0�-0�&�2 */0�*�$0��1��1����
3�������.
�� ��
�������������!��4��#���
��4����,�5��6�� ������7
%�
�����4�� ���8
 ��� � �����"�� �����"��$9$�	�*/0 :�����"��$�;<�29/"



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
�-�� �����	
(��.
�����	��������/-� *�$0��1��1���� &	0�-0�&�2 */0�*�$0��1��1����
3�������.
�� ��
�������������!��4��#���
��4����,�5��6�� ������.�� %���&�� �)�� ������������ � �����"�� �����"��$7$�	�*/0 8�����"��$�9:�27/"



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
�-�� �����	
(��.
�����	��������/-� *�$0��1��1���� &	0�-0�&�2 */0�*�$0��1��1����
��3����
���!��4��#���
��������3�������� 
������!��!��
���
 ����1��1����5&
�#� ������#��
����3�%������
���4�����#
6�#����
���7������ �#!��4�8�9�!
�#� ����4��#���
���4�����#
�3������7+��������
����
3������3�������!��
���%
����7�
�����#!��7�4��� � �����"�� �����"��$:$�	�*/0 ;�����"��$�<=�2:/"



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
�-�� �����	
(��.
�����	��������/-� *�$0��1��1���� &	0�-0�&�2 */0�*�$0��1��1����
3�������.
�� ��
�������������!��4��#���
��4����,�5��6�� ������-!���
� ��&�
� ����� ���7
 ��� � ���"�� ���"��$8$�	�*/0 9���"��$�:;�28/"



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
��- �����	
(��.
�����	"������ *�$/��0��0���� &	/�-/�&�1 *2/�*�$/��0��0����
.�� %���3�������.
�� ��
��� � ������"�� ������"��.�� %���+���4
 ����-�� �#�+��!�� ���� � �����"�� �����"��.�� %���
��,����$����&�����4 � �����"�� �����"������ %����������#�� %��5� %���6�����4��(��������5��� �� %���
 ����� %���������"�$%
�(����7 $8$�	�*2/ 9������"��$�:;�182"



����������	
������
����	������������������������������ ����
����
!�"��� �#���� ����
����
!���� �#�"��#$%��&��������
 �'����������	
(��)**����+� ���
 ���
��&
�(,
�-�� �����	
(��.
�����	��������/-� *�$0��1��1���� &	0�-0�&�2 */0�*�$0��1��1����
3�������.
�� ��
�������������!��4��#���
��4����,�5��6�� ������- "���6�� ����-������ ���7
 ������������ � �����"�� �����"��$8$�	�*/0 9�����"��$�:;�28/"



��������	
�������������������������������������������������	�������������� � !"#$%&'() �*+�,+����-./012)�3 �,�,��
4155�6078����������9�:���������������;	<<������=���	
<>>>����?��������	��������@����������*������A���������B�C

6)DEF&G)�&'() �*+�,+����HD0I)2(JGKF1L1'DM �����
-()EN����O���P�	�
����O�	�����Q���	R�P�	�
 &)F2D1S(10.N����O���QT
������������U��������������7	����N����O���QT
����� VE0G.(�B>�W�B>�W�B>�W 6'X�Y'()60('5 �B>�W

Z[\[]]



��������	
�������� ������������������������
�����	��� �!" �	##"$ �%�&'(')*�+,-./012033�4560�710301809:�;03<5�=-3<1-><�?018->03�@��A2<0125<-:25.�76BCDE?<0���4560�F51CE�G4����HI JK�&�
��,-./012033�4560�71030180������,-./012033�4560�L.8/452/�M�45603E�G4���@H�&N�N���N 
�OPJQ0<��@ �R���	
�S������ O�&;5.0T U����	
	 V�W�X'*�����$Y)�X J�O������	
�

&Z" ������[SH�[�SS� V'\�����[SH�[@S�S �]Y'!*5>>:̂2<310>0-85_.0̀ 5<:<5.3:.̂<-:2D>:ab�)�J!�� BBBD5<:<5.3:.̂<-:2D>:a c�defgefe����hi�jikd�defjef�l�cem�nopoqr

s�tMts4�?M4utAMQE�AQ9D�vst?w?0>̂1-<C�x�G-10�71:<0><-:2�H���y0C3<:20�z:5/t51{:2�?{1-2|3E�G4��HI��7}:20~����[SH�[�SS���G5�~����[SH�[@S�S
�
�P ��J�O�&
��� �
� O	
� 	P�R�
H�I�����?5.03 st?�{01�:1a0/�5�3018->0�>5..�:2�C:̂1�99t;�3C3<0a�:2ŝ |̂3<���E����� � S�D�� S�D��H�������?5.03 t0>}2->-52�B02<�<:�.:>5<-:2�52/�3B5{{0/�:̂<�<}0�20<B:163B-<>}�5<�<}0�}C_1-/�10>:1/01D�t0>}�801-�-0/�5..�>5a0153B010�B:16-2|�{1:{01.CD �D�� �D��H�������?5.03 @�7:1<�Q0<B:16�?B-<>} � H@D�� H@D��H�������?5.03 s2C�At�:1�71:|15aa-2|�B:16��:1�7520.3E�?0>̂1-<CE�s>>0339:2<1:.E�99t;E�Q̂130�95..E�?{0>-5.<C�:1�?018->0�B:16 � �HHD�� �HHD��H�I�����?5.03 ?C3<0a�B53�:{015<-2|�2:1a5..C�̂{:2�/0{51<̂10D �D�� �D��

753<�/̂0�5>>:̂2<3�510�3̂_�0><�<:�5��D@��-2<0103<�>}51|0�{01�a:2<}D�A��C:̂�{5C�_C�910/-<�951/52/�>52>0.�{5Ca02<�C:̂�510�103{:23-_.0��:1�5..�>}51|0�_5>6��003D�z0<̂120/�A<0a�G00�:���@D��D ���ID�����ID�����ID����D��



��������	
������� ���������������������� !"#"!$"�%&�'()*"!+"##�,%-"������'()*"!+"##�,%-"�./0)"$%!*,%+*�12�,%-"#3�4,���5�6 7��	
���89��
	�
8:;��� !"#"!$"�%&�'()*"!+"##�,%-"������'()*"!+"##�,%-"�./0)"$%!*,%+*�12�,%-"#3�4,���5�6
<=>?@AA�BCD=EFGH�IEJKL@>�MLNOPQLOARJKS�<B�FTUVV

:WXW�YZ[\�] ��][̂_"&��� �̀abc 9�[a��
�d�6����e�]f�X]d�]�����5��

gh%+-�i/0�j/!�i/0!�k0#(+"##lm+$/(n"#�/$"!����b%i#�o())�(+n0!��l�p�m+&"!"#&�q"!�r/+&h

stC?@�uVvVwVGTwTxUT <Jy�uVvVwVGTwHvvF zwRJ=L{=>LCD=E|JCLPECR

}�~�����~�~��������}���������

�
�[�9�d� ��̂�]�a
��� �Z	�
�
� :]�����	�; �[�Z�
�%(+&"+%+n" �/+&h)i��"+"!%)��%(+&"+%+n"�%+*�n)"%+(+��/j%))�"�0(qr"+&���,%k/!�1+)i��%(+&"+%+n"n/rq)"&(/+�*0!(+���"q&"rk"! � ���l�� ���l��

����l������l����l��



��������	
�������� ���������������������� !"#"!$"�%&�'()*"!+"##�,%-"������'()*"!+"##�,%-"�./0)"$%!*,%+*�12�,%-"#3�4,���5�� 6��	
���78��
	�
79:��� !"#"!$"�%&�'()*"!+"##�,%-"������'()*"!+"##�,%-"�./0)"$%!*,%+*�12�,%-"#3�4,���5��
;<=>?@@�ABC<DEFG�HDIJK?=�LKMNOPKN@QIJR�;A�ESTUU

9VWV�XYZ[�\ ��\Z]"̂&��� _�̀4. 8�Z̀ ��
�a�������b�\c�W\a�\����5���

de%+-�f/0�g/!�f/0!�h0#(+"##ij+$/(k"#�/$"!����l%f#�m())�(+k0!��i�n�j+&"!"#&�o"!�p/+&e

qrB>?�sUtUuUFSuSvTS ;Iw�sUtUuUFSuGttE xuQI<Ky<=KBC<DzIBKODBQ

{�|}~���|�|}~�}~���{}��������

�
�Z�8�a� ��]�\�̀
��� �Y	�
�
� 9\�����	�: �Z�Y�
 %!&# ,/m"!��/+&!/)�./%!* � ���i�� ���i���e(oo(+� �e(oo(+��ke%!�"#�%!"�"#&(p%&"*�%+*�#0h�"k&�&/ke%+�"i��&%+*%!*��e(oo(+��������h0#(+"##�*%f# � �5i�� �5i��,%h/! l")($"!�%+*�(+#&%))�,�.�/+�%��&%!d!%k�d!"%*p())��"!(%)��d��������,����� � ��i�� ��i��

����i������i����i��























































��������	
��
���
��

��
������������
	�
��
�����
�
�
������
�
��
�����
���
������
����� !��"#$$



CCool Coast Heating & Cooling, Inc.
7050 15th St E #30
Sarasota, FL  34243
office@coolcoast.net

IInvoice

BBILL TO

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake 
CDD
21320 Wilderness Lake Blvd
Land O' Lakes, FL  34637

IINVOICE # DDATE TTOTAL DUE DDUE DATE TTERMS EENCLOSED

9689 02/17/2023 $629.00 03/19/2023 Net 30

DATE ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

02/17/2023 MMaintenance
PERFORMED FULL MAINTENANCE ON ALL 8 
UNITS
Maintenance checklist performed including:
-checked T-stat
-checked blower wheel and fan housing
-checked evaporator coils and drain pans
-checked temp splits
-changed A/C filters
-checked and cleaned C/U coils
-cleaned and flushed drain lines
-checked AMP draw on caps and motors
-checked levels of 410A (or R22)
Checked all systems and motor operations, system 
is cooling properly at this time.
** system working at this time, no special notes
NEXT QUARTERLY MAINTENANCE DUE MAY 
2023

1 629.00 629.00

02/17/2023 FFilters
(1) 20 X 20 X 1
(6) 20 X 25 X 1
(4) 16 X 16 X1 
(2) 14 X 14 X 1
(2) 12 X 12 X 1

1 0.00 0.00

BALANCE DUE $629.00



































����� ������������������������������� ������� 	
��
���� ������� ���	��������������������������������������������������������������� �������!���������"��#��������$����!��%��������&��������'()*+'��,,('--.��/�0123456278�0279�96�*::*;<�%=>'.���*::*;<��'(*?,.�� �
�
�����
�	
�����>?�	
��
���� ����*::��@AB'(. �������
���%��C���&��� D	��E����$������!���������"�� ��������D���E�	�$	���%�%������ D���E����$�	��>*:�@->�'()F�G�=-+?�;'>�=G��G��H?;'.��$	��$�	�$�� ������� ���	�������������	���IJJKLMN�O PLQNKRST�O4USVQS�LQS�NWS�XYZ[\]\N�MLR ŜT�̂SUK_�_WSM�RV̀\M]�V�aVbRSMN�NWTKL]W�bKLT�

����������������������$����
7S_�0VNSTc�3S_STc�6SJUV\R�TVNSQc�dSSQc�VM[�JWVT]SQ�NKK̀�SddSJN�eJNf�Xc�g/ggf�4USVQS�h\Q\N�̂\NfUbiaJLTVNSQ�dKT�V[[\N\KMVU�[SNV\UQf PKMQLRaN\KM\M�NWKLQVM[QO�Kd�9VbQ6SV[9VNS6SV[9VNSjSNST�O3STh\JS 4TSh\KLQ PLTTSMN ���������((*<��?>=B:' �	�
�	
���� 	
��
����������� �����(=;-=+>*?;- ����� ����(')*?@-��*:: �������=GA';> ��$��	���4VQN�9LS ����	�@((';>��(=;-=+>*?;- �����!=>'(!=>'(��=-'��H=(<' ������!=>'(��H=(<'- ������H?@-=;,�k=:-� �l��� �����!=>'(��H=(<'- �����H?@-=;,�k=:-� �l��� �����!=>'(��H=(<'- ������H?@-=;,�k=:-� �l	��� ��	���	mKNVU�PLTTSMN�mTVMQVJN\KMQ �����memIn�oInI7P5�9p5 qrrYfs/ ��������t�=->�,@'�B=:=;+'�*-�,':*;u@';>�=;,�-@Bv'+>�>?�w@(>H'(�w''-�=;,�*AA',*=>'�,*-+?;;'+>�

�-=<'�"*->?(G!=>'( �((*<=>*?;�@<@->����� �	x@:G����� ���x@;'����� ����=G����� ���y(*:����� ���=(+H����� ���'B(@=(G����� ��x=;@=(G����� ��%'+'AB'(����� ���?)'AB'(����� ��+>?B'(����� ����'y>'AB'(����� ���
�:'=-'�('>@(;�>H*-�y?(>*?;�z*>H�y=GA';>�������������#�������y=-+?'=-Gy=G�y=-+?+?@;>Gw:�;'>{��H'+|�>H*-�B?}�*w�';>'(*;<�+H=;<'�?w�A=*:*;<�=,,('--�?;�B=+|���!��%��������&����������������������������&!�����	��&��������������� ������������������������������������������������������������ �������!���������"��#��������$����

��������++?@;>�~�� ���	����@->?A'(�~�@((';>��(=;-=+>*?;-����:=>'�w''�z*::�B'�=yy:*',�*w�y=*,�=w>'(�,@'�,=>'mKNVU�oVUVMJS�9LS9LS�9VNS �igYig/g��=->�%@'mWS�mKNVU�9LS�_\UU�̂S�SUSJNTKM\JVUUb�NTVMQdSTTS[�KM�/�igYig/g�f������	������qrrYfs/



����� ���������������������������� ������ �	�
	���� ������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��!�����"�#�$�������%��������&��������'()*+'�,,('--.��/0120�34567897::�5;<7�=>?57@;86�*AA*BC�%DE'.���*AA*BC��'(*F,.�� �	�	����
	��	�����EF��	�
	���� ����*AA��GHI'(. �����"��
��%��J��&��� K���L���#$���������������� �� ��������K
�
L��"
$����%%������ K�#�L�#��$"��#�E*A�G-E�'()M�N�D-+F�B'E�DN��N��OFB'.��$�##$
��$#�"" ��#�#"� ����������#�#"���������;PPQRST�U VRWTQXYZ�U[\Y]WY�RWY�T̂Y�_2̀abcbT�SRXdYZ�dY\Qe�ê YS�X]fbSc�]�g]hXYST�T̂ZQRĉ�hQRZ�

����������������������$
��"

9Ye�3]TYZi�:YeYZi�8YP\]bX�Z]TYWi�jYYWi�]Sa�P̂]ZcYW�TQQf�YjjYPT�>PTk�_i�/0//k�[\Y]WY�lbWbT�dbTk\hmgPRZ]TYW�jQZ�]aabTbQS]\�aYT]b\Wk VQSWRXgTbQSbS�T̂QRW]SaWU�Qj�6]hW8Y]a6]TY8Y]a6]TYnYTYZ�U:YZlbPY [ZYlbQRW VRZZYST �������DE'( ��
	��	���� �	�
	������"��"�� �����(DB-D+E*FB- ����� ����(')*FG-��*AA �������DNH'BE����	��	�� ��$�����=]\]SPY�oQZe]Za �����G(('BE��(DB-D+E*FB- ������DE'(�DE'(��D-'��OD(C' �������'p'(�'p'(��D-'��OD(C' �����
qQT]\�VRZZYST�qZ]SW]PTbQSW �����q>q;5�=;5;9V7�6?7 rs_kst ������

�-DC'� *-EF(N�DE'(GCG-E����� ��uGAN����� ��uGB'����� ���DN����� ��v(*A����� ���D(+O����� ���'I(GD(N����� ��uDBGD(N����� ��%'+'HI'(����� ���F)'HI'(����� ���+EFI'(����� ���'vE'HI'(����� ��
�A'D-'�('EG(B�EO*-�vF(E*FB�p*EO�vDNH'BE������������!�������vD-+F'D-NvDN�vD-+F+FGBENwA�B'Ex��O'+y�EO*-�IFz�*w�'BE'(*BC�+ODBC'�Fw�HD*A*BC�D,,('--�FB�ID+y������%��������&��������"�"���������������������������������"� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!�����"�#�$����

��#�#"�++FGBE�{�� ���������G-EFH'(�{�G(('BE��(DB-D+E*FB-��|�ADE'�w''�p*AA�I'�DvvA*',�*w�vD*,�DwE'(�,G'�,DE'qQT]\�=]\]SPY�6RY6RY�6]TY }m/2m/0/s�DADB+'��F(pD(,q̂Y�qQT]\�6RY�eb\\�dY�Y\YPTZQSbP]\\h�TZ]SWjYZZYa�QS�0}m/2m/0/sk� �����������rs_kst



����� ������������������������������� ������� 	
��
���� ������� ���	���������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������!��"�������#�$���� ��%��������&�������'()*+'��,,('--.��/01/2�34567897::�5;<7�=>?57@;86�*AA*BC�%DE'.���*AA*BC�'(*F,.�� �
�
�����
�	
�����EF�	
��
���� ����*AA��GHI'(. �������#
���%��J���&��� K	��L���#$������ ��������!�� ��������K���L�	��$	���%�%������ K�#�L�#��$��	#�E*A�G-E�'()M�ND-+F�B'EDN��N�OFB'.��$	##$�	�$#��� ��#�#�# ���	������#�#�#���	����;PPQRST�U VRWTQXYZ�U[\Y]WY�RWY�T̂Y�0_̀abcbT�SRXdYZ�dY\Qe�ê YS�X]fbSc�]�g]hXYST�T̂ZQRĉ�hQRZ�

����������������������$�����
9Ye�3]TYZi�:YeYZi�8YP\]bX�Z]TYWi�jYYWi�]Sa�P̂]ZcYW�TQQf�YjjYPT�>PTk�0i�/2//k�[\Y]WY�lbWbT�dbTk\hmgPRZ]TYW�jQZ�]aabTbQS]\�aYT]b\Wk VQSWRXgTbQSbS�T̂QRW]SaWU�Qj�6]hW8Y]a6]TY8Y]a6]TYnYTYZ�U:YZlbPY [ZYlbQRW VRZZYST ���������� DE'( ����
�	
���� 	
��
������������ �����(DB-D+E*FB- ����� ���(')*FG-��*AA ��"������DNH'BE���	
��
�� ��$�"������=]\]SPY�oQZe]Za �����G(('BE��(DB-D+E*FB- ����� DE'( DE'(��D-'��OD(C' ������ DE'(��*'(�� ������OFG-DB,�pDA-���q���� ����#� DE'(��*'(�� ������OFG-DB,�pDA-���q���� ��	�		 DE'(��*'(�� ������OFG-DB,�pDA-���q���� �	���� DE'(��*'(�� ������OFG-DB,�pDA-���q	��� ��	���	�'r'(�'r'(��D-'��OD(C' ��	��	�'r'(��OD(C'- ������OFG-DB,�pDA-���q���	 ������	sQT]\�VRZZYST�sZ]SW]PTbQSW ������s>s;5�=;5;9V7�6?7 tuvwkux �������

�-DC'�!*-EF(N DE'(�GCG-E����� ���yGAN����� ����yGB'����� �����DN����� ��#��z(*A����� ���#�D(+O����� ����'I(GD(N����� ��	yDBGD(N����� ���%'+'HI'(����� ��	�F)'HI'(����� ����+EFI'(����� �#��'zE'HI'(����� �#�
A'D-'�('EG(B�EO*-�zF(E*FB�r*EO�zDNH'BE������������"�������zD-+F'D-NzDN�zD-+F+FGBEN{A�B'E|��O'+}�EO*-�IF~�*{�'BE'(*BC�+ODBC'�F{�HD*A*BC�D,,('--�FB�ID+}��� ��%��������&�������������� �������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������ ��������!��"�������#�$����

��#�#�#�++FGBE���� ���	�����G-EFH'(���G(('BE��(DB-D+E*FB-����ADE'�{''�r*AA�I'�DzzA*',�*{�zD*,�D{E'(�,G'�,DE'sQT]\�=]\]SPY�6RY6RY�6]TY um/_m/2/1�DADB+'��F(rD(,ŝY�sQT]\�6RY�eb\\�dY�Y\YPTZQSbP]\\h�TZ]SWjYZZYa�QS�2um/_m/2/1k� ������������tuvwkux



����� ���������������������������� ������ ���	����
 ������� �������
�����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
����%������&������'()*+'��,,('--.��/0123�45675689:�45;<�=6�*>>*?@�%AB'.���*>>*?@��'(*C,.�� ��"����
	�������
�BC����	����
 ����*>>��DEF'(. �����!��
���%��G���&�� H��
I��
#$"������������������ ��������H	�	I��!	$��
�%�%������ H
#�I�#��$!��#�B*>�D-B'()J�K�A-+C�?'B�AK��K��LC?'.��$�##$	�"$#
!! �
#�##� �������
�
#�##��������
8MMNOPQ�R 4OSQNTUV�RWXUYSU�OSU�QZU�01[\]̂]Q�POT_UV�_UXǸ �Z̀UP�TYa]P̂�Y�bYcTUPQ�QZVNÔZ�cNOV�

����������������������$	��!	
9Ù �dYQUVe�fÙ UVe�6UMXY]T�VYQUSe�gUUSe�YP\�MZYV̂US�QNNa�UggUMQ�5MQh�0e�/i//h�WXUYSU�j]S]Q�_]QhXckbMOVYQUS�gNV�Y\\]Q]NPYX�\UQY]XSh 4NPSOTbQ]NP]P�QZNOSYP\SR�Ng�=YcS6UY\=YQU6UY\=YQU7UQUV�RfUVj]MU WVUj]NOS 4OVVUPQ �
�
�((*@��CBAF>' ��	�������
 ���	����
�
!��!	
 �
���(A?-A+B*C?- ����� ����(')*CD-��*>> �������AKE'?B���������
 ��$�����lYXYPMU�mNV̀YV\ �����D(('?B��(A?-A+B*C?- ������AB'(�AB'(��A-'��LA(@' ������:NQYX�4OVVUPQ�:VYPSYMQ]NPS �����:5:8n�l8n894<�=o< p0ih/3 ������

�-A@'��*-BC(K�AB'( �((*@AB*C?�D@D-B����
 ��qD>K����
 ��qD?'����
 ���AK����
 ���r(*>����
 ���A(+L����
 ���'F(DA(K����
 ��qA?DA(K����
 ��%'+'EF'(����� ���C)'EF'(����� ���+BCF'(����� ��'rB'EF'(����� ��
�>'A-'�('BD(?�BL*-�rC(B*C?�s*BL�rAKE'?B������������� ������rA-+C'A-KrAK�rA-+C+CD?BKt>�?'Bu��L'+v�BL*-�FCw�*t�'?B'(*?@�+LA?@'�Ct�EA*>*?@�A,,('--�C?�FA+v������%������&������
!
!�������������������������������

"�!� �����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
�

�
#�##��++CD?B�x�� �������
�D-BCE'(�x�D(('?B��(A?-A+B*C?-��y�>AB'�t''�s*>>�F'�Arr>*',�*t�rA*,�AtB'(�,D'�,AB':NQYX�lYXYPMU�=OU=OU�=YQU 3k/1k/i/2�A>A?+'��C(sA(,:ZU�:NQYX�=OU�̀]XX�_U�UXUMQVNP]MYXXc�QVYPSgUVVU\�NP�i3k/1k/i/2h� �����������p0ih/3



����� ���������������������������� ������ 	
��
���� ������� ���	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!"#"$�������%������&������'()*+'��,,('--.��/01//�2345678�9:;659�73<5�*==*>?�%@A'.���*==*>?��'(*B,.�� �
"
�����
�	
�����AB�	
��
���� ����*==��CDE'(. �����!�!
���%��F���&�� G	��H���#$"������������������ ��������G���H�	!�$	���%�%������ G�#�H�#��$!�	#�A*=�C-A'()I�J�@-+B�>'A�@J��J��KB>'.��$	##$�	"$#�!! ��#�### ���	������#�###���	����3LLMNOP�Q RNSPMTUV�QWXUYSU�NSU�PZU�0[\]̂_̂P�ONT ÙV�̀UXMa�aZUO�TYb̂O_�Y�cYdTUOP�PZVMN_Z�dMNV�

����������������������$���!�
<Ua�2YPUVe�9UaUVe�6ULXŶT�VYPUSe�fUUSe�YO]�LZYV_US�PMMb�UffULP�;LPg�0e�/h//g�WXUYSU�îŜP�̀P̂gXdjcLNVYPUS�fMV�Y]]̂P̂MOYX�]UPŶXSg RMOSNTcP̂MOÔ�PZMNSYO]SQ�Mf�kYdS6UY]kYPU6UY]kYPUlUPUV�Q9UVîLU WVUîMNS RNVVUOP �����������((*?��BA@E=' �"�
�	
���� 	
��
������!��!"	 �����(@>-@+A*B>- ����� ����(')*BC-��*== ��"�!��@JD'>A���	
��
�� ��$�"�!�mYXYOLU�nMVaYV] �����C(('>A��(@>-@+A*B>- ������@A'(�@A'(��@-'��K@(?' �������@A'(��K@(?'- "����KBC-@>,�o@=-���p���! ����!!qMPYX�RNVVUOP�qVYOSYLP̂MOS �����q;q37�m373<R5�kr5 s/1gtu ������

�-@?'��*-AB(J�@A'( �((*?@A*B>�C?C-A����� �"vC=J����� �#vC>'����� �"�@J����� �#�w(*=����� �#�@(+K����� �"�'E(C@(J����� �#v@>C@(J����� ��%'+'DE'(����� �#�B)'DE'(����� ���+ABE'(����� ��'wA'DE'(����� ���
�='@-'�('AC(>�AK*-�wB(A*B>�x*AK�w@JD'>A������������� ������w@-+B'@-Jw@J�w@-+B+BC>AJy=�>'Az��K'+{�AK*-�EB|�*y�'>A'(*>?�+K@>?'�By�D@*=*>?�@,,('--�B>�E@+{������%������&�������!�!���������������������������������"�!� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!"#"$����

��#�###�++BC>A�}�� ���	�����C-ABD'(�}�C(('>A��(@>-@+A*B>-��~�=@A'�y''�x*==�E'�@ww=*',�*y�w@*,�@yA'(�,C'�,@A'qMPYX�mYXYOLU�kNUkNU�kYPU 1j/[j/h/u�@=@>+'��B(x@(,qZU�qMPYX�kNU�âXX�̀U�UXULPVMÔLYXXd�PVYOSfUVVU]�MO�h1j/[j/h/ug� �����������s/1gtu



����� ���������������������������� ������ ���	����
 ������� �������
�����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
����%������&������'()*+'��,,('--.��/012�34567848�94�*::*;<�%=>'.���*::*;<��'(*?,.�� ��"����
	�������
�>?����	����
 ����*::��@AB'(. �����!�#
���%��C���&�� D��
E��
#$"������������������ ��������D	�	E��!	$��
�%�%������ D
#�E�#��$!��#�>*:�@->'()F�G�=-+?�;'>�=G��G��H?;'.��$�##$	�"$#
!! �
#�#"� �������
�
#�#"��������
5IIJKLM�N OKPMJQRS�NTURVPR�KPR�MWR�XYZ[\]\M�LKQ R̂S�̂RUJ_�_WRL�QV̀\L]�V�aVbQRLM�MWSJK]W�bJKS�

����������������������$	��!	
cR_�dVMRSe�6R_RSe�4RIUV\Q�SVMRPe�fRRPe�VL[�IWVS]RP�MJJ̀�RffRIM�gIMh�Xe�ijiih�TURVPR�k\P\M�̂\MhUblaIKSVMRP�fJS�V[[\M\JLVU�[RMV\UPh OJLPKQaM\JL\L�MWJKPVL[PN�Jf�9VbP4RV[9VMR4RV[9VMR7RMRS�N6RSk\IR TSRk\JKP OKSSRLM �����((*<��?>=B:' ��	�������
 ���	����
�
!����� �
���(=;-=+>*?;- ����� ����(')*?@-��*:: �������=GA';>���������
 ��$�����mVUVLIR�nJS_VS[ �����@((';>��(=;-=+>*?;- ������=>'(�=>'(��=-'��H=(<' ������oJMVU�OKSSRLM�oSVLPVIM\JLP �����ogo5p�m5p5cO8�9q8 rXjhi2 ������

�-=<'��*->?(G�=>'( �((*<=>*?;�@<@->����
 ��s@:G����
 ��s@;'����
 ���=G����
 ���t(*:����
 ���=(+H����
 ���'B(@=(G����
 ��s=;@=(G����
 ��%'+'AB'(����� ���?)'AB'(����� ���+>?B'(����� ��'t>'AB'(����� ��
�:'=-'�('>@(;�>H*-�t?(>*?;�u*>H�t=GA';>������������� ������t=-+?'=-Gt=G�t=-+?+?@;>Gv:�;'>w��H'+x�>H*-�B?y�*v�';>'(*;<�+H=;<'�?v�A=*:*;<�=,,('--�?;�B=+x������%������&������
!
!�������������������������������

"�!� �����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
�

�
#�#"��++?@;>�z�� �������
�@->?A'(�z�@((';>��(=;-=+>*?;-��{�:=>'�v''�u*::�B'�=tt:*',�*v�t=*,�=v>'(�,@'�,=>'oJMVU�mVUVLIR�9KR9KR�9VMR 2liYliji1�=:=;+'��?(u=(,oWR�oJMVU�9KR�_\UU�̂R�RURIMSJL\IVUUb�MSVLPfRSSR[�JL�j2liYliji1h� �����������rXjhi2



����� ���������������������������� ������ ���	����
 ������� �������
�����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
����%������&������'()*+'��,,('--.��/�0123456�789437�51:3�*;;*<=�%>?'.���*;;*<=��'(*@,.�� ��"����
	�������
�?@����	����
 ����*;;��ABC'(. �����!�	
���%��D���&�� E��
F��
#$"������������������ ��������E	�	F��!	$��
�%�%������ E
#�F�#��$!��#�?*;�A-?'()G�H�>-+@�<'?�>H��H��I@<'.��$�##$	�"$#
!! �
#�#"# �������
�
#�#"#�������
1JJKLMN�O PLQNKRST�OUVSWQS�LQS�NXS�YZ[\]̂]N�MLR_ST�_SVK̀ �X̀SM�RWa]M̂�W�bWcRSMN�NXTKL̂X�cKLT�

����������������������$	��!	
:S̀ �0WNSTd�7S̀ STd�4SJVW]R�TWNSQd�eSSQd�WM\�JXWT̂SQ�NKKa�SeeSJN�9JNf�Yd�g/ggf�UVSWQS�h]Q]N�_]NfVcibJLTWNSQ�eKT�W\\]N]KMWV�\SNW]VQf PKMQLRbN]KM]M�NXKLQWM\QO�Ke�jWcQ4SW\jWNS4SW\jWNSkSNST�O7STh]JS UTSh]KLQ PLTTSMN ��"���"��((*=��@?>C;' ��	�������
 ���	����
�
!���	� �
���(><->+?*@<- ����� ����(')*@A-��*;; �������>HB'<?���������
 ��$�����lWVWMJS�mKT̀WT\ �����A(('<?��(><->+?*@<- ������>?'(�>?'(��>-'��I>(=' ������nKNWV�PLTTSMN�nTWMQWJN]KMQ �����n9n15�l151:P3�jo3 pY/fgq ������

�->='��*-?@(H�>?'( �((*=>?*@<�A=A-?����
 ��rA;H����
 ��rA<'����
 ���>H����
 ���s(*;����
 ���>(+I����
 ���'C(A>(H����
 ��r><A>(H����
 ��%'+'BC'(����� ���@)'BC'(����� ���+?@C'(����� ��'s?'BC'(����� ��
�;'>-'�('?A(<�?I*-�s@(?*@<�t*?I�s>HB'<?������������� ������s>-+@'>-Hs>H�s>-+@+@A<?Hu;�<'?v��I'+w�?I*-�C@x�*u�'<?'(*<=�+I><='�@u�B>*;*<=�>,,('--�@<�C>+w������%������&������
!
!�������������������������������

"�!� �����������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ����
!"#"$��
�

�
#�#"#�++@A<?�y�� �������
�A-?@B'(�y�A(('<?��(><->+?*@<-��z�;>?'�u''�t*;;�C'�>ss;*',�*u�s>*,�>u?'(�,A'�,>?'nKNWV�lWVWMJS�jLSjLS�jWNS qigZig/g{�>;><+'��@(t>(,nXS�nKNWV�jLS�̀]VV�_S�SVSJNTKM]JWVVc�NTWMQeSTTS\�KM�/qigZig/g{f� �����������pY/fgq



��������	
�������� ������������������������
�����	�� !�"#!�	$$#%!�&�'()(*+ ,-./0123144�5671�82141291:;�<14=6�>.4=2.?=�@129.?14����A3=1236=.;36/�87BCDE@=1���5671�F62CE�G5����HI JK�'�
��-./0123144�5671�82141291������-./0123144�5671�L/905630�M�56714E�G5����H�'N�N���N 
�OPJQ1=��� �R���	
�S������ O�'<6/1T U����	
	 V W X(+�����%Y* X J�O������	
�

'Z#! �����[SH�[�SS� V(\�����[SH�[�S�S �]Y("+6??;̂3=421?1.96_/1̀ 6=;=6/4;/̂=.;3D?;ab *�J"� BBBD6=;=6/4;/̂=.;3D?;a c�defgefe����hi�jikd�defjef�l�cem�nopoqr

s�tMts5�@M5utAMQE�AQ:D�vst@w@1?̂2.=C�x�G.21�82;=1?=.;3�H���y1C4=;31�z;60t62{;3�@{2.3|4E�G5��HI��8};31~����[SH�[�SS���G6�~����[SH�[�S�S
�
�P ��J�O�'
��� �
� O	
� 	P�R�
H�I�����@6/14 st@�{12�;2a10�6�4129.?1�?6//�;3�C;̂2��.21�6/62a�4C4=1a�;3ŝ |̂4=��E����� � S�D�� S�D��H�I�����@6/14 t1?}3.?.63�B13=�=;�/;?6=.;3�0̂1�=;�=2;̂_/1�;3�=}1�210�xB}.=1�{631/�6/4;�?1//�=2;̂_/1�6�=12�/.|}=3.3|�4=2.71D�t1?}�;̂30�{};31�/.314�B121�?}63|10�;912�=;�<MA8�630�6//�{;.3=4.3��.=3144�?13=12�B121�;̂=�_1?6̂41�;��T;31�1�{63012D�8};31{2;9.012�B.//�a671�?;331?=.;3�=;�B.21�B1�{2;9.010�6=>a627D�s/4;E�B.//�3110�=;�;2012�6�T;31�1�{63012��;2��.=3144?13=12�85���?.2?̂.=�630�{12�;2a��̂2=}12�=2;̂_/14};;=.3|D �D�� �D��H�������@6/14 �/1?=2;3.?�t1?}3.?.63�56_;2 �D� �H�D�� ���D��H�I�����@6/14 st@�{12�;2a10�6�4129.?1�?6//�;3�C;̂2��.21�6/62a�4C4=1a�;3ŝ |̂4=���E����� � H�D�� H�D��H�I�����@6/14 t1?}3.?.63�B64�;3�4.=1�=;�21{/6?1�=}1�T;31�1�{63012�.3�=}1�.=3144�?13=12�06a6|10�_C�6�/.|}=3.3|�4=2.71�630�?}1?7�=}14C4=1a�4�?;aâ3.?6=.;3�=2;̂_/1D�t1?}�21{/6?10�=}1�T;311�{63012�630�6//�T;314�B121�?/162D�t1?}�?}1?710�4C4=1a{2;|26aa.3|�630�B.=}�:13=26/�@=6=.;3E�?;3�.2a10�=}1C�B12121?1.9.3|�4.|36/4D�t}1�?;aaD�=2;̂_/1�B;̂/0�3;=�?/162�̂3=./=}1�{631/�B64�2141=D�t1?}�?;221?=10�=}1�06=1�630�=.a1�;3�=}1{631/D �D�� �D��

'(� ��



��������	
�������� ������������������������
�����	�� !�"#!�	$$#%!�&�'()(*+ ,-./0123144�5671�82141291:;�<14=6�>.4=2.?=�@129.?14����A3=1236=.;36/�87BCDE@=1���5671�F62CE�G5����HI JK�'�
��-./0123144�5671�82141291������-./0123144�5671�L/905630�M�56714E�G5����H�'N�N���N 
�OPJQ1=��� �R���	
�S������ O�'<6/1T U����	
	 V W X(+�����%Y* X J�O������	
�

'Z#! �����[SH�[�SS� V(\�����[SH�[�S�S �]Y("+6??;̂3=421?1.96_/1̀ 6=;=6/4;/̂=.;3D?;ab *�J"� BBBD6=;=6/4;/̂=.;3D?;a c�defgefe����hi�jikd�defjef�l�cem�nopoqr

s�tMts5�@M5utAMQE�AQ:D�vst@w@1?̂2.=C�x�G.21�82;=1?=.;3�H���y1C4=;31�z;60t62{;3�@{2.3|4E�G5��HI��8};31~����[SH�[�SS���G6�~����[SH�[�S�S
�
�P ��J�O�'
��� �
� O	
� 	P�R�
H�I�����@6/14 s01a?;�u3.91246/�<[{/1���.|}=��;31���{63012 � �S�D�� �S�D��H�������@6/14 �/1?=2;3.?�t1?}3.?.63�56_;2 H �H�D�� �I�D��H�I�����@6/14 st@�{12�;2a10�6�4129.?1�?6//�;3�C;̂2��.21�6/62a�4C4=1a�;3ŝ |̂4=���E����� � H�D�� H�D��H�I�����@6/14 t1?}3.?.63�21=̂2310�0̂1�=;�?;aaD�=2;̂_/1�3;=�?/162.3|Dt1?}�?;331?=10�=;�=}1�{631/�630��;̂30�{2;|26aa.3|�=;�_1?;221?=E�630�{631/�413=�=14=�4.|36/4�9.6�=}1�{};31�/.31D:̂4=;a12�21?13=/C�B13=�=;�<MA8�4129.?1D�t}1�{631/�B64?;aâ3.?6=.3|�B.=}�:13=26/�@=6=.;3E�_̂=�B64�3;=�|1==.3|7.44;���4.|36/�B}.?}�?6̂414�=}1�4C4=1a�=;�?;3=.3̂6//C�0.6/3̂=./�|;14�.3=;�?;aaD��6./̂21D�t1?}�4{;71�B.=}�{};31{2;9.012�630��;̂30�=}1�?̂4=;a12�â4=�4B.=?}�=;�63�636/;|{};31�;2�a.|26=1�=;�6��.21�26=10�?1//�?;aâ3.?6=;2D �D�� �D��

H�������@6/14 �/1?=2;3.?�t1?}3.?.63�56_;2 � �H�D�� ���D��H�������@6/14 s�G;//;B[̂{�4129.?1�?6//�B.//�_1�21�̂.210�=;�?;a{/1=1�21{6.2Dst@�=;�4130�6��̂;=1��;2�6�?1//�?;aâ3.?6=;2D �D�� �D��
'(� ��

864=�0̂1�6??;̂3=4�621�4̂_�1?=�=;�6��D���.3=1214=�?}62|1�{12�a;3=}D�A��C;̂�{6C�_C�:210.=�:620630�?63?1/�{6Ca13=�C;̂�621�214{;34._/1��;2�6//�?}62|1�_6?7��114D�z1=̂2310�A=1a�G11�;����D��D ��E��ID����E��ID����E��ID����D��



��������	
����������������������������������� !�"�!���	
�#�$%�!��""�&	'��(���)���*$%� 	"��+�,-�
�����#�"$�.�(�	/�$+�0&������11123�"����!��4��
	$2��4 2*2�5�6���)��,
� �
�!"7-!3+�0&���8��
 !�9��
�#& �,�!����" 2*2��� �-���	
����������� !�/�"	$��������� ,�!������	
��:-3-"
�����

;�<=>?=>=����@A�B=CD��<EFGH�I�<EJKLMNOP�QRN�STPUTO�VW�QKLX�YZ�TO[YT\TO]�QKPN

��"�!�/
����	"'�� :4�-�
 !�9��
�(�4/$222�̂�
�$.�:_-	
���#��%�(��
!�$� !�3!	4�	"'�� �+)8�2���2̀8a(�44-���	
����	�%�0��$%�b����1"�1�
��#& ,
	cc���(���	"'�� �̀ 2̀̀8�2̀8a !��	
��b�"�%��
�(��"-$
	
����	"'�� �̀2���2̀8a#�
$	�%�d-�"	����e6�
���,/����"�b�%-�
����	"'�� )8�2���2̀8a
Jfghig�jhkg�hff�lmglki�nhohpfg�qr�]UX�NstuvrsjgsqhfPmgvg�wuff�pg�h�xWy�lmhvzg�ngv�jrsqm�rs�hso�nhojgsqivglgutg{�h|qgv�qmg�usuquhf�VW�{hoi}�T|�or~�mhtg�hso��~giqursilrslgvsusz�qmui�ustrulg�nfghig�lrsqhlq�~i�hq�������������}PUKO��LYR�ZY��LYR���RXTONXX� �����������������������



��������	
�������� �������������������� !"#�$%!"&%'"�( &)%' !����*+" &+#"%,+#-�.#&/0#1(2%" ���34#/ �5#&16�74����8�� 9:�;���.& ! &) �#"�<%-= &+ !!�4#/ !������<%-= &+ !!�4#/ �>-)=?4@46�74
A%B !�C- '"&%'#-�( &)%' 6�*+'?.?�@?�>,D����42"E6�7-,&%=#�����3

F�GH�IGJ�G����� KLG�:	M��IGJ�G ��GNMO "��� �L���	
��������� P�;QRA

ST#+/�1,2�U,&�1,2&�V2!%+ !!?
K:����W3��X���X���8 Y	Z�W3��X���X�88�

[�\]̂_]̂]����̀a�b]cd��\efgh�i�\e

jL	�
�
k ��M�G�;
��� P	
� lN�L�
�( &)%' �m#--����6���� ��?�� ��?���C- '"&%'%#+ ��?�� ��?���5#" &%#-!�X���X#Bn�U2! ��?�� ��?33S&,2V- !T,"�n,0 &�U,&�0 --�n2Bn�#"�'-2V�T,2! ?o n-#' =���V#=�U2! ?��4 U"���!n#& !�%+�=%!',++ '"?p--�0,&/�%!�',Bn- " ?
q�8�?33q�8�?33q�?��



��������	
�����������
������������
����	�������	 ����� �	�������	 ��!"#$!%&�'�����	��(���
�)�������		������%**�+��#�	
��������
��,��(��	-�.�!�
����
���������� ��,
� �-.������/����������-0�� ��-�.1+--+-.-��.+--+-.-�"�
��.
��*2�& 2%�!#!�3 *&,%4!��!$" 5�3 42�& 2/$6"�.1+-�+-.-� ,��
��7���-.-������	����!�	��
��� � ���.. .. ���.. ..

�)��
������������
�������7�	���		8�,2�,��(��	9,���:��
����*�(�������
�����	����!�	��
���	,���������;�
�%��	��
��� <2�2"%&�*6&



��������	�
����
��
	��
�������������
����
	������������������ !���!� ��"#$%&'()*+, ��-� -����./0123,�4 � ����5266�71�8���	�9�	:��;�<�=�	��99��
���>�??������@�:��A?BBBC-��D�9�
�@�9�	�C����	:�C�9��������	�
����
��
	��
�����������
����
	���������� EFGHIG�JGKLM�EHNKGOM�MP�QPJEPJHMG�RGHSTUHJMGJIVWGIMH�SLIMJLQM�IGJWLQGIXYZ�W[\]̂�E_Z̀[_]a�I[_bcX[\d�LeXfghi�Jcb[_\cj[�Hb[ek[d�Ikc][�lmmn̂Xo\Zebcpp[d�qF�lggmg./�r,s,t,/3,�71u5266*v6,�wxy,/z,z�{�|}6�~�~�),z3t2y+21/���	
��A
C��!��<��!����	
���������@
==��!��?
��!�<��9������<����!��<��!��
���B���<����!��<����
���B���<����!��<��!��
���B���AA��9�������!��<��!���AA��9>�������>����>��!��<��!���
9���	��	
?�������!��<��!�>	
����
�	�������@D���������!��<���>	
����
�	��=��<����!��<������!������!��<��������!��<��!����	����?��������!��<��!�>	
����
�	�������!��<��!���9�=������	:�C�9��������!��<��!����	����?��!�������!��<�������������������!��
��	��C����	��A�	
����9������������������!��
��	��C����	��A�	
����9�����!������!��<��!����	����?��������!��<��!�������������AA��9��
�����A��9�9���C8����
���9� ����	��
=��	
A�=�������9���9�
�����
��	��
���9@�����8���C�A9��
C	��C�9����8�=�	�������	9�9�A�	�9C	����	�98����8��	�
��CC�
��	���� ����
C������	�C
	�	�=�����8�
:��=�����
9����
�A���A
=9���>���>�������>������>������������@��D�@�D�@�����@��	���������?����������
A�	����<8������������C9�����C8�<������98�������������
=���
C���	��
�?
�����	��?
��CA
A�	�8
�=������	����
���
�����A��9�9

�}*/+2+�                     
r*+, ��1}/+���B�� � B�� ��B�� ��B�� ��B��  �B��� B����B����B�� �B����B��� B����B��� B����B����B � �B�� �B�� �B�� �B���B�� ��B���� B �� B��  B�� ��B �  �B�����B��71+*6 ���� B��

































���������	
������������� ������
�������������������� �!�����""�� #����� �$$$%&!&'��%��!(��� &� )��%

*&+��
��,��-� &.�/�,���� &0 12%32

�4556�78�9 �:;�<=78�8=><? �:�>5@;?=�A;8= �:�>5@;?=A�B� �:C�9 �D6?8�5=78=> �EF�56A= �F65;8G67 �HG��;B�=�I�67HG��;B�=J=KG?8=>=A�B�?G7=??�7;<=L�� &�*��"�� M�N�������HG���86L�� &�*��"�� M�N�������O  �P�O����� ��*&M&/.�Q3R�S������T��O�����N�� ��UVVW&�X�����..�#��.���T&�UQQVQY@GZ�86-��[�\�/���Q]UQV�̂�_\̀ Sà NN�_Ob̀ �c_L\_Oa\�d�_Ob̀ N#��_�U3eUf)f2fg

c�..&/.�d [��P�N"���,M����*d����.TRgV]V�*&���-[��)\N\#\*�h#��&�a�� [�&� *̂ _-��[�\�/���UV)W��)QVQUa� �UVOQ\*NUN-3ai-c*j7k6G5=�?�<<;>�� �!���/ � &.�/�,���� &0 12%32N[�""��+�l�[&�T.��+ 1V%VV*��!���l�T������ � 1V%VV-� &.�/�,���� &0 12%32-&0 1V%Rg4<6�78�A�= m�n�opYq:;��B�r�=58>67G5�s�7A?�8>;7?s=>�tr��I4DuIvG>=w4556�78�7;<= O!&'���x&"� &.�N�������#����%H;7y�7;<= ^�..���&�+��c&�X4Du�>6�8G7K�9�t4H4w ]Q]VVVQ32H;7y�;556�78�9�tqq4w 3]eUV3]V3]f]2UgeQ�Yvj���56A=�tzG>=�8>;7?s=>w ^�c�{NeN���.�T��O!&'�������������!/��|�}���� [��T�����" ����,��.T��,�M�����.�� �����,��T�� �&��,���"&M!�� #����!̀&�.�&�)/���������������+~&!&'��%��!� ����/!� �M������!�  &����T� &�.%
D@=5yO!&'���x&"� &.�N�������*d�c�0�VUR]23N�&  .�#�̂O�g2]Q3)R]23

����������������������������

j7k6G5=�A=8;G�?q=?5>GZ8G67 �8� p7G8�Z>G5= j8=<�?�B868;�B=s6>=�8;� �;�] c���[�d�c&..�����]VV�h���&T��S&"�T)��..��+�N�.,)N�&.��+�̂& ��c&..�����/M��{S{#�|��T�.P�Re]]Q�}�ON�aPcVf\�-R\Nx N�.T�/MP�O!&'��%��!�N��������__xd�T���	�]]Q)RR3RU]U)32Qee33 ] 12%32 12%32 f%VVV�



��������	
������������������

�����������

��� ����� !"#$%�&#' (�)*+� ,-�."/�0-�%12�3143#41%'&56�7�8�988:7;<<===��>�?�����><�:<9�@:<�A78�>�B<C�7:@�D�98>@<B��E9:F@��8�GF7�HI��EJ�KLM��C��CEN�N�OPQ��."/�1R'�&0S0%14�TR"&#3%-�1$&�-'RU03'-�%12'&56�7�8�988:7;<<===��>�?�����><�:<9�@:<�A78�>�B<C�7:@�D�98>@<B��E9:F@��8�GF7�HI��EJ�KLM��C��CEN�N�VGPV�



���������	

������������ �����
������������������� !"�#���! $$��"%���!�"�&&&'(#()��'��#*���"(�"+ !'

,(-��
��.��

�/001�23�4 �56�7823�3897: �5�90;6:8�<638 �5�90;6:8<�=� �5>�4 �?1:3�082389 ��@�01<8 �@1063A12 �BA��6=�8�C�12BA��6=�8D8EA:3898<�=�:A28::�2678F�!"(�,��$��"G�H������!BA���31F�!"(�,��$��"G�H������!I""�J�I��� �"!�,(G(KL�MNO�P����!�Q��I��� �H �"��RSST(�U!����LL�%��L���Q(�RMMSMV;AW�31X�!Y�Z�K!��M[RMS�\�]Ẑ P_̂ HH�]Ì �̂a]FZ]I_Z�b�]Ì Ĥ%��]�RNcRd+dedf

a�LL(KL�b"Y��J�H$���.G����,b����LQb"Y��J�H$���.G����,b����LQ_��"Y�(!",\]X�!Y�Z�K!��[d+T L+MSMR_�"�RSIMZ,HRHXN_gXa,h2i1A08�:�7769��"�#�! K"�"(L�K�.����"(j k[Rf'MRHY�$$��-�l�Y(�QL��- k S'SS,��#�!�l�Q�!�� �"! k S'SSX�"(L�K�.����"(j k[Rf'MRX(j k f'dR/71�23�<�8 m
n�op�qV�56��=�r�803912A0�s�2<:�3962:s89�tr�uC/?vC�A98w/001�23�2678 I#()���x($�"(L�H������!%����'B62y�2678 \�LL!��(�-��a(�U/?v�91�3A2E�4�t/B/w [M[SSSMNeB62y�6001�23�4�t��/w N[cRSN[SN[d[eRfcM�V�h�u�01<8�tzA98�3962:s89w \�a�{HcH���L Q��I#()������������ #K��|!}����"Y��Q�!���$"����.��LQ��.�G� ���L��"�����. �Q!�"�(�!.���$(G#��"%����#̂(�L�(�+K !���!!��������-~(#()��'��#�"��! K#�"�G� ����#�""(����Q�"(�L'
?;80yI#()���x($�"(L�H������!,b�a�j�SRO[eNH�(""L�%�\I�fe[MN+O[eN

������������������������������

h2i1A08�<836A�:�8:09AW3A12 �3� q2A3�W9A08 h387�:�=3136�=8s198�36� u6�[ Z�j���ORRexZ�,��.��X� �Y���"�x $!��,($����e�)��x�..����()�|x(!���.�[SSS} �IH�_JaSS�M,Z]Px H�LQ�KGJ�I#()��'��#�H������!�]]xb�Q���	�[[M+[fcROOc+MMfMMMc [ k[SM'Sc k[SM'Sc d'SSS�



��������	

�����������������

�����������

����������������  !"#$%"���  #$&"'()*+,�-*. /
0123�
�.45678,7)+ 9,: ;+7,�8675. <,.(�4*=,),>?=.@)6.�,>A B>A% C��D����"����E�F$G�!!�H��I����J����K��L���M�������N�O�����J���K��L������P������Q���K��L���J�����L�J����K��L��P����P����J���K��L�������R���S��T��S�I��HJ�UV�WX&YGGZJF� J��L��IV�CH[D\HY�]SS�O\�̂�C��\_]�L���	�!!%̀!#Z"GGZ̀%%#%%%Z !  !Z$!#  !Z$!# &$XXXa

" S�RE��P�JRQ���J��R��W�RPb�c��b�]�������O�������̀�O����P���L_��L���d�P�Y�Q������������RTPN�!Z�d�Ŵe\�HJ�UV�WXX!WfM]G\ J��L��IV�HT�d��$��T�J������P�̂̂ O]�L���	�!!%̀!#Z"GGZ̀%%#%%%Z %  !X$f#  %X$#F &$XXXa
�'94�g)h�74�,>A�5>?5*?>,.-iM�P���b��QPVjjccc$�T�d��$��Tj�Qjb��Qj�RP��T��jL�PQ��I$b�T�j���kbQl�����flP��m��ke�SFn��L��Lk%X%X"Z!#Xg)h�>6.�-7o7,>?�86)-*5,4�>+-�4.6p75.4�,>A.-iM�P���b��QPVjjccc$�T�d��$��Tj�Qjb��Qj�RP��T��jL�PQ��I$b�T�j���kbQl�����flP��m��ke�SFn��L��Lk%X%X&fZ&X



���������	
������������� �����
������������������� !"�#���! $$��"%���!�"�&&&'(#()��'��#*���"(�"+ !'

,(-��
��.��

�/001�23�4 �56�7823�3897: �5�90;6:8�<638 �5�90;6:8<�=� �5>�4 ��1:3�082389 �?@�01<8 �@1063A12 �BA��6=�8�C�12�BA��6=�8�8DA:3898<�=�:A28::�2678E�!"(�,��$��"F�G������!BA���31E�!"(�,��$��"F�G������!H""�I�H��� �"!�,(F(JK�LMN�O����!�P��H��� �G �"��QRRS(�T!����KK�%��K���P(�QLLRLU;AV�31W�!X�Y�J!��LZQLR�[�\Y]Ô ]GG�\H_]�̀\EY\Ĥ Y�a�\H_]G%��\�QMbQc+cdce

�̀KK(JK�a"X��I�G$���.F����,a����KPa"X��I�G$���.F����,a����KP�̂�"X�(!",[\W�!X�Y�J!��Zd+S K+LRLQ�̂"�QRHLY,GQGWM̂ fẀ ,g2h1A08�:�7769��"�#�! J"�"(K�J�.����"(i jLLN'QQGX�$$��-�k�X(�PK��- j L'ee,��#�!�k�P�!�� �"! lj L'eemW�"(K�J�.����"(i jLLN'QQW(i j ZN'cc/71�23�<�8 n�
o
� pUq56��=�r�803912A0�s�2<:�3962:s89�truvC/��CwA98x/001�23�2678 H#()���y($�"(K�G������!%����'B62z�2678 [�KK!��(�-��̀(�T/���91�3A2D�4�t/B/x ZLZRRRLMdB62z�6001�23�4�tqq/x MZbQRMZRMZcZdQebL�Uwguv�01<8�t{A98�3962:s89x [�̀ �|GbG���K P��H#()������������ #J��l!m����"X��P�!���$"����.��KP��.�F� ���K��"�����. �P!�"�(�!.���$(F#��"%����]#(�K�(�+J !���!!��������-}(#()��'��#�"��! J#�"�F� ����#�""(����P�"(�K'
�;80zH#()���y($�"(K�G������!,a�̀�i�RQNZdMG�(""K�%�[H�edZLM+NZdM

~�����������������������������

g2h1A08�<836A�:q8:09AV3A12 �3� p2A3�V9A08 g387�:�=3136�=8s198�36� v6�Z �,�MZMH�̀K(�T�W�����y(�"��P-����[��T!�&�"X��,�y�K���\(!��S�"]�"��$��!���MNNP�%���,��MdR.���,�y�K���\(!��S�"�,����MNMG����!%��,�y�K���\(!��S�"�,������HG�̂IR̀cON[N�M\ G�KP�JFI�H#()��'��#�G������!�\\ya�P���	�ZZL+ZZcMLeL+ZZdedQc Z jdd'QM jdd'QM c'RRR�



��������	
������������������

�����������

����������������  !!"#$$���  %"#&&'()*+,�-*. /�
0
1
2.34567,6)+ �,8 9+6,�7564. :,.(�3*;,),<=;.>)5.�,<? @<?! A���B�CD�B�E�FG��������������HFI�J��F�$K���$KI�$#"K��$#"KI�LK���LKM�D�H����NOD����N�P������FI�!K��Q��G�&!K������R��ST���Q�����H�RN�UVEWXYTNEAZ"N��H��BV�[D���\Q�D]DM��̂ ���DNQ���̂ ��]�DY���[���N�_�H���	�%%!S%W$%X$&S&XW"W"̀ %  %$̀#XX  %$̀#XX &#WWWa

$ NQ�bb����c�Q��H����  !#XX &#WWWaL ���d�����F�c�H�F��D��F e !#XXf &#WWWa
g'�3��)h�63�,<?�4<=4*=<,.-ij�F���Q��bFVkklll#�d�P��#��dk�bkQ��bk�DF��d��kH�Fb��B#Q�d�k���mQbn�����LnF��o��mp�JZc��H��Hm!W!W$̀%XW�)h�<5.�-6q6,<=�75)-*4,3�<+-�3.5r64.3�,<?.-ij�F���Q��bFVkklll#�d�P��#��dk�bkQ��bk�DF��d��kH�Fb��B#Q�d�k���mQbn�����LnF��o��mp�JZc��H��Hm!W!W&L̀&W



���������	
������������� �������������������������� !�"��� �##��!$��� �!�%%%&'"'(��&��")���!'�!*� &

+',��
��-��.�!'/�0�-����!'1 2334&56.'1 26&76

�899:�;<�= �>?�@A;<�<AB@C �>�B9D?CA�E?<A �>�B9D?CAE�F� �>G�= �H:C<�9A;<AB �IJ�9:EA �J:9?<K:; �LK��?F�A�M�:;LK��?F�ANAOKC<ABAE�F�CK;ACC�;?@AP� !'�+��#��!Q�R������ LK���<:P� !'�+��#��!Q�R������ S!!�T�S�����! �+'Q'0/�UVW�X���� �Y��S�����R��!��7ZZ['�\ ����//�$��/���Y'�7UUZU]DK̂�<:.� _�̀�0 ��U37UZ�a�b̀ cXdcRR�bSec�fbP̀bSd̀ �g�bSecR$��b�7Vh75*5654

f�//'0/�g!_��T�R#���-Q����+g����/YW4Z3Z�+'  �._��*̀R̀ $+̀�i$��'� �'/d��!_�' !Tj��!+ab.� _�̀�0 ��U6*[�/*UZU7d�!�7ZSÙ +R7R.Vdk.f+l;m:K9A�C�@@?B��!�"� �0!�!'/�0�-����!'1 2334&56R_�##��,�n�_'�Y/��, 2 Z&ZZ+��"� �n�Y� ����! 2 Z&ZZ.�!'/�0�-����!'1 2334&56.'1 2 6&768@:�;<�E�A o
��p
qr]s>?��F�t�A9<B:;K9�u�;EC�<B?;CuAB�vt�wM8HxMyKBAz899:�;<�;?@A S"'(���j'#�!'/�R������ $����&L?;{�;?@A a�// ��'�,��f'�\8Hx�B:�<K;O�=�v8L8z 3U3ZZZUV6L?;{�?99:�;<�=�vss8z V3h7ZV3ZV353674hU�]yl�w�9:EA�v|KBA�<B?;CuABz a�f�}RhR���/�Y��S"'(�������������"0��~ �����!_��Y� ���#!����-��/Y��-�Q�����/��!�����-��Y �!�'� -���#'Q"��!$����c"'�/�'�*0� ���  ��������,�'"'(��&��"�!�� �0"�!�Q������"�!!'����Y�!'�/&
HDA9{S"'(���j'#�!'/�R������ +g�f�1�Z7W36VR�'!!/�$�aS�463UV*W36V

������������������������������

l;m:K9A�EA<?K�CsAC9BK̂<K:; �<� r;K<�̂BK9A l<A@�C�F<:<?�FAu:BA�<?� w?�3 .��\������[�"0��.��/�!�+'#���X�//�a_�!��.U$�SY�'���Y$�U*+/Q$�3U�15W3�$�3UZUVVZU �SR�dT�fZ53P�b..W R�/Y�0QT�S"'(��&��"�R������ �bbjg�Y���	�33U*77UWWU4*VW73VV7 U 2W4&64 2334&56 5&ZZZ�



��������	
������������������

�����������

������� �! "
�#$
%��&'�(�)�*'��+,�-+.-�.+�! /0�1�2�322415667778�9�:��8��96�463�;46�<12�9�=6>�14;�?8329;6=��@34A;��2�BA1�CD��@EFGHI��>��>@JKJKLMNOK(�)�+P!� *Q*�+.�RP� �-�'�+� �'!PS*-!'��+,! /0�1�2�322415667778�9�:��8��96�463�;46�<12�9�=6>�14;�?8329;6=��@34A;��2�BA1�CD��@EFGHI��>��>@JKJKTBMTK



���������	
�������������� ������
�������������������� �!�����""�� #����� �$$$%&!&'��%��!(��� &� )��%

*&+��
��,��

�-../�01�2 �34�5601�16758 �3�7.9486�:416 �3�7.9486:�;� �3<�2 ��/81�.60167 �=>�./:6 �>/.41?/0 �@?��4;�6�AB/0�@?��4;�6�6C?81676:�;�8?0688�0456D�� &�*��"�� E�F�������@?���1/D�� &�*��"�� E�F�������G  �H�G����� ��*&E&IJ�KLM�N������O��G�����F�� ��PQQR&�S�����JJ�#��J���O&�PKKQKT9?U�1/V��W�X�I���KYPKQ�Z�[X\N]\FF�[Ĝ \�_[DX[G]X�̀�[Ĝ \F#��[�PLaPb)bcbd

_�JJ&IJ� ̀W��H�F"���,E����*̀ ����JO ̀W��H�F"���,E����*̀ ����JO�&J]�� W�&� He�� *Z[V��W�X�I���Kb)R�J)KQKP]� �PQGKX*FPFVL]fV_*g0h/?.6�8�5547�� �!���I � &J�I�,���� &i jYYY%LMFW�""��+�k�W&�OJ��+ j Q%QQ*��!���k�O������ � j Q%QQV� &J�I�,���� &i jYYY%LMV&i j b%cQ-5/�01�:�6 l

mn�opT34��;�q�6.17/0?.�r�0:8�17408r67�sq�tA-�uA�?76v-../�01�0456 G!&'���e&"� &J�F�������#����%@40w�0456 Z�JJ���&�+��_&�S-�u�7/�1?0C�2�s-@-v YKYQQQKLc@40w�4../�01�2�s-v LYaPQLYQLYbYcPdaK�T�g�t�./:6�sx?76�17408r67v Z�_�yFaF���J�O��G!&'�������������!I��z�{���� W��O�����" ����,��JO��,�E�����J�� �����,��O�� �&��,���"&E!�� #����\!&�J�&�)I���������������+|&!&'��%��!� ����I!� �E������!�  &����O� &�J%
�96.wG!&'���e&"� &J�F�������*̀ �_�i�QPMYcLF�&  J�#�ZG�dcYKL)MYcL

}~����������������������������

g0h/?.6�:614?�868.7?U1?/0 �1� p0?1�U7?.6 g165�8�;1/14�;6r/76�14� t4�Y �*\[��a�*���a����W�Z��J�*�J��W��+�_�,,��+�*&O�*�J��W��+�_�,,��+ZW��J�,���X��JJ�_�,,���G  &�W!�� �$� W��YL�X��JJ�GO&" ���GF�]H_Qc_f�*YKN F�JO�IEH�i���E���̀O���	�YYK)QQMbKYY)cbMbcKc Y jYP%dd jYP%dd b%QQQ�



��������	
�������������������

�����������

���������������� �   !"#��� �$!%&'()*+,�-*. /

01�2
.34567,6)+ 8,9 :+6,�7564. ;,.(�3*<,),=><.?)5.�,=@ A=@B C���D�E������F���G���D����HI�JK�LM�C& HNOPQK% K��R��SM�J�T��������QQUV�R���	�  BW&&#$B  W%$#$%B%  �XY!YY �XY!YY $!&&&ZX ���D�F�������[���\��R���]���̂����L��_����\ ̀�E�����T��̀� &&Z�̂�S���R�a����̀�H�̂���T���$&&���̀�BY&&%%�JK�LMC&&JXULQNb K��R��SM�Jc�d��!��c�K������T�QQUV�R���	�  BW&&#$B  W%$#$%B%  �#$!"$ �#$!"$ $!&&&Z

�'83�e)f�63�,=@�4=>4*>=,.-gh�T���i��[TMjj]]]!�c�d��!��cj�[ji��[j�_T��c��jR�T[��S!i�c�j���ki[l�����"lT��m��kE�a%n��R��RkB&B&XH Y&e)f�=5.�-6o6,=>�75)-*4,3�=+-�3.5p64.3�,=@.-gh�T���i��[TMjj]]]!�c�d��!��cj�[ji��[j�_T��c��jR�T[��S!i�c�j���ki[l�����"lT��m��kE�a%n��R��RkB&B&$"H$&



��������	����
�������������������������������������	������������
������������ ��!! ��"���#$$$%&�'��'!�(��#)$#$ �*+,--./0*��12,0*
345�6.7+*/-�,8�14*�4948-�:�;����/23,0*��4+<*5=���>��?:��/23,0*��.-*=�>@A@���0034/-��4+<*5=�B�:�CC�?AD����E,66*5��4+<*5=��:��>?
FG�HIJKLH�MLGMHL�NLHOPQR�LHQKLI�QSPJ�MGLQPGI�TPQS�UGKL�MVUWHIQXYZHVJH�WV[H�NSHN[J�MVUV\ZH�QG�]GLZOTPOH�̂_MLHJJXFG�V̀GPO�ZVQH�aHHJR�VZZGT�b�GL�WGLH�OVUJ�aGL�MGJQVZ�OHZP̀HLUX

 cdefghi�jfkflmfn�od�hpf��qf��chf'erqgh��qf s tuuv$) cdefghi�jfkflmfn�cwhfj�hpf��qf��chf'erqgh��qf s txtv%$�felh�(ryB	���B�����z������{	{�|	z�>���A���������z�>��>�}�!('� �� ��(~�!��}���!�)&���(���'(���'�� ��~�'����'�~����$�#u% �/23,0*��4+<*5=�gmrlkf��chfy �&�t&xx$�%��t&'#��q�d��%���&�$��>��?:��/23,0*��4*8-,3/8��3/-.0-�7345�B35�1�,1*���65*88�	��,0* prgfy�c�y x$$�)���!�� ��&u��$���)&)x
�rj�n�lnf����jfii��cdefgh�hfjei�jf�qljf��cdefgh�rw�hplilgmrlkf�od�'q�qih�t&���&�$�cjgfn�nlikrqghi�c���d�rg�d�hr�lgmrlkfi�hpch�cjf��cln��lhplg�cdefgh�hfjeiv�chf�wffi�ecd�of�ciifiifn�rg��cih�nqf�oc�cgkfi��ci�c��r�fnod��c�v(pf��rj�n�lnf����jfii�ecj��li�c�hjcnfecj��rw��rj�n�lnf����jfii���fjchlrgi��������plkp��jrmlnfi�� !���(��cgn��(��hjcgi�rjhchlrg�ifjmlkfiv��rjerjf�lgwrjechlrg�jf�cjnlg���rj�n�lnf����jfii�cgn�rqj�ifjmlkf�rwwfjlg�i����fcif�krghckh�drqj��rkc���rj�n�lnf����jfii�rwwlkf�rj�mlilh�rqj��foilhf����v��f�vkrev�!ref��rj�n�lnf����jfii�rwwlkfi�cjf�lgnlmlnqc��d�r�gfn�cgn�r�fjchfn�od�wjcgkpliffi�rw��rj�n�lnf����jfii���fjchlrgi�����v��jfl�phifjmlkfi�krggfkhfn�hr�hpli�nrkqefgh�cjf��jrmlnfn�od��rj�n�lnf����jfii�lg�lhi�kc�cklhd�ci�c�wjfl�ph�ojr�fj���qjiqcgh�hr�lhi��jr�fjhd�ojr�fjc�f�cqhprjlhdliiqfn�od�hpf��v!v��f�cjhefgh�rw�(jcgi�rjhchlrg��fnfjc���rhrj��cjjlfj�!cwfhd�'nelglihjchlrgv��rj�n�lnf����jfii�li�grh�c�erhrj�kcjjlfjv�'����jlkfi�cjfiqo�fkh�hr�kpcg�fv� �fcif�iff���f�vkre��f�c��wrj�wq���hfjei�cgn�krgnlhlrgiv

�NNGKIQ���PI���KWWVLU #$$v�xs(rhc��'erqgh��qhihcgnlg� ��s�mfj��&�ncdi ��s�mfj�%&�ncdi ��s�mfj�$&�ncdi $u&vx&st���$&��cdi $�$vtxs"c�cgkf��qjjfgh

 c�f�t�rw�)!�

�KWWVLU�Ga��SVL�HJ jrii�!pl�efgh��pcj�fi s t#)v%x�cjgfn��likrqghi s �$#v�x�'erqgh�nqf�od�nqf�nchf s tuuv$)'erqgh�nqf�cwhfj�nqf�nchf s txtv%$!fjmlkf��pcj�fi s )v�)
stuuv$)'kkrqgh�!pl��fj��qeofjy��'erqgh��qfy

�pfjf�c��r�fn�od�ihchf��c���kjfnlh�kcjn��cdefghi�cjfiqo�fkh�hr�c�iqjkpcj�f�rw�q��hr�$¡���plkp��l���grh�of��jfchfjhpcg�hpf�krih�rw�ckkf�hcgkfv



��������	
��������
�������
�
�������������
�����
����������
������������� ����������	���	�����

����
� ������ � ���!����
��"���������������# �"���������������#

��	
�$����%�$



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������� ����!������"��#$%&#'(�)*++,-#()��.�/�����"�0� ���12 3�2���/��� 
�2�������/���45678�799�:4 ; ;<=>?@ ;;=AB@CD6E9�86F5E�799:4 ; ;>=GA@ ;A=H<@CD6E9�86F5E:�4 ; ;<=>?@ ;;=AB@86IJK�LMNEO�799:4 ; ;?=GA@ ;<=;B@P6CEMQN6�799 ; B;=;?@ ;H=AR@L6EO85D�OD675�B�799�:�4 ; BR=HB@ ;A=><@LD5K5DF5�6O�INQ95DE5KK�Q6J5�:4 ; ;<=>?@ ;;=AB@KMQO5DD6�799:4 ; ;<=>?@ ;;=AB@O6P6S6:�45678�:�4 ; ;<=>?@ ;;=AB@O85�LD5K5DF5�6O�KMTO8�4D6E78:4 ; B;=;?@ ;H=AR@OUVWX�4YXXZ[ ;R ;HA=\?@ ;G?=<R@
��]���	"��" 
���̂ __�!

��.�/�����"�0��� ���12 3�2���/��� 
�2�������/���9L̀ C�P6E6C5P5EO�6E9�7MEKTQONEC ;R ;HA=\?@ ;G?=<R@OUVWX�4YXXZ[ ;R ;HA=\?@ ;G?=<R@��]���	"��" 
�����̂ __�!

LWaZ�G�Ub�AKB



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������� ����!������"��#$%&%'()�*+($&,-��������
����. 
�/������0���1�/��0���2�..��34���	�5��6�����������7���89:;<:=8=> ?@ABC�DAEFB�GCC=B�EHIIA?F�JA@KLAMJAIN�GOAPQRI�>=;>9GSTTUVWXYZ�?VS[\]���3̂�6�����_�0 ;�Z̀88=PaXbbUV���c�d�
�����0�����1���. EFPQA�J@OJF@QM�PF@EHGFP=e8�HBQF@BAQHOBAI�JKLMPfHQF�=8gIAKF�NA@MRI�>=9<h ����. ;ij>e ;ej9<
RVUXkal ;>j;> ;8j;8CUZXmUVn�AVUY�P[VWaYVkU >j98 >j98R[UZ�P[VWaYVkU =je= ;ji<oXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�?VY\]�DYmU\�GCCrooXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�CJR?�NY\YkUTU\l�Y\]�GS\s[ZlX\k�r�GYVVXUV�aYs�Y[]XlU]�laXs�saXbTU\l�Y\]�Xl�aYs�̀UU\�VUtUXkaU]�pVST�Xls�lU\]UVU]�tUXkal�Sp�;rZ̀sNA@GM�PGOQQ EABFPPA�PQFJBHAKPaXbbUV @UWUXmUV

4���	�5��6���������7�����89:;9:=8=> @ANOB�ABQOBHO�@fHu�RIO@FP;ei8g�PFA�GABA@M�JIAGFOCFPPARI�>>eeh@UsX]U\lXYZ�?VS[\]���3̂�6�����_�0 ;�Z̀88=PaXbbUV���c�d�
�����0�����1���. EFPQA�J@OJF@QM�PF@EHGFP=e8�HBQF@BAQHOBAI�JKLMPfHQF�=8gIAKF�NA@MRI�>=9<h ����. =;j;g ;9je8
RVUXkal ;>j;> ;8j;8@UsX]U\lXYZ�P[VWaYVkU ej=e ej=eR[UZ�P[VWaYVkU =jg8 =j;eoXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�QaU�JVUsUVmU�Yl�PS[la�oVY\WarooXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�CJR?�NY\YkUTU\l�Y\]�GS\s[ZlX\k�r�GYVVXUV�aYs�Y[]XlU]�laXs�saXbTU\l�Y\]�Xl�aYs�̀UU\�VUtUXkaU]�pVST�Xls�lU\]UVU]�tUXkal�Sp�;rZ̀sBHBA�ACDAE @ANOB�ABQOBHO�@fHu�RPaXbbUV @UWUXmUV

4���	�5��6������������7��89:;g:=8=> oBM�NFIIOB<hee�PAIHPof@M�@OACPfHQF�>88vAGKPOBEHIIFRI�>==ehGSTTUVWXYZ�?VS[\]���3̂�6�����_�0 ;�Z̀88=PaXbbUV���c�d�
�����0�����1���. EFPQA�J@OJF@QM�PF@EHGFP=e8�HBQF@BAQHOBAI�JKLMPfHQF�=8gIAKF�NA@MRI�>=9<h ����. ;<jig ;;je=
RVUXkal ;>j;> ;8j;8R[UZ�P[VWaYVkU ;jge ;j<=oXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�oUYWa�GCC�rooXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�CJR?�NY\YkUTU\l�Y\]�GS\s[ZlX\k�r�GYVVXUV�aYs�Y[]XlU]�laXs�saXbTU\l�Y\]�Xl�aYs�̀UU\�VUtUXkaU]�pVST�Xls�lU\]UVU]�tUXkal�Sp�;rZ̀sBHBA�ACDAE oBM�NFIIOBPaXbbUV @UWUXmUV

4���	�5��6���������������89:;g:=8=> RO@PHQF>8;h�POfQD�QDH@C�PQ@FFQPfHQF�=8;vAGKPOBEHIIFRI�>==e8GSTTUVWXYZ�?VS[\]���3̂�6�����_�0 ;�Z̀88=PaXbbUV���c�d�
�����0�����1���. CJR?�NABA?FNFBQGOBPfIQHB?=e8�HBQF@BAQHOBAI�JKLMIAKF�NA@MRI�>=9<h ����. ;<jig ;;je=
RVUXkal ;>j;> ;8j;8R[UZ�P[VWaYVkU ;jge ;j<=oXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�?VY\]�DYmU\r�ooXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�CJR?�NY\YkUTU\l�Y\]�GS\s[ZlX\k�r�GYVVXUV�aYs�Y[]XlU]�laXs�saXbTU\l�Y\]�Xl�aYs�̀UU\�VUtUXkaU]�pVST�Xls�lU\]UVU]�tUXkal�Sp�;rZ̀sNA@GM�PGOQQ RO@PHQFPaXbbUV @UWUXmUV

4���	�5��6��������7���7��89:;g:=8=> LFIIP�RA@?O�oABKrGQPJAMNFBQ�J@OGFP;g8;�JA@KEHFL�C@w�;PQ�RIOO@PDO@FEHFLNB�ee;=hGSTTUVWXYZ�?VS[\]���3̂�6�����_�0 ;�Z̀88hPaXbbUV���c�d�
�����0�����1���. EFPQA�J@OJF@QM�PF@EHGFPHBGj=e8�HBQF@BAQHOBAI�JKLMPfHQF�=8gIAKF�NA@MRI�>=9<h ����. ;gj>e ;<j;=
RVUXkal ;hj8i ;=j>gR[UZ�P[VWaYVkU =j=h ;j9<

oXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�DYtxs�JSX\l�GCCrooXZZ�@UpUVU\WUq�CJR?�NY\YkUTU\l�Y\]�GS\s[ZlX\k�r�GYVVXUV�aYs�Y[]XlU]�laXs�saXbTU\l�Y\]�Xl�aYs�̀UU\�VUtUXkaU]�pVST�Xls�lU\]UVU]�tUXkal�Sp�;rZ̀sBHBA�ACDAE IOGKoOy�PF@EHGFP�gehPaXbbUV @UWUXmUV
JYkU�<�Sp�eP=



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������� ����!������"����������
����# 
�$������%���&�$��%���'�##��()���	�*��+���������������,-./0.1,12 34�5678�7969�:�;<</1,,�=7=>?@�A6>8�<>BC=DE;85EF�4=>CB;=4�/1:1GH-46B7I�A63DJ7�HH/,0;KLLMNOPQR�?NKSTU���(V�+�����W�% 1�RXY,,G4ZP[[MN���\�]�
�����%�����&���# C=4I6�A>EA=>I@�4=>CB;=41H,�B7I=>76IBE76D�A8̂ @43BI=�1,0D68=�J6>@_D�21-̀G ����# 1,9-1 /H9à
_NMPbZc /09/- /29a0_SMR�4SNOZQNbM 19HH /9aG5PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�AQTcZMN�INQOM�1�;<<�:�55PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�<A_?�JQTQbMLMTc�QTU�;KTYSRcPTb�:�fe1�De/1�̂ea�:�;QNNPMN�ZQY�QSUPcMU�cZPY�YZP[LMTc�QTU�Pc�ZQY�XMMT�NMgMPbZMU�dNKL�PcY�cMTUMNMU�gMPbZc�Kd�/:RXY7B76�6<f6C 5>=II�46̂ @=>4ZP[[MN >MOMPhMN

)���	�*��+�������������i�,-./a.1,12 4@4;E�̂=4I�;E64I�_DE>B<6jB7;2,,,�GaIf�4I>==I�=64IA6DJ=IIE_D�2̀11/;KLLMNOPQR�?NKSTU���(V�+�����W�% /�RX,,14ZP[[MN���\�]�
�����%�����&���# C=4I6�A>EA=>I@�4=>CB;=41H,�B7I=>76IBE76D�A8̂ @43BI=�1,0D68=�J6>@_D�21-̀G ����# /̀9a0 //9H1
_NMPbZc /29/2 /,9/,_SMR�4SNOZQNbM /90H /9̀15PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�ANMYMNhM�6c�̂PRUMNTMYY�DQkM�:55PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�<A_?�JQTQbMLMTc�QTU�;KTYSRcPTb�:�;QNNPMN�ZQY�QSUPcMU�cZPY�YZP[LMTc�QTU�Pc�ZQY�XMMT�NMgMPbZMU�dNKL�PcY�cMTUMNMU�gMPbZc�Kd�/:RXY7B76�6<f6C <6CB<�4I=6<4ZP[[MN >MOMPhMN

)���	�*��+��������i������,-./a.1,12 4EDI=>>6�>=4E>IH1,,�4EDI=>>6�5DC<<6C=7AE>I_D�2202-;KLLMNOPQR�?NKSTU���(V�+�����W�% /�RX,,14ZP[[MN���\�]�
�����%�����&���# C=4I6�A>EA=>I@�4=>CB;=41H,�B7I=>76IBE76D�A8̂ @43BI=�1,0D68=�J6>@_D�21-̀G ����# /̀9a0 //9H1
_NMPbZc /29/2 /,9/,_SMR�4SNOZQNbM /90H /9̀15PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�4KRcMNNQ�;<<:55PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�<A_?�JQTQbMLMTc�QTU�;KTYSRcPTb�:�;QNNPMN�ZQY�QSUPcMU�cZPY�YZP[LMTc�QTU�Pc�ZQY�XMMT�NMgMPbZMU�dNKL�PcY�cMTUMNMU�gMPbZc�Kd�/:RXY7B76�6<f6C l6@J=�5B??44ZP[[MN >MOMPhMN

)���	�*��+���������������,-./a.1,12 I6J6@6/1--0�J=>BI6?=�5DC<l6;84E7CBDD=_D�211̀G;KLLMNOPQR�?NKSTU���(V�+�����W�% /�RX,,14ZP[[MN���\�]�
�����%�����&���# <A_?�J676?=J=7I;E743DIB7?1H,�B7I=>76IBE76D�A8̂ @4I=�1,0D68=�J6>@_D�21-̀G ����# /̀9a0 //9H1
_NMPbZc /29/2 /,9/,_SMR�4SNOZQNbM /90H /9̀1

5PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�IQLQmQ:�5MQOZ�:�55PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�<A_?�JQTQbMLMTc�QTU�;KTYSRcPTb�:�;QNNPMN�ZQY�QSUPcMU�cZPY�YZP[LMTc�QTU�Pc�ZQY�XMMT�NMgMPbZMU�dNKL�PcY�cMTUMNMU�gMPbZc�Kd�/:RXYJ6>;@�4;EII DE3;BI=�JB;f=D4ZP[[MN >MOMPhMN
)���	�*��+���������������,-.1/.1,12 _B77�E3I<EE>4j�DD;-2,�1,If�6C=73=�74I�A=I=>453>?_D�22-,̀>MYPUMTcPQR�?NKSTU���(V�+�����W�% /�RX,,14ZP[[MN���\�]�
�����%�����&���# <A_?�J676?=J=7I;E743DIB7?1H,�B7I=>76IBE76D�A8̂ @D68=�J6>@_D�21-̀G ����# 1/9/0 /-9H,

_NMPbZc /29/2 /,9/,>MYPUMTcPQR�4SNOZQNbM H91H H91H_SMR�4SNOZQNbM 190, 19/H5PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�JQbTKRPQ�;<<5PRR�>MdMNMTOMe�<A_?�JQTQbMLMTc�QTU�;KTYSRcPTb�:�;QNNPMN�ZQY�QSUPcMU�cZPY�YZP[LMTc�QTU�Pc�ZQY�XMMT�NMgMPbZMU�dNKL�PcY�cMTUMNMU�gMPbZc�Kd�/:RXYJ6>;@�4;EII >E55�5>Ê 74ZP[[MN >MOMPhMN
AQbM�H�Kd�H41



��������	�
����
��
	��
�������������
����
	������������������ !���!� ��"#$%&'()*+, ��-� -����./0123,�4 � � � 5266�71�8���	�9�	:��;�<�=�	��99��
���>�??������@�:��A?BBBC-��D�9�
�@�9�	�C����	:�C�9��������	�
����
��
	��
�����������
����
	���������� EFGHIG�JGKLM�EHNKGOM�MP�QPJEPJHMG�RGHSTUHJMGJIVWGIMH�SLIMJLQM�IGJWLQGIXYZ�W[\]̂�E_Z̀[_]a�I[_bcX[\d�LeXfghi�Jcb[_\cj[�Hb[ek[d�Ikc][�lmmn̂Xo\Zebcpp[d�qF�lggmg./�r,s,t,/3,�71u5266*v6,�wxy,/z,z�{�|}~�����),z3t2y+21/�
��
�����!��<��!��
��
�	�A
C?����A
	�9�����9�!��<��!���		�C
�����AA��9�
?�9�>���!��<��!��B����	����B��:���9���B���	:�C�9����>�
�������AA��9��@
==��!��<��!��?
��
==	�99�99�	����
����9�!��A�����:��C��!��<�������B������9��	�
�����B���8�	����<��
?9�!��<��!��
���B���AA��9�����9�!��<��!������99�>����	��
�9�����9�!��<��!��
���B���AA��9�������!��<��!��B���	:�C�9���B��:���9���
�����
�C�������!��<��!��B��:���9�!��C��!��
C������C8����	�
��
9�>��9�
���>���
C��!��<��!���
9��A	��	
?�������:������AA��9����<��!����=�-���:�	
��>��>�����!��<��!�����!��
���B�������!��<��!���9B��	:C9B����B��:���9>��>�����!��<��!�����!��
���B�������!��<��!��B����	�>��>�����!��<��!�����!��
���B>��>�����!��<��!��
���B�����������!��<��!��
��	��>����	����B��:���9�������!��<��!��B��:���9���������!��<��!��B��:���9�!��C��!��
C������C8����	�
��
9���������!��<��!��B��:���9��
�����A��9�9?
9����
	9���
��
	���98���	�C�	�
����
�	����8�9��
���	����	
���A
A�	�������
�9C�
����
C���?
����
�����������	�C
	�	�=��9���>���>���!�@�D�@�����@@�����������	���	=
��������������������������98�@��9���
��@�8���?�	�9�������
A�	�����9>�A���
A�	����	=����=����>�A9�
�=����9����A������
���
?A>	�=�����:��C��� �@�!����!����� �����=��?�@���
���
C8�9����@�@������
���
�����A��9�9

�}*/+2+�                       
r*+, |�1}/+���B�����B�����B�����B�����B��� �B�� ��B�� ��B�� ��B����B��� B����B����B����B����B����B����B����B����B�� �B���B���B�� ��B�����B �  B�� �B��  B��� �B�  ��B�����B������B� 71+*6 �����B��











































���������	
����������
��� ��������
������������������ !"�#���! $$��"%���!�"�&&&'(#()��'��#*���"(�"+ !'

,(-��
��.��

��//0�1��2 ��34561���675� ���7/83�6�93�6 ���7/83�69�:4 ��;�2 ��0���/61�67 �<��/096 ��0/3�=01 �>=??3:?6�@A01�>=??3:?6B6�=��6769�:��=16���1356C�!"(�,��$��"D�E������!>=??��0C�!"(�,��$��"D�E������!F""�G�F��� �"!�,(D(HI�JKL�M����!�N��F��� �E �"��OPPQ(�R!����II�%��I���N(�OJJPJS8=T��0U�!V�W�H!��JXOJP�Y�ZW[M\[EE�ZF][�̂ZCWZF\W�_�ZF][E%��Z�OK̀Oa+abac

�̂II(HI�_"V��G�E$���.D����,_����INLcPXP�,(!!�UV� +WEW%W,�d%��(� �(I\��"V�(!"Ge��",YZU�!V�W�H!��Jc+Q I+JPJO\�"�OPFJW,EOEUK\fÛ ,g1h0=/6���55374�"�#�! H"�"(I�H�.����"(i jXJO'KLEV�$$��-�k�V(�NI��- j P'PP,��#�!�k�N�!�� �"! j P'PPU�"(I�H�.����"(i jXJO'KLU(i j b'̀K�50�1��9�6 l
��m�noSp�34�:4q?6/�701=/�r�19���731�r67�sqtu@���@�=76v�//0�1��1356 F#()���e($�"(I�E������!%����'>31w�1356 Y�II!��(�-��̂(�R����70��=1��2�s�>�v XJXPPPJKb>31w�3//0�1��2�spp�v KX̀OPKXPKXaXbOc̀J�S�gtu�/096�sx=76��731�r67v Y�̂ �yÈE���I N��F#()������������ #H��z!{����"V��N�!���$"����.��IN��.�D� ���I��"�����. �N!�"�(�!.���$(D#��"%����[#(�I�(�+H !���!!��������-|(#()��'��#�"��! H#�"�D� ����#�""(����N�"(�I'
�86/wF#()���e($�"(I�E������!,_�̂�i�POLXbKE�(""I�%�YF�cbXJK+LXbK

}~����������������������������

g1h0=/6�96�3=?�p6�/7=T�=01 �4 o1=��T7=/6 g�65���:�0�3?:6r076��3� u3�X W�Ee_y\U�,M_�_E��(!���Q(�!�&�"V�Z�N!�X̀��)'�E�"��.�XP%�̂ IR,(�R�+�dI(!!�Q(�!�.���_�����-V"�_("!%�e(�N��!%��� �"!%�,��RI�!%E$���!%�̂����(-�!�+�eI�(��FE�\G�̂PbU�CX̂cJ E�IN�HDG�̂[Z�yEF�ZZe_�N���	�XXJ+bX̀baX̀+XbbaK̀O J jJP'cc jKX'cb a'PPP�



��������	
����������
��������

�����������
���������������� � !"#$%��� �&#'$()*+,-�.+/ 0
1�234

5/6789:-9*, -; <,9-�:897/ =-/)�6+>-*-?@>/A*8/�-?B C?B! D��E�����F��G��H���EI��� !�J����K�LM��N�O�K���GN��PQR���QK���R������EI���S����P����P�K���������T����U��V�W����U��V�U��N��������V�G�X�J����K���I��F�R�US�WY�Z[\S]&'"JPS��I��NY�̂���̂�����F���������������N�Q�����������K�_�I���	�  !̀[&![%"[̀$$'"$'&  � %#aa � %#aa \#[[[b
" UPXc�U�S�O�WD�d����M�����T������SF�E���JQ������P�����E��F�"e�����K�̀�S����f�����gQ����N�J���F�SF�E���P����V�P��F�̀d���F��he��F����d�KF�����̀�S���I���US�WYZ[&Z]TOgPSS��I��NY�SF�������G���F����e��N��X�Q��������K�_�I���	�  !̀[&![%"[̀$$'"$'& $ � [#&& �$"#%! \#[[[b
$ JN�i���![����H�T���N�P��F�K�Z�����N�_M�����IV�![�PLG�S�����P��F�K�e�K���j���P��F�KV�d����M�����J�MM���d����e����P��F�K�S�����T�����N�P��F������d�II��US�WYZ[\dDZkkffS��I��NY�SF��iF���l����Q�I�NL����F�����N�J�#V�P�I_�I���	�  !̀[&![%"[̀$$'"$'&  � '#a& � '#a& \#[[[b
%  [[M�K�k�������M���D�������K�E��F�S�����V�Z���H�D����Z��K����K���������KmZ��E�n �US�WY�Z[ \'\LklJS��I��NY�JF���iF�QKF��k��SFQ�DQ����i��Q��X�Q��������K�_�I���	�  !̀% [&" à\[![!%\  �$#a& �$#a& \#[[[b
o(6��*p�96�-?B�7?@7+@?-/.qc�K���F��MKYrrEEE#�R�i��#��Rr�MrF��Mr�QK��R��rI�KM��N#F�R�r���sFMt�����$tK��u��sv�T&h��I��Is![!["' a[�*p�?8/�.9w9-?@�:8*.+7-6�?,.�6/8x97/6�-?B/.qc�K���F��MKYrrEEE#�R�i��#��Rr�MrF��Mr�QK��R��rI�KM��N#F�R�r���sFMt�����$tK��u��sv�T&h��I��Is![![\$'\[



���������	
�������������� ������������������������ ��!"#�$� �"!%%� #&���"�#�'''()$)*��(��$+���#)�#,!"(

-).��
��/��

��001�2��3 �456782���897� �4�90:5�8�;5�8 �4�90:5�8;�<6 �4=�3 �>1���082�89 �?@�01;8 �@105�A12 �BACC5<C8�D�12�BACC5<C8E8�A��898;�<��A28���2578F�"#)�- �%� #G�H� ����"BACC��1F�"#)�- �%� #G�H� ����"I##�J�I���!�#"�-)G)KL�MNO�P��� "�Q��I���!�H!�#��RSST)�U"����LL�&��L� �Q)�RMMSMV:AW��1X�"Y�Z�K"��M[RMS�\�]Ẑ P_̂ HH�]Ì �̂a]FZ]I_Z�b�]Ì Ĥ&��]�RNcRd,dedf

a�LL)KL�b#Y� J�H%���/G����-b����LQb#Y� J�H%���/G����-b����LQ_� #Y�)"#-\]X�"Y�Z�K"��MO,I!.,MSMR_�#�RSIMZ-HRHXN_gXa-h2i1A08���77596�#�$�"!K#�#)L�K�/� ��#)j kMfO([cHY�%%��.�l�Y)�QL��. k S(SS- �$�"�l�Q�"��!�#" k S(SSX�#)L�K�/� ��#)j kMfO([cX)j k MS(cO�71�2��;�8 m�
�no
pVq456�<6rC80�912A0�s�2;���952�s89�tr�uD�>�DvA98w�001�2��2578 I$)*���x)%�#)L�H� ����"&����(B52y�2578 \�LL"��) .��a)�U�>��91��A2��3�t�B�w [M[SSSMNeB52y�5001�2��3�tqq�w N[cRSN[SN[d[eRfcM�Vvh�u�01;8�tzA98��952�s89w \�a�{HcH���L!Q��I$)*������������!$K� |"}����#Y��Q�"� �%#����/��LQ��/�G�! ��L��# ����/!�Q"�# )�"/� �%)G$��#&�� �$̂)�L�) ,K!"���""��������.~)$)*��(��$�#��"!K$�#�G�! � �$�##)����Q�#)�L(
>:80yI$)*���x)%�#)L�H� ����"-b�a�j�SRO[eNH�)##L�&�\I�fe[MN,O[eN

���������������������������������

h2i1A08�;8�5AC�q8�09AW�A12 ��6 p2A��W9A08 h�87���<�1�5C<8s198��5� u5�[ -L)G,Z�Y���Q�L��.�x�$%�!�Q�MN,-)�U�x)"���/�x�L� "&�_��,X�j��&�!L#�,x�L� &�R,b!����x)�"&�I.�"�M�)�Q�!%�|I$)*���̂j�L!"���}�IH�_JaSSfxI-�Pe H�LQ�KGJ�I$)*��(��$�H� ����"�]]xb Q� �	�[[M,Mf[O[ef,SO[SccO [ kMS(ff kMS(ff d(SSS�



��������	
�������������������

�����������

����������������  !"#$%&���  !'$&#()*+,-�.+/ 0�
123


4/56789-8*, �-: ;,8-�9786/ <-/)�5+=-*->?=/@*7/�->A B>A! C�D��EF�G�F�HH��������I�H���J�K����L�I�M�N�FK����M�%!����O�PJ�QRS''TUVWXYZ J��[��\R�PD�]��$��D�J������F�VVW�̂[���	�%%!_!"%#%̀"_'#%'&&# %  T$''  T$'' Y$'''aT ���O�Z�������H���b��[���c���d����Q��I����b%M�U�����F��M�%''ad��\���[�e����M�&�d���F���Y''���M�!"''̀`�PJ�QRS''PTWQVfg J��[��\R�PD�]��$��D�J������F�VVW�̂[���	�%%!_!"%#%̀"_'#%'&&# !  #Y$hY  %%h$"h Y$'''a
h J����i�ZI������[���H�����c��F�j'%̀h'kM�c��K�P�F������\���O��F�ZM�"$!l���"$hl�FK���FM�NK���M�W�DH����W�F������C�F\J������M�j!#'�JK���Fm���OM�%&����O�PJ�QR�S''h'X̂ G'h J��[��\R�PD�]��$��D�J������F�VVW�̂[���	�%%!_!"%#%̀"_'#%'&&# %  T&$h#  T&$h# Y$'''a
# ���O�Z����nID������������H���d����NK�����!M�P[�����[M�!_��\M�%!��Y#%EM�%!'!hh'! �PJ�QR�S'Y%oZV��# J��[��\R�PD�]��$��D�J������F�VVW�̂[���	�%%!_!"%#%̀"_'#%'&&# !  #"$̀"  %%"$Ỳ Y$'''a
�(�5��*p�85�->A�6>?6+?>-/.qo�F���K��HFRmmccc$�D�]��$��Dm�HmK��Hm�IF��D��m[�FH��\$K�D�m���rKHs�����hsF��t��rU�èu��[��[r!'!'T&%"'�*p�>7/�.8v8->?�97*.+6-5�>,.�5/7w86/5�->A/.qo�F���K��HFRmmccc$�D�]��$��Dm�HmK��Hm�IF��D��m[�FH��\$K�D�m���rKHs�����hsF��t��rU�èu��[��[r!'!'Yh&Y'



���������	
�������������� ��������������������������� !"�#���! $$��"%���!�"�&&&'(#()��'��#*���"(�"+ !'

,(-��
��.��

��//0�1��2 �345671���786� �3�8/94�7�:4�7 �3�8/94�7:�;5 �3<�2 ��0���/71�78 �=>�/0:7 �>0/4�?01 �@?AA4;A7�BC01�@?AA4;A7�7�?��787:�;��?17���1467D�!"(�,��$��"E�F������!@?AA��0D�!"(�,��$��"E�F������!G""�H�G��� �"!�,(E(IJ�KLM�N����!�O��G��� �F �"��PQQR(�S!����JJ�%��J���O(�PKKQKT9?U��0V�!W�X�I!��KYPKQ�Z�[X\N]\FF�[Ĝ \�_[DX[G]X�̀�[Ĝ \F%��[�PLaPb+bcbd

_�JJ(IJ�X,�eH�[(S��f(�E.̀.���*̀"W��MdQYQ�,(!!�VW� +XFX%X,�e%��(� �(J]��"W�(!"Hg��",Z[V�!W�X�I!��QY+G -+KQKP]�"�PQGKX,FPFVL]hV_,i1j0?/7���66485�"�#�! I"�"(J�I�.����"(k lLPP'YaFW�$$��-�m�W(�OJ��- l Q'QQ,��#�!�m�O�!�� �"! l Q'QQV�"(J�I�.����"(k lLPP'YaV(k l Q'QQ�60�1��:�7 no��p
�qT�345�;5rA7/�801?/�s�1:���841�s78�truvB��wBx?87y�//0�1��1467 G#()���g($�"(J�F������!%����'@41z�1467 Z�JJ!��(�-��_(�S��w�80��?1��2�t�@�y YKYQQQKLc@41z�4//0�1��2�t���y LYaPQLYQLYbYcPdaK�Txiuv�/0:7�t{?87��841�s78y Z�_�|FaF���J O��G#()������������ #I��}!~����"W��O�!���$"����.��JO��.�E� ���J��"�����. �O!�"�(�!.���$(E#��"%����\#(�J�(�+I !���!!��������-�(#()��'��#�"��! I#�"�E� ����#�""(����O�"(�J'
�97/zG#()���g($�"(J�F������!,̀ �_�k�QPMYcLF�(""J�%�ZG�dcYKL+MYcL

���������������������������������

i1j0?/7�:7�4?A��7�/8?U�?01 ��5 q1?��U8?/7 i�76���;�0�4A;7s087��4� v4�Y �,�LYLG�gE(��V�����g(�"��O-����Z��S!�&�"W��,�g�J���[(!��R�"\�"��$��!��fLMMO�%�f�,�fLcQ.���,�g�J���[(!��R�"�,���fLMLF����!%��,�g�J���[(!��R�"�,���f�,�GF�]H_QbNYc�Z�] F�JO�IEH�G#()��'��#�F������!�[[g�̀O���	�YYK+cQPdKLQ+KKLaaPQ Y lYYL'dL lYYL'dL Q'QQQ�



��������	
�������������������

�����������

����������������  !""#$%���  &#&&'()*+,�-*. /0��1
�

�.23456,5)+ 7,8 9+5,�6453. :,.(�2*;,),<=;.>)4.�,<? @<?A B��!$!C�D�������������E�����F���G�H��IJ�K��L�B��E�����M�J��N��O����P��J��D!QQF�R�DS��D!T&�U�B��E�����M�J��N�������D!Q!V����JR�B��E�����M�J��N�������CV�WXY&Z["\H�B\ V��F��]X�Ĉ �_��#��̂ �V������J�MME�̀F���	�$$AaT&"bA!&aAA!%%"& $  $$!#b!  $$!#b! &#&&&c
" B��!$!C�d����K�������E�����F���G�H��IJ�K��L�B��E�����M�J��N��O����P��J��D!QQF�R�DS��D!T&�U�B��E�����M�J��N�������D!Q!V����JR�B��E�����M�J��N�������D�CV�WXY&Z["edABf V��F��]X�Ĉ �_��#��̂ �V������J�MME�̀F���	�$$AaT&"bA!&aAA!%%"& $  $$!#b!  $$!#b! &#&&&c
! B��!$!C�Y���I�������E�����F���G�H��IJ�K��L�B��E�����M�J��N��O����P��J��D!QQF�R�DS��D!T&�U�B��E�����M�J��N�������D!Q!V����JR�B��E�����M�J��N�������DS�CV�WXY&Z[QHQB!M V��F��]X�Ĉ �_��#��̂ �V������J�MME�̀F���	�$$AaT&"bA!&aAA!%%"& $  TT#"!  TT#"! &#&&&c
g'72�h)i�52�,<?�3<=3*=<,.-jk�J���L��PJXllKKK#�̂ �_��#��̂ l�PlL��Pl�mJ��̂ ��lF�JP��]#L�̂�l���nLPo�����!oJ��p��nq�STr��F��FnA&A&"%$b&h)i�<4.�-5s5,<=�64)-*3,2�<+-�2.4t53.2�,<?.-jk�J���L��PJXllKKK#�̂ �_��#��̂ l�PlL��Pl�mJ��̂ ��lF�JP��]#L�̂�l���nLPo�����!oJ��p��nq�STr��F��FnA&A&Z!%Z&



���������	
�������������� ���������������������� �!��"#$�%�!�#"&&�!$'���#�$�((()*%*+��)��%,���$*�$-"#)

.*/��
��0��

��112�3��4 �567893���9:8� �5�:1;6�9�<6�9 �5�:1;6�9<�=7 �5>�4 �?2���193�9: �@A�12<9 �A216�B23 �CBDD6=D9�E23�CBDD6=D9�9�B��9:9<�=��B39���3689F�#$*�.!�&�!$G�H�!����#CBDD��2F�#$*�.!�&�!$G�H�!����#I$$�J�I���"�$#�.*G*KL�MNO�P���!#�Q��I���"�H"�$��RSST*�U#����LL�'� L�!�Q*�RMMSMV;BW��2X�#Y�Z�K#��M[RMS�\�]Ẑ P_̂ HH�]Ì �̂a]FZ]I_Z�b�]Ì Ĥ'� ]�RNcRd-dedf

a�LL*KL�Z. g�-�.!�#�!���*$\�LQ�!��##b$Y�!J�H&���0G����.b� ��LQ_�!$Y�*#$.\]X�#Y�Z�K#��MO-I"/-MSMR_�$�RSIMZ.HRHXN_hXa.i3j2B19���886:7�$�%�#"K$�$*L�K�0�!��$*k l fO)fMHY�&&��/�m�Y*�QL��/ l S)SS.!�%�#�m�Q�#��"�$# l S)SSX�$*L�K�0�!��$*k l fO)fMX*k l O)SN�82�3��<�9 n
��o��pV�567�=7qD91�:23B1�r�3<���:63�r9:�sqtuE�?vEwB:9x�112�3��3689 I%*+���y*&�$*L�H�!����#'����)C63z�3689 \�LL#� *!/��a*�U�?v�:2��B3��4�s�C�x [M[SSSMNeC63z�6112�3��4�s���x N[cRSN[SN[d[eRfcM�Vwitu�12<9�s{B:9��:63�r9:x \ a�|HcH���L"Q��I%*+������������"%K�!}#~����$Y��Q�#�!�&$����0��LQ��0�G�"!��L��$!����0"�Q#�$!*�#0�!�&*G%��$'��!�%̂*�L�*!-K"#���##��������/�*%*+��)��%�$��#"K%�$�G�"!�!�%�$$*����Q�$*�L)
?;91zI%*+���y*&�$*L�H�!����#.b�a�k�SRO[eNH�*$$L�'�\I�fe[MN-O[eN

���������������������������������

i3j2B19�<9�6BD��9�1:BW�B23 ��7 p3B��W:B19 i�98���=�2�6D=9r2:9��6� u6�[ I%*+���a*#��#��"L$�&"!&�#��y�&G�.!��$�!�.*&�!'�e)O��k�[[�'�MSLK'e�P�*%'�NSSS�HY��$#'�fM�a!�/Y$'�\Y�$��IH�_JaSd̀e\��OT H�LQ�KGJ�I%*+��)��%�H�!����#�]]yb!Q�!�	�[[M-eOMcSOS-SSN[SRM [ lRf)ff lRf)ff d)SSS�



��������	
�������������������

�����������

��������������� !"#$"%�� !#$&'()*+,-�.+/ 0
112��

�/34567-6*, �-8 9,6-�7564/ :-/)�3+;-*-<=;/>*5/�-<? @<?% A&&�B�C�DE�FD����G���H�I��J�FKF����L�M����N��������IOD�������C �NP�QRK&&QSBTOKU P��C��JR�G�V�������N��I�NE�W��X�C���	�AA%Y"""Z[A"Y\'["''[ A !%\$"" !%\$"" &$&&&]
\ %V�I�̂ Q̂�NN�P������II�P�����K��C�K�_�Ì�FD������K��C�a�����K�_�̀K��C�b��C����TDVÌ�TH���H�����b��C�K�_�̀�K��C�F�IH�I�����T���̀K��C�T����b��C��I���C�NP�QRK&KccdATO%P��C��JR�IH���WH���IH��e����H����f��g��J�D� ���������I�X�C���	�AA%YZ#%h&#&Y&&'A&\% A ![$"" ![$"" [$&&&]
' FKF����iI�KD�C���_��H�j��E�C�G�V���K�If����PV���A&&_�G�V����k����M�EV�l̂��D��%����fm�n�����DC�I�N����H�C����Y��V�n�P����JOD�C��Y�F��Q���O���G�V�����NP�QRK&KGdMOhKPP��C��JR�F���iI�K���C�C�F�����I���C�����PDVV�J�MMTX�C���	�AA%YZ#%h&#&Y&&'A&\% A !%\$"# !%\$"# [$&&&]
o(�3�p*q�63�-<?�4<=4+=<-/.r�̂I���H��VIRss___$�E�W��$��Es�VsH��Vs�DI��E��sC�IV��J$H�E�s���tHVu�����'uI��v��tS�bZn��C��Ct%&%&\hA"&p*q�<5/�.6w6-<=�75*.+4-3�<,.�3/5x64/3�-<?/.r�̂I���H��VIRss___$�E�W��$��Es�VsH��Vs�DI��E��sC�IV��J$H�E�s���tHVu�����'uI��v��tS�bZn��C��Ct%&%&['h[&



���������	
�
�����
	������
���������������	��
���
	��
��������

�������
���

��� !"�#�$%�&'"���� !"�#�$%�()*+%!,��&'"�)*+%!,��(-,,%.*"�(/� ���(0'1$�*"�2��$34�5!3"��� �6.3!*�33�7'$�8�������
����9�:�������6!;;�2%8�������
����9�:�������<���=�<��
������9�>?�@AB�C���������<����:����DEEF��G�
���??����?
�����D@@E@HI!J�2%K��L�M
>�
�@ND@E�OPQMRCSR::�Q<TR�UQ8MQ<SM�V�Q<TR:���Q�DAWDX�XYXZ

S���DENN@�ZZZYXNZ�DAXZAAX<@M�:D:KAS[KU�NWMS�XXD\�ZC]T@Y�<��@E@DN\TT�̂A8\���QD@Y�<��@E@D��� !"�#�$%�H.$$'�1P��	�:>�
��? _̀@D�ZZa:L�������b�̂���?��� ` E�EE��
	
��b�M���
��� ` E�EE:�?���K�c ` E�EE-$%.*"�&.� defghiijkH&/� ���)*l%�$'"!%* �m%,'"!%*6!;;'n;��o7%*p6!;;'n;� U�??�>?�M��q��������������O�?�������K��L�M
>�
�/� ��� �610/�(�%3"���*"��rm��% � V�L��=�:�����9�����V���?�S
��L�����OQK��L�M
>�
�
-JJ;1!*5�"I!3�,�� !"�*%"�R	��?��L���������	�	
��	>����9
�������
���������L��<	��
����
��������
�����	>����9
�������
���9��
����>���������
�����s�	��
���
	��� !"�#�$%�&�"'!;3&�3,�!J"!%* t"1 k*!"0�!,� H.n"%"';n�l%��2'u 2'u4'"� H.n"%"';NEE�����	�M>���C
��L���>9�MUM����v�Q����<�����?����q���������<:PS=UEESw��qU] :
?��>9=�C����?����<����<	��
� N @̀D�ZZ _̀@D�ZZa E�EEEx _̀@D�ZZa



��������	����
�������������������������������������	������������
������������ ��!! ��"���#$$$%&�'��'!�(��#)$#$ �*+,--./0*��12,0*
345�6.7+*/-�,8�14*�4948-��:����/23,0*��4+;*5<���=�>>>?��/23,0*��.-*<�=@�A@���0034/-��4+;*5<�B�C�==�A?D����E,66*5��4+;*5<��C��>A
FG�HIJKLH�MLGMHL�NLHOPQR�LHQKLI�QSPJ�MGLQPGI�TPQS�UGKL�MVUWHIQXYZHVJH�WV[H�NSHN[J�MVUV\ZH�QG�]GLZOTPOH�̂_MLHJJXFG�V̀GPO�ZVQH�aHHJR�VZZGT�b�GL�WGLH�OVUJ�aGL�MGJQVZ�OHZP̀HLUX

 cdefghi�jfkflmfn�od�hpf��qf��chf'erqgh��qf s t&uvtu cdefghi�jfkflmfn�cwhfj�hpf��qf��chf'erqgh��qf s tuxvu#�felh�(ryB	���B�����z������{	{�|	z�>���?���������z�>��>�}�!('� �� ��(~�!��}���!u)&���(���'(���'�� ��~�'����'�~����$u#�% �/23,0*��4+;*5<�gmrlkf��chfy �&ut&xx$�%��t&'#�'q�qih�&���u&u$��=�>>>?��/23,0*��4*8-,3/8��3/-.0-�7345�B35�1�,1*���65*88�	��,0* prgfy�c�y x$$�)���!�� ��&���$uu�)&)x
�rj�n�lnf����jfii��cdefgh�hfjei�jf�qljf��cdefgh�rw�hplilgmrlkf�od�'q�qih�u���u&u$�cjgfn�nlikrqghi�c���d�rg�d�hr�lgmrlkfi�hpch�cjf��cln��lhplg�cdefgh�hfjeiv�chf�wffi�ecd�of�ciifiifn�rg��cih�nqf�oc�cgkfi��ci�c��r�fnod��c�v(pf��rj�n�lnf����jfii�ecj��li�c�hjcnfecj��rw��rj�n�lnf����jfii���fjchlrgi��������plkp��jrmlnfi�� !���(��cgn��(��hjcgi�rjhchlrg�ifjmlkfiv��rjerjf�lgwrjechlrg�jf�cjnlg���rj�n�lnf����jfii�cgn�rqj�ifjmlkf�rwwfjlg�i����fcif�krghckh�drqj��rkc���rj�n�lnf����jfii�rwwlkf�rj�mlilh�rqj��foilhf����v��f�vkrev�!ref��rj�n�lnf����jfii�rwwlkfi�cjf�lgnlmlnqc��d�r�gfn�cgn�r�fjchfn�od�wjcgkpliffi�rw��rj�n�lnf����jfii���fjchlrgi�����v��jfl�phifjmlkfi�krggfkhfn�hr�hpli�nrkqefgh�cjf��jrmlnfn�od��rj�n�lnf����jfii�lg�lhi�kc�cklhd�ci�c�wjfl�ph�ojr�fj���qjiqcgh�hr�lhi��jr�fjhd�ojr�fjc�f�cqhprjlhdliiqfn�od�hpf��v!v��f�cjhefgh�rw�(jcgi�rjhchlrg��fnfjc���rhrj��cjjlfj�!cwfhd�'nelglihjchlrgv��rj�n�lnf����jfii�li�grh�c�erhrj�kcjjlfjv�'����jlkfi�cjfiqo�fkh�hr�kpcg�fv� �fcif�iff���f�vkre��f�c��wrj�wq���hfjei�cgn�krgnlhlrgiv

�NNGKIQ���PI���KWWVLU x��v�ts(rhc��'erqgh��qhihcgnlg� ��s�mfj��&�ncdi ��s�mfj�%&�ncdi $�&vx&s�mfj�$&�ncdi ��st���$&��cdi )&xv%ts"c�cgkf��qjjfgh

 c�f�t�rw�)!u

�KWWVLU�Ga��SVL�HJ�jrii�!pl�efgh��pcj�fi s tuuv$u�cjgfn��likrqghi s �u%vt)�'erqgh�nqf�od�nqf�nchf s t&uvtu'erqgh�nqf�cwhfj�nqf�nchf s tuxvu#!fjmlkf��pcj�fi s )v�)
st&uvtu'kkrqgh�!pl��fj��qeofjy��'erqgh��qfy

�pfjf�c��r�fn�od�ihchf��c���kjfnlh�kcjn��cdefghi�cjfiqo�fkh�hr�c�iqjkpcj�f�rw�q��hr�$ ���plkp��l���grh�of��jfchfjhpcg�hpf�krih�rw�ckkf�hcgkfv



��������	
��������
�������
�
�������������
�����
����������
������������� ����������	���	�����

����
� ������ � ���!����
��"���������������# �"���������������#

��	
�$����%�$



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������������ ������!��"#$%"&'�()**+,"'(��-�.�����!�/� ���01 2�1���.��� 
�1�������.���3456783�9::�;< = =>?@@A ==?>BAC73D:�E3FGD = =H?IHA =>?JJAE3KL4�MN8D5�9::;< = =O?I>A =B?=PAM3D5EG7�5739G�=;�< = P=?PIA =J?>BAM7G4G7FG�35�K8Q:G7DG44�Q3LG = =>?@@A ==?>BAM7G4G7FG�35�K8Q:G7DG44�Q3LG�;< = =>?@@A ==?>BA4NQ5G773�9::;< = =O?I>A =B?=PA5RSTU�<VUUWX J =PP?IPA HY?=JA
��Z���	!��!�
���[\\� 

��-�.�����!�/��� ���01 2�1���.��� 
�1�������.���:M]C�̂3D3CĜ GD5�3D:�9ND46Q58DC J =PP?IPA HY?=JA5RSTU�<VUUWX J =PP?IPA HY?=JA��Z���	!��!�
�����[\\� 

MT_W�I�R̀�>4P



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������������ ������!��"#$%$&'(�)*'#%+,��������
����- 
�.������/���0�.��/���1�--��23���	�4��5���������������6789:8969; <=>>?�@ABCD�EAFGHIJ?KALM=FJ�KBDI=?NO6N�KABGPQ=<�RBS�N?J�@>DDB?TDB=PQ=<MF�UUN9:IVWWXYZ[\]�CYV̂_̀���2a�5�����b�/ N�]c66:?d[eeXY���f�g�
�����/�����0���- P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?QFIh9U6�QFJ=BFAJQDFA>�KG<L?iQJ=�96O>AG=�MABL@>�;97j: ����- NOh;U NjhN9
@YX[kdl N:h6m N9h;O@̂X]�?̂YZd\YkX 9h9: Nh7j

E[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�T\pqr�KV[_l�IRRHEE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�RK@C�M\_\kXWX_l�\_̀�IV_r̂]l[_k�H�I\YY[XY�d\r�\̂ [̀lX̀�ld[r�rd[eWX_l�\_̀�[l�d\r�cXX_�YXpX[kdX̀�nYVW�[lr�lX_̀XYX̀�pX[kdl�Vn�NH]crFQFA�ARTAP >DIGEDs�?=BPQI=?�OU:?d[eeXY BXZX[tXY
3���	�4��5�������������u�6789:8969; i?�EAFG�FhAh�H�IRRN966�=F=BCL�KABG�RBQP=>DIGEDs�?=BPQI=?�N9H9:U7?AQFJ�KAi>MF�UUN6OIVWWXYZ[\]�CYV̂_̀���2a�5�����b�/ N�]c66:?d[eeXY���f�g�
�����/�����0���- P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?9U6�QFJ=BFAJQDFA>�KG<L?iQJ=�96O>AG=�MABL@>�;97j: ����- NOh;U NjhN9

@YX[kdl N:h6m N9h;O@̂X]�?̂YZd\YkX 9h9: Nh7jE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�?V]lXYY\�IRRHEE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�RK@C�M\_\kXWX_l�\_̀�IV_r̂]l[_k�H�I\YY[XY�d\r�\̂ [̀lX̀�ld[r�rd[eWX_l�\_̀�[l�d\r�cXX_�YXpX[kdX̀�nYVW�[lr�lX_̀XYX̀�pX[kdl�Vn�NH]crFQFA�ARTAP EB=JJ�?A<L=B?d[eeXY BXZX[tXY
3���	�4��5��������������u6O86N8969; P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?9jU�BQP=B?QR=�AP=Fi=?iQJ=�;66vAIG?DFPQ>>=@>�;9969IVWWXYZ[\]�CYV̂_̀���2a�5�����b�/ N�]c669?d[eeXY���f�g�
�����/�����0���- P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?9U6�QFJ=BFAJQDFA>�KG<L?iQJ=�96O>AG=�MABL@>�;97j: ����- NUh66 NNhUj

@YX[kdl N;hN; N6hN6@̂X]�?̂YZd\YkX NhO7 NhjjE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�Arl̂Y[\�IRR�HEE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�RK@C�M\_\kXWX_l�\_̀�IV_r̂]l[_k�H�I\YY[XY�d\r�\̂ [̀lX̀�ld[r�rd[eWX_l�\_̀�[l�d\r�cXX_�YXpX[kdX̀�nYVW�[lr�lX_̀XYX̀�pX[kdl�Vn�NH]crFQFA�ARTAP ?GL=�>==?d[eeXY BXZX[tXY
3���	�4��5���������������6O86N8969; ?L?ID�<=?J�IDA?J�@>DBQRASQFI;666�:mJT�?JB==J�=A?JKA>M=JJD@>�;j99NIVWWXYZ[\]�CYV̂_̀���2a�5�����b�/ N�]c669?d[eeXY���f�g�
�����/�����0���- P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?9U6�QFJ=BFAJQDFA>�KG<L?iQJ=�96O>AG=�MABL@>�;97j: ����- NUh66 NNhUj

@YX[kdl N;hN; N6hN6@̂X]�?̂YZd\YkX NhO7 NhjjE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�KYXrXYtX�Al�<[]̀XY_Xrr�>\qX�HEE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�RK@C�M\_\kXWX_l�\_̀�IV_r̂]l[_k�H�I\YY[XY�d\r�\̂ [̀lX̀�ld[r�rd[eWX_l�\_̀�[l�d\r�cXX_�YXpX[kdX̀�nYVW�[lr�lX_̀XYX̀�pX[kdl�Vn�NH]crMABIL�?IDJJ RAPQR�?J=AR?d[eeXY BXZX[tXY
3���	�4��5������������w�w6O86N8969; KAFJT=B�JBAI=�NU;;j�?AFRL�?T=>>�RBhAKD>>D�E=AIT@>�;;U79BXr[̀X_l[\]�CYV̂_̀���2a�5�����b�/ N�]c669?d[eeXY���f�g�
�����/�����0���- P=?JA�KBDK=BJL�?=BPQI=?9U6�QFJ=BFAJQDFA>�KG<L?iQJ=�96O>AG=�MABL@>�;97j: ����- 9Nh9; N7hUj

@YX[kdl N;hN; N6hN6BXr[̀X_l[\]�?̂YZd\YkX Uh9U Uh9U@̂X]�?̂YZd\YkX 9hOU 9hNmE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�K\_ldXY�JY\ZX�NH�EE[]]�BXnXYX_ZXo�RK@C�M\_\kXWX_l�\_̀�IV_r̂]l[_k�H�I\YY[XY�d\r�\̂ [̀lX̀�ld[r�rd[eWX_l�\_̀�[l�d\r�cXX_�YXpX[kdX̀�nYVW�[lr�lX_̀XYX̀�pX[kdl�Vn�NH]crFQFA�ARTAP MDFQIA�PQJA>=?d[eeXY BXZX[tXY
K\kX�j�Vn�U?9



��������	���������
����������	������� ������������������������������������������������ ������!����������
����" 
�#������$���%�#��$���&�""��'(���	�)��*��������+������,-.,/.0,0/ 12345�63784�9550,,:�;3<82=>58�?32@;3A?3BC�9D3=<EB�/0:/F9GHHIJKLMN�1JGOPQ���'R�*�����S�$ :�NT,,0=ULVVIJ���W�X�
�����$�����%���" 5?E1�C34318C84<9D4=YB<>410Z,�>4<8243<>D43B�?@;AB3@8�C32AEB�/0F[\ ����" :]̂/] :ẐFF
EJIL_Ù :/̂:/ :,̂:,5INLaIJb�3JIM�=OJKUMJ_I /̂F, /̂F,EOIN�=OJKUMJ_I 0̂Z\ :̂]FcLNN�2IdIJIPKIe�1JMPQ�6MaIPcLNN�2IdIJIPKIe�5?E1�CMPM_IHIP̀�MPQ�9GPfOǸLP_�g�9MJJLIJ�UMf�MOQL̀IQ�̀ULf�fULVHIP̀�MPQ�L̀�UMf�TIIP�JIhIL_UIQ�dJGH�L̀f�̀IPQIJIQ�hIL_Ù�Gd�:gNTfC329A�=9D<< 7348==3�=<8?4>3@=ULVVIJ 2IKILaIJ

(���	�)��*���������������,-.,/.0,0/ 78=<3�?2D?82<A�=827>98=0[Z�2>782=>58�3784Y8=Y><8�/,,i39@=D47>BB8EB�/00,09GHHIJKLMN�1JGOPQ���'R�*�����S�$ :�NT,,0=ULVVIJ���W�X�
�����$�����%���" 5?E1�C34318C84<9D4=YB<>410Z,�>4<8243<>D43B�?@;AB3@8�C32AEB�/0F[\ ����" :Ẑ,, ::̂Z[
EJIL_Ù :/̂:/ :,̂:,EOIN�=OJKUMJ_I :̂-F :̂[[cLNN�2IdIJIPKIe�?JIfIJaI�M̀�;LNQIJPIff�BMjIcLNN�2IdIJIPKIe�5?E1�CMPM_IHIP̀�MPQ�9GPfOǸLP_�g�9MJJLIJ�UMf�MOQL̀IQ�̀ULf�fULVHIP̀�MPQ�L̀�UMf�TIIP�JIhIL_UIQ�dJGH�L̀f�̀IPQIJIQ�hIL_Ù�Gd�:gNTfC329A�=9D<< =@A8�B88=ULVVIJ 2IKILaIJ

?M_I�Z�Gd�Z=0



����������	
�����������������������������
��� !"#$ �%$�% $�&$ '()*�$ )#$!�)+("�%�$)(�!�,()+�-�#$�%.-/ !)012 ." �/.3 �&+ &3"�%.-.42 �)��5�$2',(' �67%$ ""0���.8�('�2.) �9  "*�.22�,�:;<=��$�/�$ �'.-"�9�$�%�").2�' 2(8 $-0

>?@ABCDBE�FGH@EII>?@ABCDBE�FGH@EIIJ�KLML�N?G�OPPPQRSTAATIJ�UV�OWPOP
X�Y���Z�
[\���\	�����\�����Z�
���	�]�����̂��Z����	�����[�\��\����___��Ẑ�̀�Z���[

a[���Z�
[\����b
cdEIeD?fIg

SKhi�jklkiFjFlU�mMlnopUqlirsW�tDuE@IDBE�kuE�nUF�rWRvTwxI?fuDAAEJ�hp�PrrRr
y�[��\������̀���z\����y������y �[��\��{\����̂qfu?DwE�ld|}E@tE|DeeTfwE�kBuDwE~?d@�HT�|Efe�DI�BdEoKn�n�DHHE@�ld|}E@ R��rP�rRrPR��RO�rRrPkww?dfe�ld|}E@qfu?DwE�STeE rPR�r�>RsQP�P>Rr�R��P�QF�RkO������U�E�T}?uE�TBB@EII�DI��?@�w?@@EIH?fBEfwE?fA�L

������������\����������������������������	��������̀���ZZ�	��������___��Ẑ�̀�Z���[� �����������[��\����b�����[	���[b �����������{�����yz\�������[�	b ������y������bz\��������b ���������������X����{X{����������z��������������������\���̀�ZZ	���[�	b
KT��MfADfE�

kmmMolU�nojjkt~�TI�?��R��rP�rRrP��pknU�Kk~jFlU�tFmFq�FS�R���s�rRrP���������� y���������������� y���������������� �� y������ y�������������� y���������������� y���������������� �� y������ y�������������� y������������������ y���������������� �� y����� y����SoF�SkUF Kk~jFlUql�MqmF�SkUF ql�MqmF�NkpklmFql�MqmF�lojNFtSk~n�KknU�SoF ql�MqmF�kjMolU mojopkUq�F�UMUkp

�������]��
�����	�����Z	���̂̂��\���\\����\�_��̀��̀����\������	�����
��\��̀���Z����
��]������\�̂�Z	�Z	�
��	�Y	��
��̀��̂	���X���	���		�	���]�
�̂[�\���	����\��\̂�\�������̀���		�	��]��̀����̂���̀���	�̂_�̂�{�Z	���[�	Y�������	�̂[�	Y��]���	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����Z	����\��������_̀ ��̀�Z	���̂������������\̂������	�\�Z�	�����\��	��������	[�	��\]�	[����\�	��	̂�\����	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����\̂���	��	�����]]	�\����Z������\�����
��	���������	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����]]����	���������	�_�����___�__����[����[���	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����]]�����	��\̂���̂����
��_\̂��\̂��Z	��̂��
�]	�\�̀�����]���	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����Z	����\���������	��̀��	�������\\��̂�����̀���̂���[\���	�Z	���̂̂��
���	�̂_�̂�{�Z	����\�������Z����
������]	��̀���	�Y	��Z�	���\���������Z	�Z	�
��	�Y	������̀�	��
����̂��
��̀�������Z�	�[\���]��	�\�Z�	�����\��̂	���X���	���		�	���]�
��̂[�\���	����\����	�̂_�̂�{�Z	������\�����[���	���		�	������Z	�����	�����������̀�\����������__����[������]�	�]�����	[���\̂���\̂����\��� ̀	�����_̂��
��ZZ���������_����������]��[�
��������̂��\�Z����̂������\����\̂������	̂�����	̂�Z�
[\����	���������������	�̀�	���]��Z���� ��_̀ ��̀�_����\������	��	��̀�\��̀�������]����Z��\������������\���
��	������\�����___��Ẑ�̀�Z���[�]�	�]�����	[���\̂���\̂����\��



����������	�
�������	�
�������� ��������������������������������	��������� ������ �!"��� �������#"$�%�������!"&&���'�()�*+�,-.����������/��0���1	���.�������&"��,��	����� �,����������������������	���&��	���,���	������0 %.��0����,%.������2!"345�678�9:�;<=;>=>;>? �@�AA�* ,����
�*
BCD5E�FG4HID JKKLMNBCD5E�OPCQ:DKKBCD5E�74GRGS

TGSRU4VD4C: OPCQ:DFG4HIDWEXSY�Z����2#��#�&!���� [��\��[�\!!���������0�����,�	�]��������,�]�,�� ��74GRGS BU5R̂4:H�_
 �������#"��������̀�*��a��b���c)�* �Z����2#��#�&!��������,��+�*Z�����*
������
�' �����*���-��(��c�*d,�e�*����d $���@����$��(��c�*d,�e�*����d ��������b�c������-����(�'���b

�\�\�$��a��\�\�f���������*b+���*a�*�
�.����a)�g��*
���(���f�"&2��	�������.����&&���$*������h+�*���������������������	���&��	���,���	������0 %.��0����,%.������2!"345�678�9:�;<=K;=>;>? �@�AA�* ,����
�*
BCD5E�FG4HID JKNL>KBCD5E�OPCQ:DKKBCD5E�74GRGS

TGSRU4VD4C: OPCQ:DFG4HIDWEXSY�Z����2#��#�"�""�� [��\��[�\�����������0�����,�	�]��������,�]�,�� ��74GRGS BU5R̂4:H�_
 �������#"��������̀�*��a��b���c)�* �Z����2#��#�"�""������,��+�*Z�����*
������
�' �����*���-��(��c�*d,�e�*����d ��(��-�(��$��(��c�*d,�e�*����d ��������b�c������-����(�'���b

��*(������"�����@��@�*-���*���.����������/��0���1	���.�������&���*(������������������������	���&��	���,���	������0 %.��0����,%.������2!"345�678�9:�;<=KK=>;>? �@�AA�* ,����
�*
BCD5E�FG4HID JKKLMiBCD5E�OPCQ:DKKBCD5E�74GRGS

TGSRU4VD4C: OPCQ:DFG4HIDWEXSY�Z����2#��#����"�2 [��\��[�\!#���������0�����,�	�]��������,�]�,�� ��74GRGS BU5R̂4:H�_
 �������#"��������̀�*��a��b���c)�* �Z����2#��#����"�2����,��+�*Z�����*
������
�' �����*���-��(��c�*d,�e�*����d �*��-�]�
��f�$��(��c�*d,�e�*����d ��������b�c������-����(�'���b

��b�����e�&



����������	�
�������	�
�������� ��������������������������������	��������� ������ �!"��� �������#"�$�%�	�%�&�����'�%(��)
�%�&%���(*�+�,!�---.�"������/)0��)'��)����������'1.�������!#2��(��3��4�&�������(*�+���&
���%5�%����&�6�&�7���&
���%�-��	���&�������/��1 8.������������1����'8.������,!"9:;�<=>�?@�ABCDDCEAEF �G�66�& '����
�&
HIJ;K�LM:NOJ PDFQDRHIJ;K�STIU@JDDHIJ;K�=:MVMW

XMWVY:ZJ:I@ STIU@JLM:NOJ[K\W]�̂����,#��#��#�!!� _��̀!"_�̀"#���������1�����'�	�a��������'�a�'�� ��=:MVMW HY;Vb:@N�c
 �������#"��������d�&��(��$���4*�& �̂����,#��#��#�!!�����'��7�&�̂����&
������
�/ �����&���)��%��4�&e'�3�&����e ���$���(��'���G����%��4�&e'�3�&����e ��������$�4������)����%�/���$

��/���)����(���$4�.���������2&��(0��)�&.�������a.�	�����'��1.��'�,����'�f��/���%�����������������������	���-��	���'���	������1 8.��1����'8.������,!"9:;�<=>�?@�ABCDDCEAEF �G�66�& '����
�&
HIJ;K�LM:NOJ PDFQgRHIJ;K�STIU@JDDHIJ;K�=:MVMW

XMWVY:ZJ:I@ STIU@JLM:NOJ[K\W]�̂����,#��#�#-,""� _��̀#�_�̀,,���������1�����'�	�a��������'�a�'�� ��=:MVMW HY;Vb:@N�c
 �������#"��������d�&��(��$���4*�& �̂����,#��#�#-,""�����'��7�&�̂����&
������
�/ �����&���)��%��4�&e'�3�&����e ��$��/�����&(��%��4�&e'�3�&����e ��������$�4������)����%�/���$

�&�%�&
����� �/)�&��%%���(������� �/)�&��%%���(�%�2/
)̀.��������1��.�����!"�,��%G��*%�����������������������	���-��	���'���	������1 8.��1����'8.������,!"9:;�<=>�?@�ABCDDCEAEF �G�66�& '����
�&
HIJ;K�LM:NOJ PDDQRhHIJ;K�STIU@JDDHIJ;K�=:MVMW

XMWVY:ZJ:I@ STIU@JLM:NOJ[K\W]�̂����,#��#�"����, _��̀��_�̀!#���������1�����'�	�a��������'�a�'�� ��=:MVMW HY;Vb:@N�c
 �������#"��������d�&��(��$���4*�& �̂����,#��#�"����,����'��7�&�̂����&
������
�/ �����&���)��%��4�&e'�3�&����e �&�%�&
����� �/)�&��%%���(���%��4�&e'�3�&����e ��������$�4������)����%�/���$

��$�����3�-



����������	�
�������	�
�������� ��������������������������������	��������� ������ �!"��� �������#"���$��%�&��������%� ���"�����������'����%�%�����'�	��"�!(���%�&��������%� ����������������������	���)��	���&���	������* +'��*����&+'������(!",-.�/01�23�456786949: �;�<<�= &����
�=

>?@.A�BC-DE@ F7:5G94>?@.A�HI?J3@77>?@.A�0-CKCL
MCLKN-O@-?3 HI?J3@BC-DE@PAQLR�S����(#�)#�(��"(# T��U��T��U��T��U��T�U��T)U�)
���������*�����&�	�%��������&�%�&����&�+��U�U���&�%�&����	V�&+�����	&���	���&�������&��	���	�����&�%�&��

��0-CKCL >N.KW-3D�X
 �������#"��������Y�=��Z��[���\]�= �S����(#�)#�(��"(#����&��̂�=S��� ��)��=
������
�_ ������̀���̂���=���=_̂��a��\�=b&�c�=����b ��������[�\������d����a�_���[��a��\�=b&�c�=����b �����&&�

�����&��	&�S)������*�	���V	� �&'�	�%	�'������)!(������&��	&�S���������������������	���)��	���&���	������* +��	������',-.�/01�23�4567e6949: �;�<<�= &����
�=

>?@.A�BC-DE@ F9eG48>?@.A�HI?J3@77>?@.A�0-CKCL
MCLKN-O@-?3 HI?J3@BC-DE@PAQLR�S����(#��#��"(��� T��U��T�U!�T)U��T�U��T)U�)
���������*�����&�	�%��������&�%�&���_�
�=̂��=�����=�;�=[��&�a�d�����_��	V�&+�����	&���	���&�������&��	���	�����&�%�&��

��0-CKCL >N.KW-3D�X
 �������#"��������Y�=��Z��[���\]�= �S����(#��#��"(�������&��̂�=S��� ���=
������
�_ �����=���d��a��\�=b&�c�=����b ��������[�\������d����a�_���[��a��\�=b&�c�=����b ����;�=��=����		

��[��!��c�)



����������	�
�������	�
�������� ��������������������������������	��������� ������ �!"��� �������#"��$%�&���'�����(��)���*�+,�	��-.�������	����/,��/��/	�0�1,�����!""��/�2�(�3�(4�����������������������	���5��	���/���	������6 1,��6����/1,������.!"789�:;<�=>�?@AB@AC?CD �'�EE�( /����
�(

FGH9I�JK8LMH NBOPQRFGH9I�STGU>HBBFGH9I�;8KVKW
XKWVY8ZH8G> STGU>HJK8LMH[I\W]�̂����.#��#��#�!#� _��-��_�-��_5-�5���������6�����/�	�0��������/�0�/��/��	���	�����/�0�/�� ��;8KVKW FY9V̀8>L�a
 �������#"��������b�(��c��2���%d�( �̂����.#��#��#�!#�����/��)�(�̂�� ���(
������
�$ �����(���4��+��%�(e/�*�(����e ��������2�%������4����+�$���2��+��%�(e/�*�(����e �(�+�(
����� �$4�(��++���c�

f>gG8VK��FGH9I NCROPOD

��2��5��*�5











���������	�
����
������������������������������������	�� !"�#$%�����
����&��'��(�����)���#**#+"�!����*�����������
�����,���(���(��	(��%)����-������.�)��/������	��'���01� �02��2+�,+�����2+��+���� ����,
��3#��!��4 5�4 63�$ 3/"� ����
����7	��������8����������63%�+�,�����������-���(�����(�-����*9���:	���6��	
�'9������������02���������������������������������������������������������,��������4�*9��:	���6��	
�'9�������������������/�*9�:	���6��	
�'9���������������� 	��9��/%"6�3 �9�;���������('�(��������(��	�������	7��;����	������('��()���;
��8��(����(��(��;��������&�����'	�(���������(��	������(����;��;	���	�-���	(��(��	-���	��-(����

� �������� ��������
��;()��	-�7	��'	�(��8-��(�������;�-��/)������;��)����8����	9���<�����6��;�'�	(3�����7���	7��,=�����7��������8�������'��7�(	����'����;�(����'���7�	��'�����7��	-�;
��(��>-����	(���	(���(�(���;����(
	������������	(���9�<�����6��;�'�	(��%;	(��.��?�2�?2,0.@������?�������������������	�3����'��(	����������>-���'��	������(��������(�����
�����(������(���������(��	(�7������������
��A�"�3� ���������3B �����"�3� ��������A3�3 #$�*�$



��������	
�������� ���������������������� !"�#$"%"$&"�'(�)*+,"$-"%%�.'/"�0112((-3� *%!�145%4-67869�)*+,"$-"%%�.'/"�:+&,;.'-,�<=�.'/"%>�?.�8@A8B CDED�F�D��GHIJKL�MN�OLPLQRS �T���	
�������� U���T�
��VWX�����

Y�Z[\]̂_̂̀ab�cdbe[fg��Zhijk�l�Zh

mnop�qrsstr�uvwrxyz�qw{|}�~�m�o����yx�y����}�mm��m�m�o�

���������������}��������}u��

V�L��L����L�����R���LNS��R�����LSM��NSL�Q������R������XX ¡¢�QN�£K��LO��¤��¥¦��¥§��§�̈©�£K��LO��¤��¥¦��¥§����M���̈OLL�£K��LO��¤��¥§¥ª«�V¢¬¤��¥§¤�¥§¦��®
��I�G�̄
���°T	�
�
± ²	
� UH�T�
�̈�S�³�SL�́M�SLµ�¶LO·QPL�� ���¡�� ���¡���¥�¤�̈�©QN��¶LO·QPL�� ��¡�� ��¡��

8̧89;998̧89;999̧;99



���������	
�	����	�
	�	
�	��������	����	��	
�����������	��������
 ����! "�##$##











U.S. BANK N.A. – CDD 
Lockbox Services SDS 12-2657 
PO Box 86 
Minneapolis, MN  55486-2657 

Subject: Assessments collected by the County Tax Collector

To Whom It May Concern
Enclosed please find check(s) for deposit as follows:

Amount Check No. Deposit Account
1,470.03$       Account #159237004 Series 2012 (Revenue)
2,730.61$       Account #205040003 Series 2013 (Revenue)

Sincerely,

Al Zhang

Accountant
250 International Parkway Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL 32746
352-451-7995

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District
250 International Parkway Suite 208

Lake Mary, FL 32746
Tel: (321) 263-0132

September 25, 2023

1117
1118



U.S. BANK N.A. – CDD 
Lockbox Services SDS 12-2657 
PO Box 86 
Minneapolis, MN  55486-2657 

Subject: Assessments collected by the County Tax Collector

To Whom It May Concern
Enclosed please find check(s) for deposit as follows:

Amount Check No. Deposit Account
1,470.03$       Account #159237004 Series 2012 (Revenue)
2,730.61$       Account #205040003 Series 2013 (Revenue)

Sincerely,

Al Zhang

Accountant
250 International Parkway Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL 32746
352-451-7995

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District
250 International Parkway Suite 208

Lake Mary, FL 32746
Tel: (321) 263-0132

September 25, 2023

1117
1118

















  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 



 

 
4887-8565-6714, v. 1 

Agreement for the Production and Distribution of Newsletter 
 

This Agreement for the Production and Distribution of Newsletter (this “Agreement”) is entered 
into as of October ____, 2023 between The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development 
District, a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes (the “District”), and IKare Publishing, Inc., a Florida profit corporation (the “Contractor”). 

 
Background Information: 

 
The District desires to retain an independent contractor for the production and distribution of a 

monthly newsletter published for the purpose of providing community information to the 948 homes in 
the District. The Contractor represents that it is duly licensed in the state of Florida and qualified to 
perform the job duties and has any and all approvals and licenses as required by law to provide these 
services. The Contractor is familiar with the District’s property. In consideration of the Contractor’s 
agreement to perform the services described below and the District’s agreement to compensate the 
Contractor the parties desire to enter into this Agreement. 

 
Operative Provisions:  

 
1. Incorporation of Background Information. The background information stated above is true and 

correct and by this reference is incorporated as a material part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Description of Work. The Contractor shall perform all work, including all labor, material, equipment, 
supplies, tools, supervision, services, transportation, and all other necessary incidental items required for 
the complete performance of the work as described in Exhibit A. No advertising shall be placed on the 
front and back covers of the newsletter or on the calendar. The calendar shall be displayed on the center 
page of the newsletter. Advertisements shall not exceed fifty (50) percent of the newsletter. 
 

3. Compensation. Contractor shall be responsible for gathering advertisements from local merchants and 
for collecting fees for said advertisements. Contractor shall ensure that the newsletter goes out in a 
timely professional fashion.  It is the responsibility of Contractor to secure enough advertisers, to collect 
funds from said, and to pay “all” costs associated with the publication, and deliverance of (12) 
publications per contract to residents.  The net result shall be that there is no cost to the District or the 
residents. All profits made from publishing the newsletter shall be the sole property of Contractor.  
 

4. Term and Renewal. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for 1 year from the date of this 
Agreement. At the end of the initial term, the Agreement shall automatically renew for subsequent 1-
year terms pursuant to the same contract provisions as the initial term, until terminated by either party 
pursuant to the termination provision below.  

 
5. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with 30 days’ written notice with or without 

cause.  
 

6. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall abide by all applicable laws at all times. Contractor shall 
obtain and maintain, at Contractor's sole expense, all licenses and approvals required by law or the 
holder of any copyright in connection with the use of copyrighted materials. 



 

 
4887-8565-6714, v. 1 

 
7. Indemnification.  

a. Contractor shall indemnify the District for any damages caused by the negligence or intentional 
acts caused by the Contractor.  Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all 
settlements, judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, 
court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and paralegal 
fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 

b. Contractor agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s 
limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute.  Any 
subcontractor retained by the Contractor shall acknowledge the same in writing.  This section 
survives termination of this Agreement.  
 

8. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be construed, 
interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida with venue in the county where 
the District is located. 

 
9. Amendment. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be made 

only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the parties hereto. 
 

10. Assignment. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without 
the prior written approval of the District. Any assignment entered into without the written approval of 
the District shall be invalid and unenforceable.  

 
11. Enforcement of Agreement. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other party 

to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, the right of 
damages, injunctive relief and specific performance. In the event either party is required to enforce this 
Agreement or any provision hereof by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all fees and costs incurred, including but not limited to 
reasonable attorneys' fees incurred prior to or during any litigation or other dispute resolution and 
including fees incurred in appellate proceedings.  

 
12. No Waiver. The failure of the District to enforce at any time or for any period of time any one or more 

of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed to be and shall not be a waiver of any such 
provision or provisions or of its rights thereafter to enforce each and every such provision. 

 
13. Scrutinized Companies. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, Contractor represents that in 

entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been designated as a “scrutinized company” under 
the statute and, in the event that the Contractor is designated as a “scrutinized company”, the Contractor 
shall immediately notify the District whereupon this Agreement may be terminated by the District. 

 
14. E-Verification. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes,  

a. Contractor represents that Contractor is eligible to contract with the District and is currently in 
compliance and will remain in compliance, for as long as it has any obligations under this 
Agreement, with all requirements of the above statute; this includes, but is not limited to, 
registering with and using the United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify 
system to verify the work authorization status of all employees hired on or after January 1, 2021.  



 

 
4887-8565-6714, v. 1 

b. If the District has a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 
448.09(1), Florida Statutes, the District will terminate this Agreement as required by Section 
448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes.  

i. If the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated Section 
448.09(1), Florida Statutes, but the Contractor otherwise complied with its obligations 
thereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor and the Contractor will 
immediately terminate its contract with the subcontractor.  

c. If this Agreement is terminated in accordance with this section, then the Contractor will be liable 
for any additional costs incurred by the District. 
 

15. Public Records. As required under Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Contractor shall (a) keep and 
maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the District in order to 
perform the service, (b) provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and 
conditions that the District would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided by law, (c) ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law, (d) meet all 
requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the District all public records in 
possession of the Contractor upon termination of the Agreement and destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All 
records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with the 
information technology systems of the District. 

 
IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 813-758-4841, BY 
EMAIL AT TDOBSON@VESTAPROPERTYSERVICES.COM, OR BY 
REGULAR MAIL AT 250 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY, SUITE 208, LAKE 
MARY, FL 32746. 

 
16. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the parties as an arm’s 

length transaction. The parties participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the 
advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, all parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful 
language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 
 

17. Authority to Execute. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the appropriate 
body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the requirements of law, and each 
party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 

 
18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when 

executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts together shall constitute, but 
one and the same instrument. 

 
19. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 



 

 
4887-8565-6714, v. 1 

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

20. Notice. Whenever any party desires to give notice to the other parties, it must be given by written notice, 
sent by email, certified United States mail with return receipt requested, or a nationally recognized 
express transportation company to the addresses below. In the event that any party undergoes a change 
in address or contact information, notification to the other parties shall be made. 

 
To the District: 
c/o Vesta 
250 International Parkway 
Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Attn: Tish Dobson 
TDobson@vestapropertyservices.com  
 

 To the Contractor: 
1512 Rincon Drive 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 
ikarepublishing@gmail.com 

21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and neither party is to rely upon any 
oral representations made by the other party. To the extent that any provisions of this Agreement 
conflict with the provisions in any exhibit, the provisions in this Agreement shall control over provisions 
in any exhibit. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first written above. 

 
IKare Publishing, Inc. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Name: ________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
 

The Preserve at Wilderness Lake  
Community Development District 
 
____________________________________ 
Chair/Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors 

  
  

 



The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District 
Agreement for the Production and Distribution of Newsletter  

By IKare Publishing Inc. 

The newsletter for Wilderness Lake is a monthly informational newsletter published for the benefit of informing the 948 
homes of Wilderness Lakes, publication will be black and white copy. All residents and such others as agreed to by the 
Editor/Publisher, are eligible to receive this newsletter.  IKare Publishing will provide postage for newsletters mailed to 
homes only residing in the Wilderness Lakes zip code. 

The Wilderness Lakes Preserve CDD does not wish, or desire to hire employees. The Board has decided that to insure 
the continuance of this neighborhood newsletter the following parameters be adopted: 

A member of the CDD (hereinafter referred to as the reviewing member) must be the only person sending articles for 
submission into the newsletter. If articles from anyone else are sent to IKare Publishing we will forward them to the 
reviewing member and let the sender know the policy.  

Editor/Publisher: IKare Publishing, Inc. will be emailed articles in a copy/paste format by the reviewing member to 
begin layout and design by 9:00 am on the agreed deadlines of (third Friday of every month, as follows for the first  12 
publications): October 20, November 17, December 15, January 19, February 16, March 15, April 19, May 17, 
June 21, July 19, August 16, September 20. If above deadlines are not met, a delay in delivery may occur. 

When emailing information it needs to be made clear to IKare Publishing what the page layout/order of articles will be 
(articles are published as sent, we do not change or edit articles). Once your information is received and laid out in the 
current publication and we find there are available pages we will insert articles of general interest.  The reviewing 
member has 24 hours to review the newsletter for minor errors, this is not a time for adding or removing articles.  

Cost: IKare Publishing shall also be responsible to gather ads from local merchants, collect fees for said ads, to ensure 
that the newsletter goes out in a timely professional fashion.  It is the responsibility of IKare Publishing to secure enough 
advertisers, to collect funds from said, and to pay “all” costs associated with the publication, and deliverance of  (12) 
publications per contract to residents.  The net result shall be that there is no cost to Wilderness Preserve or the residents.   
All profits made from publishing the newsletter shall be the sole property of IKare Publishing Inc. There shall be no 
limit to the number of advertisers. A page count for the newsletter is not guaranteed being as it is based on advertising. 
If at anytime the newsletter is not bringing in enough advertising revenue to cover the cost, IKare Publishing has the 
right to cancel with 30 days notice or discuss other options with the community. 

Free Advertising: At no time is the community to request ads or reference a company/sponsor that makes a profit off 
a service to be placed in the newsletter at no charge to keep fairness with the advertisers.  

Tax Reporting: Tax reporting is not the responsibility of  the association. It is the responsibility of  IKare Publishing 
Inc. to plan and pay any taxes due in an appropriate manner that is consistent with Internal Revenue Service regulations. 

Change of addresses: If at anytime the community addresses need to be updated it is the responsibility of 
Wilderness Lake Preserve to notify IKare Publishing with a new list of addresses not exceeding the 948 count. 

Addresses: Will need to be provided to IKare Publishing in Excel. In the following format: 

Resident             123 Apple Ct.         Tampa FL 33544 
(one cell) (one cell)       (one cell) 

Website: IKare Publishing Inc. will post your newsletter on our website, www.IKarepublishing.com, free of charge. 

U. S. Post Office: The newsletter will be mailed bulk mail by IKare Publishing in accordance to the schedule. At no 
time is IKare Publishing Inc. responsible for delays or lost mail incurred by the U.S. Post Office.   

Page 1 of  2 

Exhibit A



Publication Time Period: The element of time for publication shall be from October 20, 2023 through October 20, 
2024, with automatic renewal after August 20th of each year thereafter.   

(Deadlines third Friday of every month, as follows for the first 12 publications/actual date changes after first year): 

October 20, 2023 (Nov issue) 
November 17, 2023 (Dec issue) 
December 15, 2023 (Jan issue) 
January 19, 2024 (Feb issue) 
February 16, 2024 (Mar issue) 
March 15, 2024 (Apr issue) 
April 19, 2024 (May issue) 
May 17, 2024 (Jun issue) 
June 21, 2024 (Jul issue) 
July 19, 2024 (Aug issue) 
August 16, 2024 (Sept issue)  
September 20, 2024 (Oct issue) 
Totaling 12 issues per contract. 

Page 2 of 2 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 



ESTIMATE

Finn Outdoor

730 20th Ave N
Saint Petersburg, FL 33704

robb@finnoutdoor.com
(813)957-6075

Wilderness Lake CDD

Bill to

Wilderness Lake CDD

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 2080
Estimate date: 10/04/2023

AmountProduct or service

1. Services 1 × $1,200.00 $1,200.00

CI 457 / FES 458 -- Clear inlet, pipe, and FES of debris and/or sediment. Check and clear outfall of buildup

2. Services 1 × $900.00 $900.00

J 1.1 / J1.2 / J1.4 -- Clear vegetation and/or debris from boxes and inlets (within 15 ')

3. Services 1 × $400.00 $400.00

G.BB -- Clear vegetation and/or debris from box and inlet (within 15')

4. Services 1 × $850.00 $850.00

Cormorant Cove Dr Swale -- G.BB to wetland -- Maintain clear for proper conveyance

Total $3,350.00



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 15 



4879-4682-1258, v. 1 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PRESERVE AT 
WILDERNESS LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CALLING 
FOR A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD BY THE PASCO COUNTY 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE GENERAL 
ELECTION TO BE HELD IN NOVEMBER, 2024. 

 
 WHEREAS, The Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District ("District") is a 
local unit of special-purpose government established by Pasco County, Florida (the “County”); 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(1), Florida Statutes the District Board of Supervisors 
consists of five members; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.006(3), Florida Statutes provides for the election of members to specific 
terms and seat numbers for the District Board of Supervisors and currently calls for the election of three (3) 
members of the Board of Supervisors of the District for seat numbers and length of terms thereof: 
 
 
 Seat No. 3, Currently held by Bryan Norrie Length of term:  4-Years 
 Seat No. 4, Currently held by Holly Ruhlig Length of term:  4-Years 
 Seat No. 5, Currently held by Heather Hepner Length of term:  4-Years 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE PRESERVE AT WILDERNESS LAKE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 
 

Section 1. General Election. There is hereby called an election in the County to be held concurrent 
with the General Election on the first Tuesday of November, which is November 5, 2024, for the 
purpose of having all of the qualified electors residing within the boundaries of the District to 
determine three (3) qualified electors to serve on the Board of Supervisors of the District. 
 

Section 2. Qualifying Period. The period of qualifying as a candidate for a supervisor to the district 
shall be from noon June 10, 2024 through noon June 14, 2024, pursuant to Section 99.061, Florida 
Statutes. This Resolution shall serve as the District’s notice of the qualifying period, pursuant to 
Section 190.006(3), Florida Statutes. Interested candidates should contact the Supervisor of 
Elections for the County for further information. 

 
Section 3. Conduction and Procedure of Election.  

a. The election shall be conducted according to the requirements of general law and law 
governing special district elections. 

b. The election shall be held at the precinct polling places designated by the Supervisor of 
Elections in the County.   

c. The polls shall be opened and closed as provided by law, including, but not limited to 
Section 100.011, Florida Statutes.  

d. The ballot shall contain the names of the candidates to be voted upon, pursuant to Section 
101.151, Florida Statutes. 

e. The Department of State shall make out a notice stating what offices are to be filled at the 
general election, pursuant to Section 100.021 Florida Statutes.   

 



4879-4682-1258, v. 1 

Section 4. Election Costs. The District shall be responsible for paying the District’s proportionate 
share of the regular election costs, if any, pursuant to Section 100.011, Florida Statutes.   

 
Section 5. Effective Date and Transmittal. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage 

and the District's Secretary is authorized to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Supervisor of 
Elections of the County.   

 
 This Resolution is duly passed and adopted this 1st day of November, 2023. 
 
ATTEST: THE PRESERVE AT WILDERNESS LAKE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
    
Signature  Signature 
 
    
Printed Name  Printed Name 
 
Title: Title: 
□ Secretary  □ Chairperson 
□ Assistant Secretary  □ Vice Chairperson 
 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 16 









  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 17 



Nail Tech’s Availability 

 
Monday – Friday 7:00 AM – 7:30 PM 

Resident Clients: 40 – 50 

Non-resident Clients: 8 – 10  

*Also, numerous seasonal / Vacation / Special Occasion Clients 

** Saturday appointments scheduled on occasion to meet the client’s needs.  



August 
 

 

2023 
  

Sunday  Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
       

       

       
       

       
       

       
       

     25 26 
     9:45 – 3:15 

 
X 

27 28 29 30 31   
X 9:45 – 12:15 

5:15 – 6:30 
9:15 – 3:00 10:45 – 4:00 9:45 – 1:45   



September 2023 
  

Sunday  Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

     9:00 – 1:00 X 

3 4 5 
 

6 7 
 

8 9 

X LABOR DAY 9:45 – 10:45 
Personal Medical Appt 
5:00 – 7:00 

Personal Appt 
1:45 – 3:45 

10:15 – 2:45 9:45 – 12:15 X 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
X 9:15 – 2:45 10:45 – 2:30 

5:15  - 6:45 
Sick 10:00 – 2:15 10:45 – 12:45 X 

17 18 19 
 

20 21 22 23 

X 4:45 – 6:15 9:45 – 2:00 OFF 10:45 – 12:15 9:45 – 1:45  X 

24 25 26 27 28 29  
X 9:45 – 1:00 OFF 8:45 – 1:00 

4:45 – 7:00  
10:00 – 2:00 11:15 – 1:00   

       
       

 



October 2023 
  

Sunday  Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
1 2 3 4 5 

 
6 7 

X 7:00 – 12:15 
Personal Appt 
5:00 – 7:00 

9:30 – 11:45 10:45 – 2:30 10:45 – 12:45 
Home visit 1:00 – 2:15 
2:15 – 4:15 

OFF X 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
X 9:30 – 11:45 

1:45 – 3:15 
5:15 – 6:45 

10:45 – 1:00  
4:00 – 7:00  

9:45 – 2:15 
5:15 – 6:30 

11:30 – 1:00  
Cancelled 2 Clients – 
Pump Broke  

8:45 – 3:00  X 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
X       

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
       

29 30 31     
       

       
        



      Preserve at Wilderness Lake
          Spa Services Financials
             Oct 2022 - Sept 2023

Income

October 275.00$      
November 284.00$      
December 333.20$      
January 263.60$      
February 206.40$      
March 217.00$      
April 214.60$      
May 244.60$      
June 270.40$      
July 257.80$      
August 296.60$      
September 246.20$      

Total 3,109.40$  

Expenses

October McNatts 119.00$      
Lowes 9.47$          
Amazon 69.97$        

November McNatts 119.00$      
December McNatts 69.00$        
January McNatts 69.00$        
February McNatts 69.00$        
March McNatts 132.07$      
April McNatts -$            
May McNatts 19.00$        
June McNatts 19.00$        
July McNatts -$            
August McNatts -$            
September McNatts 49.90$        

Total 744.41$     


	Agenda Pg. 1
	Exhibit 1
	RedTree Report

	Exhibit 2
	RedTree Landscape Projects & Proposal Tracker

	Exhibit 3
	RedTree Landscape MaintenanceAgreement Renewal for FY23-24

	Exhibit 4
	RedTree Proposals

	Exhibit 5
	GHS Environmental Report

	Exhibit 6
	District Engineer

	Exhibit 7
	Cormorant Cove Dock Inspection


	Agenda Pg. 2
	Exhibit 8
	Community Manager Report

	Exhibit 9
	District Manager & Field Operations Report

	Exhibit 10
	Minutes

	Exhibit 11
	UnauditedFinancial Report

	Exhibit 12
	Operations& Maintenance Expenditures

	Exhibit 13
	Ikare Publishing Newsletter Agreement

	Exhibit 14
	Finn Outdoor Drainage Maintenance Proposal

	Exhibit 15
	Resolution 2024-01

	Exhibit 16
	Approval of Installation & Maintenance Accessof Fencing in the Setback

	Exhibit 17
	Spa Services Update



	rta: 


